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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, KOLKATA BENCH
C.A. (C.A.A.) /184(KB) OF 2023

FORM NO. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]

In the matter of The CompaniesAct, 2013;
And

In the matter of Section 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016;

And

In the matter of:
1. WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY
LIMITED (CIN: L67120WB1928PLC093924),
formerly known as 'Indian Investment Co. Ltd.", a
public limited company, incorporated under the
Indian Companies Act, 1913, and having its
registered office at 21, Strand Road Kolkata — 700
001, West Bengal, within the aforesaid jurisdiction
.... TRANSFEROR COMPANY/
COMPANY

And

2. N.B.l. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY
LIMITED (CIN: L65923WB1936PLC065596), a public
limited company, formerly known as "'THE NEW BANK
LIMITED', incorporated under the Indian Companies
Act, 1913 and having its registered office at 21, Strand
Road, Kolkata — 700 001, West Bengal, within the
aforesaid jurisdiction.

...TRANSFEREE COMPANY

And
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In the matter of:
1.  WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY
LIMITED
2.  N.B.l. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY
LIMITED
...APPLICANT COMPANIES

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

To,
The Equity Shareholders of WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

1. Notice is hereby given that by an order dated 18" June, 2024 (“Order”), the Kolkata
Bench of the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT”) has directed a meeting
of the Equity Shareholders of Western India Commercial Company Limited, the
Applicant Company No. 1 abovenamed, to be held for the purpose of considering, and if
thought fit, approving with or without modification, the proposed Scheme of
Amalgamation (“Scheme”) of Western India Commercial Company Limited
(“Transferor Company” / “Company”) with N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited
(“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors.

2. Inpursuance of the Order and as directed therein further notice is hereby given that a
meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Company (“Meeting”) will be held at 21,
Strand Road, Kolkata — 700001, Top floor Hall on Friday, 9" August, 2024 at 11:00 A.M.
(IST) atwhich time and place the Equity Shareholders are requested to attend.

3. Atthe Meeting, following resolutions will be considered and if thought fit, be passed, with
or without modification(s):

“‘“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230to 232 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’), applicable
rules made thereunder, the Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-
2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated 20" June, 2023 (“SEBI Master Circular’) issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and any other circulars / guidelines issued by SEBI applicable to schemes
of amalgamation from time to time, Section 2(1B) and other relevant provisions
ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961 and the rules thereunder, and all other provisions of
applicable laws, or any amendments thereto or modifications thereof, no
objection letter / observation letter dated 26" May, 2023 and 31% May, 2023
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issued by the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) and Calcutta
Stock Exchange (“CSE”) respectively, relevant provisions of the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to sanction/approval(s)
of National Company Law Tribunal (“Tribunal” or “NCLT”), and such other
approvals, sanctions and permissions of other regulatory or government
bodies/tribunals or institutions as may be applicable, and subject to such
conditions and modification(s) as may be prescribed orimposed by NCLT or by
any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such consents, approvals
and permissions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”), the Scheme of
Amalgamation of Western India Commercial Company Limited (“Transferor
Company?”), with N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited (“Transferee
Company?”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”), a
copy of which is enclosed with this Notice and placed before this Meeting and
initialed by the Chairperson of the Meeting, as the case may be, for the purpose
of identification, be and is hereby approved.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem
requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution
and effectively implement the Scheme and to accept such modifications,
amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required
and/or imposed by NCLT while sanctioning the Scheme or by any authorities
under law, including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such
adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect
to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper, and to settle any
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in respect of aforesaid without being
required to seek any further consent or approval of the Equity Shareholders of
the Company or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to
have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board may delegate all or any of its powers
herein conferred to any Director(s) and/ or officer(s) of the Company, to give
effect to this Resolution, if required, as it may in its absolute discretion deem fit,
necessary or desirable, without any further approval from Equity Shareholders
ofthe Company.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Equity Shareholders may attend and vote at the said
Meeting in person or by proxy provided that a proxy in the prescribed form, duly signed
by them or their authorised representative, is deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company at 21, Strand Road Kolkata 700001 not later than 48 (forty-eight) hours before
the time fixed for the aforesaid Meeting. The form of proxy can be obtained free of charge
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from the Registered Office of the Company, on all working days during 10.00 a.m. to0 6.00
p.m.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in compliance with the provisions of (i) Section 230(4)
read with Section 108 of the Act; (ii) Rule 6(3)(xi) of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016; (iii) Rule 20 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014; (iv)
Regulation 44 and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; and (v)
SEBI Master Circular (as may be amended from time to time), the Company has
provided the facility of e-voting so as to enable the Equity Shareholders to consider and
approve the Scheme by way of aforesaid resolution(s). Accordingly, the Equity
Shareholders of the Company shall have the facility and option of voting on the
resolution for approval of the Scheme by casting their votes through ballot paper at the
venue of the Meeting to be held on 9" August, 2024 or by remote electronic voting
(“remote e-voting”) during the remote e-voting period commencing on 25th July, 2024
at 9:00 AM (IST) and ending on 8th August, 2024 at 5:00 PM (IST). Such facility for
remote e-voting by the respective Equity Shareholders of the Company shall be disabled
at5:00 P.M., IST, on 8th August, 2024.

Equity Shareholders of the Company may opt to exercise their votes only in one mode,
i.e., by (a) remote e-voting or (b) through ballot paper at the venue of the Meeting. In
case, the Equity Shareholders cast their votes by remote e-voting, they will not be
entitled to vote again through ballot paper facility provided by the Company at the venue
of the Meeting. If they do so, the votes so cast by them at the Meeting shall be treated as
invalid. However, it is clarified that, the Equity Shareholders opting to cast their votes
through remote e-voting shall nevertheless be entitled to attend the Meeting and
participate in the discussions in the Meeting but not to vote again through ballot paper at
the Meeting. Itis further clarified that proxies can only vote by ballot paper at the venue of
the meeting and are not entitled to vote by remote e-voting.

Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the name
of the Equity Shareholders of the Company on the closure of business hours on Friday,
19" July, 2024 (“Cut-Off Date”). A person whose name is recorded in Register of
Members maintained by the Company or in the Register of Beneficial Owners
maintained by Depositories as on the Cut-Off date only, shall be entitled to cast their
votes by remote e-voting or by ballot paper at the Meeting. Those who are not the Equity
Shareholders on the Cut-Off date should accordingly treat this Notice as for information
purpose only.

The NCLT has appointed (a) Mr. S.M Gupta, PCS, to be the Chairperson of the Meeting,
and (b) Ms. Adv Anushka Dhar, to be the Scrutinizer for the Meeting.
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9. A copy each of the Scheme, form of proxy, attendance slip and the Explanatory
Statement pursuant to Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other applicable
provisions of the Act and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 along with all the Annexures are enclosed herewith. A copy
of this Notice and the Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying
documents are also placed on the websites of the Company at www.western-india.co.in,
National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”), being the agency appointed by the
Company to provide the e-voting facility to the Equity Shareholders, as aforesaid, at
www.evoting.nsdl.com, CSE at www.cse-india.com and can also be obtained free of
charge at the Registered Office of the Company, i.e., C/o Khaitan & Co, Advocates, 1B,
Old Post Office Street, Kolkata - 700 001. Copy of the Notice and the Explanatory
Statement together with the accompanying documents has also been shared with NSE,
being a designated stock exchange appointed by the Company for purpose of the
Scheme.

10. The Scrutinizer shall within two (2) working days of the conclusion of Meeting submit his
report to the Chairman of the Meeting, after completion of scrutiny of votes cast by Equity
Shareholders (which includes Public Shareholders) of Company, through (i) remote e-
voting, and (ii) ballot paper at the venue of the Meeting, who shall countersign the same.
The Scrutinizer's decision on the validity of the votes (including e-votes) shall be final.
The results, together with the Scrutinizer's report, will be displayed on the Notice Board
of the Company at its Registered Office, posted on the website of Company viz.
www.western-india.co.in and on website of the CSE at www.cse-india.com. The results
shall also be immediately forwarded to the Stock Exchange where the shares of the
Company are listed viz. CSE.

11. The abovementioned Scheme of Amalgamation, if approved at the aforesaid meeting,
will be subject to the subsequent sanction of the Hon'ble Tribunal and such other
approval(s), permission(s) and sanction(s) of regulatory or other authorities, as may be
necessary.

Sd/-

Mr. S.M. Gupta, PCS
Chairperson appointed by the NCLT for the Meeting
Date: 04" July, 2024
Place: Kolkata
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Notes:

1. The Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act read with Section 230(3) of the Act and
Rule 6 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements & Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 in
respect of special business as set out above to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed
hereto and forms part of this Notice.

2. Only registered Equity Shareholders of the Company may attend (either in person or by
proxy or by authorised representative) at the said Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the
Company.

3. AN EQUITY SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY / PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE
MEETING. THE PROXY NEED NOT TO BEASHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY. THE
FORM OF PROXY DULY COMPLETED SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE DEPOSITED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE
THE TIME FIXED FOR COMMENCEMENT OF THE AFORESAID MEETING.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of Equity Shareholders not exceeding 50 (fifty) in
number, and holding in aggregate, not more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights. An Equity Shareholder holding more than 10% of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, may appoint a single person as proxy
and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other Equity Shareholder. Proxies
executed/submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by
appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable. The Proxy-holder shall prove his identity at
the time of attending the Meeting. A blank proxy form is annexed to this Notice and can also
be obtained free of charge from the Registered Office of the Company. All alterations made
in the form of proxy should be initialed.

4. Amember or his/her Proxy is requested to bring the copy of the Notice to the meeting and
produce the Attendance Slip, duly completed and signed, at the entrance of the meeting
venue.

5. Corporate / Institutional Shareholders intending to depute their authorized
representative(s) to attend the Meeting are requested to forward at the Registered Office of
the Company, certified copy of the Board Resolution/Power of Attorney together with
specimen signature(s) of the representative(s), authorizing the said person to attend and
vote on their behalf at the Meeting, not later than 48 hours before the Meeting.

6. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the
order of names in the Register of Members of the Company or in the Register of Beneficial
Owners maintained by Depositories in respect of such joint holding, will be entitled to vote.
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7. The Notice and the Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying documents are
being sent to all the Equity Shareholders, through permitted mode, whose names appearin
the Register of Members maintained by the Company or in the Register of Beneficial
Owners maintained by Depositories as on 14" June, 2024.

8. SEBI Master Circularissued by the SEBI as amended from time to time, inter alia, provides
that approval of Public Shareholders of the Company to the Scheme shall be obtained by
way of e-voting. Since, Company is seeking approval of all its Equity Shareholders (which
include the Public Shareholders) to the Scheme by way of remote e-voting, no separate
procedure for e-voting would be required to be carried out by Company for seeking the
approval to the Scheme by its Public Shareholders in terms of SEBI Master Circular. The
aforesaid Notice sent to the Equity Shareholders (which includes Public Shareholders) of
Company would be deemed to be the notice sent to the Public Shareholders of Company.
For this purpose, the term “Public” shall have the meaning assigned to it in Rule 2(d) of the
Securities Contracts (Regulations) Rules, 1957 and the term “Public Shareholders” shall
be construed accordingly.

9. As stated in the Notice, Equity Shareholders of the Company shall have the facility and
option of casting their votes on the resolution for approval of the Scheme through ballot
paper at the venue of the Meeting or by remote e-voting. The Company has engaged NSDL
as the agency for providing the platform for remote e-voting.

10.The quorum of the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of Company shall be in accordance
with the terms of NCLT order and Section 103 of the Act.

11.Equity Shareholders / Proxies / Authorised representative(s) may kindly note the following:

(i) Copies of the Notice will not be distributed at the venue of the Meeting;

(i) Attendance Slip, sent herewith, is required to be produced at the venue duly filled-in
and signed, for attending the Meeting;

(iii) Entry to the hall will be in exchange for duly completed and signed Attendance Slips
and on producing any Government issued ID proof (viz. Aadhar Card, PAN Card,
Voter Id card, Driving license, etc.); and

(iv)  The registered Equity Shareholder of the Company who holds shares in
dematerialized form and who is attending the meeting are requested to bring his DP
ID and Client ID for easy identification.

12.The documents referred to in the Notice and accompanying Explanatory Statement shall
be available for inspection without any fee by the Equity Shareholders on all working days
(except Saturdays, Sundays and Public holidays) during 10.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m. at the
Registered Office of the Company, from the date of dispatch of this Notice till the date of the
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Meeting, i.e., 9" August, 2024.

13.During the period beginning 24 (twenty four) hours before the time fixed for the
commencement of the Meeting and ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, an Equity
Shareholder would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business
hours of the Company, provided that not less than 3 (three) days of notice in writing is given
atthe Registered Office of Company.

14. The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period:

Commencement of remote e-voting | Thursday, 251 July, 2024 at 9:00 AM (IST)

End of remote e-voting Thursday, 8t August, 2024 at 5:00 PM (IST)

During the aforesaid period, the Equity Shareholders (which includes Public Shareholders)
of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, may cast
their vote electronically. The e-voting module will not be allowed beyond the aforesaid date
and time, and the e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL upon expiry of aforesaid
period. Once the vote on the resolution is cast by an Equity Shareholder, he or she will not
be allowed to change it subsequently. Equity shareholders are requested to carefully read
the “Procedure and instructions for e-voting” outlined hereunder in Point No. 18.

15. In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be
acted upon only if a majority of persons representing three-fourth in value of the Equity
Shareholders of the Company, voting in person or by proxy or e-voting, agree to the
Scheme.

16. Further, in accordance with the SEBI Master Circular, the Scheme shall be acted upon only
if the number of votes cast by the Public Shareholders in favour of the aforesaid resolution
for approval of Scheme is more than the number of votes cast by the Public Shareholders
againstit.

17. The resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of Meeting, subject to receipt of
requisite number of votes being cast in favour of the resolution(s).

18. PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING

The instructions for e-voting are as under:

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
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The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which
are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their

demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders

are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to

access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of Login Method

shareholders

Individual Sharcholders 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
holding securities in https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile,
demat mode with NSDL. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon

under “Login® which is available under ‘TDeAS* section, this will
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value
added services. Click on “Aeccess to e-Voting™ under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services. option to register is

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for

IDeAS Portal” or click at

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg. jsp
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%

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www evoting nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system 13
launched, click on the icon “Login® which 13 available under
‘Shareholder/Member” section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (1.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held
with WSDL), Password/OTP and a Veritfication Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication. you will be redirected to NSDL
Depostitory site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL
and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period.
Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless
voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

i App Store B Google Play

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with CDSL

1

2)

Existing users who have opted for Eas1 / Easiest, they can login through
their user 1d and password. Option will be made available to reach e-
Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to
login to Easi / Eastest are https://web_cdslindia com/myeasi’home/login

or www.cdslindia com and click on New System Myeasi.

After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the
E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider
i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.
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3) Ifthe user is not registered for Easi/Eastest, option to register 1s
available at
https://web.cdslindia com/myeast/Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www .cdslindia.com
home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After
successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective
ESP 1.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders | You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your

(holding securities Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon
demat mode) login logging i, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you
through their depository | will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication,
participants wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voling

gervice provider 1.2 NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depositoryi.e. NSDL and CDSL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical 1ssue 1n login can contact
securifies in demat mode with NSDL | NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
or call at toll free no_: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding Members facimg any technical 1ssue in login can contact
gecurities in demat mode with CDSL | CDSL  helpdesk by sending a  request at
helpdesk evoting@ecdslindia com or  contact at  022-
23058738 or 022-23058542-43

1
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B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under 'Shareholder/Member' section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast
your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat | Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in 8 Character DP ID followed by & Digit Client ID

demat account with NSDL. ) ) .
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client

ID i 12%%#%%¥  then vyour user ID 1ig
TN OOk ] Ddkkokok

b) For Members who hold shares in 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

demat account with CDSL. ) ) )
For example if vyour Beneficiary ID 1is
1 2okl deksolok okt fhan your user D 1=
1 koo ok ok ok o

¢) For Members holding shares i | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
Physical Form. registered with the company

For example if folio number 15 001%** and EVEN
15 101456 then user ID is 101456001 %**

12
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5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to
login and cast your vote.

b) Ifyou are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the
'initial password' which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial
password', youneed to enter the 'initial password' and the system will force you to change
your password.

¢) Howtoretrieve your 'initial password'?

(1) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your
'initial password' is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent
to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment
i.e. a.pdffile. Open the .pdffile. The password to open the .pdffile is your 8 digit
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdffile contains your 'User ID' and
your 'initial password'.

(i1) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. Ifyouare unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) Ifyouare stillunable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your
name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on
the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the
check box.
8. Now, youwill have to click on “Login” button.

9. Afteryouclick onthe “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open

13



WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - Y00 001
W ;2213 0957, 2243 7725, 2230 7905, 2230 9601/9604 (4 LINES), Fax : 033-2213 1650
E.ma# ; westemindiacommercialcoitd@gmail, com

Step 2: Cast vour vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

L.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN" in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options 1.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submut” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to
the Scrutinizer by e-mail to anushkadhar.2020@gmail.com with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can
also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on
"Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their
login.

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquire
shares of the Company and become member of the Company after the notice is sent through e-
mail and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending
arequest at evoting@nsdl.co.in or the Company/RTA. However, if you are already registered
with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for
casting your vote. If you have forgot your password, you can reset your password by using
“Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 . In case of
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquire shares of the Company
and become Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as of the
cut-off date, may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the Meeting under Step 1 : “Access to
NSDL e-Voting system”(Above).

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon
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five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

4. Incase of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a
request to Mr. Amit Vishal, Asst. Vice President, NSDL and/or Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior
Manager, NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set
outin this notice:

1. Incase shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
westernindiacommercialcoltd@gmail.com.

2. Incase shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
westernindiacommercialcoltd@gmail.com. If you are an Individual shareholder holding
securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A)
i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user
id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to
update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-
Voting facility.

5. Members who need assistance, can contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager, NSDL at
evoting@nsdl.co.in orcall 1800 1020990/180022 44 30.
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, KOLKATA BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. CA (CAA) /184(KB)/2023

In the matter of The CompaniesAct, 2013;
And

In the matter of Section 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016;

And

In the matter of:
1. WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY
LIMITED (CIN: L67120WB1928PLC093924),
formerly known as 'Indian Investment Co. Ltd.", a
public limited company, incorporated under the Indian
Companies Act, 1913, and having its registered office
at 21, Strand Road Kolkata — 700 001, West Bengal,
within the aforesaid jurisdiction

.... TRANSFEROR COMPANY/ COMPANY

And

2. N.B.l. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY
LIMITED (CIN: L65923WB1936PLC065596), a public
limited company, formerly known as 'THE NEW BANK
LIMITED', incorporated under the Indian Companies
Act, 1913 and having its registered office at 21, Strand
Road, Kolkata — 700 001, West Bengal, within the
aforesaid jurisdiction.

...TRANSFEREE COMPANY

And

In the matter of:

1.  WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY
LIMITED

2.  N.B.l. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY
LIMITED

... APPLICANT COMPANIES
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230 AND 232 READ WITH SECTION
102 AND OTHERAPPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013AND RULE
6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS)
RULES, 2016 (“EXPLANATORY STATEMENT”) TO THE NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
CONVENED PURSUANT TO ORDER OF THE HON'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW
TRIBUNAL, KOLKATABENCH (“NCLT”) DATED 18TH JUNE, 2024 (“ORDER”)

1) Meeting to consider the Scheme of Amalgamation

Pursuant to the Order dated 18" June, 2024 passed by the Kolkata Bench of the Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal Bench, in the Company Application No. CA
(CAA)/184(KB)2023 referred to hereinabove, a Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of
Western India Commercial Company Limited, the Applicant Company No. 1
abovenamed shall be held at the registered office of the Company at 21, Strand Road,
Kolkata — 700001, Top floor Hall on Friday, 9" August, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. (IST) to
consider, and if thought fit, approve, with or without modification, the proposed Scheme
of Amalgamation of Western India Commercial Company Limited (“Transferor
Company’/ “Company”) with N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited
(“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (the
“Scheme”), whereby and whereunder the Transferor Company will be amalgamated
with the Transferee Company on the terms and conditions fully stated in the said
Scheme of Amalgamation. In pursuance of the said Order, a meeting of the creditors of
Applicant Companies to consider the said Scheme has been dispensed. This statement
is being furnished as required under Section 232 and Section 102 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with applicable rules of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

2) Date, time and venue of the Meeting

In pursuance of the Order of the Hon'ble Tribunal, the said meeting of the Equity
Shareholders of the Company (“Meeting”) will be held at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata —
700001, Top floor Hall on Friday, 9" August, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. (IST).

3) Rationale ofthe Scheme

The proposed amalgamation would be in the best interests of the Transferor Company
and Transferee Company and their respective shareholders, employees, creditors and
other stakeholders. The proposed amalgamation will yield advantages as set out inter
alia below:
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The shares of the Transferor Company are listed on Calcutta Stock Exchange and
no trading activity is being undertaken in the shares of Transferor Company. Upon
amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company, equity
shares of the Transferee Company, listed on National Stock Exchange having
nationwide trading terminal, would be issued to the shareholders of the Transferor
Company. Thus, the amalgamation would result in providing better liquidity to the
shareholders of Transferor Company while not being prejudicial to the interest of
Transferee Company and its shareholders, creditors, employees or any
stakeholders.

The amalgamation would result in improving the potential for further expansion of
the businesses by way of consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing
strengths of the combined entity.

The amalgamation will result not only in consolidating and improving the internal
systems, procedures and controls but will also bring greater management and
operational efficiency due to integration of various similar functions being carried
out by both the Companies.

Greater size, scale, financial strength and flexibility for the merged Transferee
Company will resultin maximizing and unlocking overall shareholders value.

The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in multiplicity of legal and
regulatory compliances which at present is required to be made separately by the
Companies with saving in administrative cost and deriving economies of scale

Background of the Applicant Companies

Particulars of the Transferor Company

a)

b)

Western India Commercial Company Limited/ Transferor Company is public
limited company, originally incorporated on 13 August 1928 in the name of 'INDIAN
INVESTMENT CO. LTD.' under the Indian Companies Act, 1913, with CIN
L67120WB1928PLC093924 and PAN AAACW2354C having its registered office
at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata 700 001 within the aforesaid jurisdiction. The e-mail
address of the Transferor Company is westernindiacommercialcoltd@gmail.com.
During the last five years, there has been no change in the name, registered office
and object of the Transferor Company.

The Transferor Company is engaged in carrying on business as a Non-Banking
Financial Company ("NBFC”) and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India
(“RBI") under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 having
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registration number B-05.06730. The Transferor Company is inter alia primarily
engaged in investment in shares, securities and financial activity. As on date, the
securities of the Transferor Company are listed on Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd
(“CSE”).

The main objects of the Transferor Company as per the memorandum of
association, inter alia, are:

fi.

fi.

iv.

To acquire, hold, exchange, sell and deal in shares, stocks, Debentures,
debenture stocks, bonds, obligations and securities issued or guaranteed
by any Company constituted or carrying on business in British India, United
Kingdom or in any colony or dependency, or possession thereof, or in any
foreign country, and debentures, debenture-stocks, bonds obligations and
securities issued or guaranteed by any Government Sovereign, Ruler,
Commissioner, Public Body or authority Supreme, Municipal, local or
otherwise whether in India, the United Kingdom or elsewhere.

To acquire any such shares, stocks, debentures, debenture-stocks, bonds,
obligations or securities, by original subscription, tender, purchase,
exchange or otherwise and to subscribe for the same either conditionally or
otherwise, and to guarantee and underwrite the subscription thereof, and
to exercise and enforce all rights and powers conferred by or incident to the
ownership thereof.

To borrow or raise or secure the payment of money in such manner as the
Company shall think fit and in particular by the issue of debentures,
debenture-stocks, bonds, obligations, notes and securities of all kinds and
to frame, constitute and secure the same as may seem expedient with full
powers to make the same transferable by delivery or by instrument of
transfer or otherwise, and either perpetual or terminable and either
redeemable or otherwise, and to charge or secure the same by trust deeds,
or otherwise, on the undertaking of the Company or upon any specific
property and rights, presents and future of the Company (including and if
thought fir uncalled capital) or otherwise howsoever. To advance and lend
money and assets of all kinds upon such terms as may be thought fit.

To facilitate and encourage the creation, issue or conversion of
debentures, debenture-stocks, bonds, obligations, share stock and
securities and to take part in the conversion of business concerns and
undertakings into Companies.

d) The capital structure of the Transferor Company as on 31* March, 2024 is as
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follows:
Particulars Amount (INR)
Authorised Capital
35,000 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each 35,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
18,000 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each 18,00,000

e) The last annual financial statements of the Transferor Company have been
audited for the financial year ended 31* March, 2024. Subsequent to 31* March,
2024, there has been no substantial change in the financial position of the
Transferor Company excepting those arising or resulting from the usual course of
business.

f) The details of the Directors of the Transferor Company as on the date of this
Notice, along with their addresses, are mentioned herein below:

Sl No | Name of Director Address

1. | Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya 31, Sovabazar Street, Kolkata —

700005

2. | Jagdish Prasad Mundra 5/7, Buro Shibtalla Main Road, Flat
no.t-52, Kolkata — 700038

3. | Rajkamal Devi Bangur 34, New Road, Kolkata — 700 027

4. | Subhas Jajoo 30, Bondel Road, Orbit Sky Gardens,
Flat — 12¢, Kolkata — 700 019

5. | Ravi Goenka 375, Prince Anwar Shah Road, T -1,

Flat -7, Kolkata — 700 068
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the date of this Notice, along with their addresses, are mentioned herein below:

Sl No | Name of Promoter & Promoter Group Address
1. | Hari Mohan Bangur 34, New Road, Kolkata — 700 027
2. | Rajkamal Devi Bangur 34, New Road, Kolkata — 700 027
3. | Prashant Bangur 34, New Road, Kolkata — 700 027
4. | Shree Capital Services Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
5. | Asish Creations Private Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001
6. | N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
7. | Mannakrishna Investments Private Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
8. | Ranu Bangur 34, New Road, Kolkata - 700 027
9. | Benu Gopal Bangur 34, New Road, Kolkata — 700 027
10. | Digvijay Finlease Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001
11. | Newa Investments Private Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
12. | The Didwana Investment Company Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
13. | Didu Investments Private Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
14. | Ragini Finance Private Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001
15. | The Venktesh Company Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
16. | Rajesh Vanijya Private Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
17. | The Laxmi Salt Company Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001
18. | India Paint & Commercial Company Limited | 21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001
19. | Ramgopal Holdings Private Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
20. | Karmayog Properties Private Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
21. | Alfa Buildhome Private Limited Plot no SB -187, Jawaharlal Nehru Marg,
Bapu nagar, Jaipur, Rajasthan — 302015
22. | Aqua Infra Projects Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001
23. | Suryadewata Properties Private Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
24. | Shreecap Holdings Private Limited 21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001
25. | Shree Bangur Family Trust 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
26. | Shree Bangur Family Welfare Trust 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
27. | Shree Bangur Family Heritage Trust 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
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Particulars of the Transferee Company

a) N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited /Transferee Company is a public limited
company, originally incorporated on 21 December 1936 in the name of 'The New
Bank Limited." under the Indian Companies Act, 1913, with CIN
L65923WB1936PLC065596 and PAN AAACN3868N having its registered office at
21, Strand Road, Kolkata 700 001 within the aforesaid jurisdiction. The e-mail
address of the Transferee Company is nbifinance@ymail.com. During the last five
years, there has been no change in the name, registered office and object of the

Transferee Company.

b) The Transferee Company is engaged in carrying on business as a NBFC and is
registered with the RBI under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
having registration number 05.00252. The Transferee Company is inter alia
primarily engaged in investment in shares, securities and financial activity. As on
date, the securities of the Transferee Company are listed on National Stock

Exchange of India Ltd ("NSE”).

c) The main objects of the Transferee Company as per the memorandum of

association, inter alia, are:

i. The borrowing, raising of taking up of money, the lending or advancing of
money either upon or without security, the drawing, making, accepting,
discounting, buying, selling, collecting and dealing in bills of exchange,
hundies, promissory notes, coupons, drafts, bill of lading, railway receipts,
warrants, debentures, certificates, scrips and other instruments and securities,
whether transferable or negotiable or not; the granting and issuing of letters of
credit, traveler's cheque and circular notes, and buying, selling of foreign
exchange including foreign bank notes; the acquiring, holding, issuing on
commission, underwriting and dealing in stocks, funds, shares, debentures,
debenture stock, bonds, obligations, securities and instruments of all kinds, the
purchasing and selling of bonds, scrips or other form of securities on behalf of
constituents or others; the negotiating of loans and advances; the receiving of
all kinds of bonds, scrips or valuables on deposits, or for sale custody, or

otherwise, the collecting and transmitting of money and securities;

ii. Acting as agents for Government or local authorities or for any other person or
persons, the carrying on of agency business of any description other than the
business of a Managing Agent of a Company not being a Banking Company

including the power to act as attorneys and to give discharges and receipts;

iii. The promoting, effecting, issuing, guaranteeing, underwriting, participating in
managing and carrying out of any issue, public or private, of State, Municipal or
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other loads or of shares, stock debentures, or debenture stock of any
Company, corporation of association and the lending of money for the

purposes of any suchissues.

iv. Carryingon and transacting every kind of guarantee and indemnity business.

d) The capital structure of the Transferee Company as on 31% March, 2024 is as

follows:
Particulars Amount (INR)
Authorised Capital
2,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 5/- each 10,00,00,000
Issued Capital
24,59,058 equity shares of Rs. 5/- each 1,22,95,290
Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
24.56,806 equity shares of Rs. 5/- each 1,22,84,030 |

e) Thelastannual financial statements of the Transferee Company have been audited
for the financial year ended 31% March, 2024. Subsequent to 31° March, 2024, there
has been no substantial change in the financial position of the Transferee Company
excepting those arising or resulting from the usual course of business.

f)

The details of the Directors of the Transferee Company as on the date of this Notice,
along with their addresses, are mentioned herein below:

SINo | Name of Director Address

1. | Debasish Ray 24b, Panchanan Tola Lane, Bowbazar, Kolkata -
700012

2. | Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya 31, Sova Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700005

3. | Sundeep Bhutoria 4B, Little Russel Street, Kolkata — 700 071

4. | Riya Puja Jain C-7/2, Vasant Vihar, New Delhi — 110057

5. | Bankat Lal Gaggar 15/2C, Chetla Road, Kolkata — 700 027

6. | Jagdish Prasad Mundra 5/7, Buro Shibtalla Main Road, Flat No.T-52, Kolkata -
700038

7. | Ashok Bhandari Flat No - 7A, Block - B, Raghu Estate,
8/4 Alipore Road, Near Woodlands Hospital, Kolkata -
700 027

8. | Priyanka Mohta 21/1, Prannath Pandit Street, Lansdwne, Puddopukar,
Kolkata-700025
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date of this Notice, along with their addresses, are mentioned herein below:

Sl No

Name of Promoter & Promoter
Group

Address

Harimohan Bangur

34, New Road, Kolkata - 700 027

Rajkamal Devi Bangur

34, New Road, Kolkata - 700 027

Prashant Bangur

34, New Road, Kolkata — 700 027

Ranu Bangur

34, New Road, Kolkata — 700 027

Benu Gopal Bangur

34, New Road, Kolkata — 700 027

Shree Capital Services Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

Asish Creations Private Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

Mannakrishna Investments Private
Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

© @ (No|¢o s N =

Digvijay Finlease Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

—
e

Newa Investments Private Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

—
—

The Didwana Investment Company
Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

—
N

Didu Investments Private Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

-
)

Ragini Finance Private Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

—
>

The Venktesh Company Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

s
o

Rajesh Vanijya Private Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

—
o

The Laxmi Salt Company Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

-y
™

India Paint & Commercial Company
Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

-
o

Western India Commercial Co Ltd

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

-
©

Ramgopal Holdings Private Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

)
o

Karmayog Properties Private Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

(g%
-

Alfa Buildhome Private Limited

Plot no SB -187, Jawaharlal Nehru Marg,
Bapu nagar, Jaipur, Rajasthan — 302015

N

Aqua Infra Projects Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

)
@

Suryadewata Properties  Private
Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

%)
$

Shreecap Holdings Private Limited

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

N
o

Shree Bangur Family Trust

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

)
&

Shree Bangur Family Welfare Trust

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

N
™~

Shree Bangur Family Heritage Trust

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001
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Salient features of the Scheme

The Scheme inter-alia provides for:

a)

Amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company and
consequent issue of equity shares by the Transferee Company to the
shareholders of Transferor Company in accordance with clause 10 of the
Scheme.

The Scheme shall be operative from the 'Effective Date', being the date on which
last of the approvals or events specified under clause 19 of Part C of the Scheme
are satisfied or obtained or have occurred or the requirement of which has been
waived (in writing) in accordance with this Scheme. References in the Scheme to
the date of “upon this Scheme becoming effective” or “coming into effect of this
Scheme” shall mean the Effective Date.

Appointed Date for the purpose of the Scheme and the Income Tax Act, 1961 shall
mean 1stApril 2022 or such other date as may be mutually agreed to by the Board
of Directors of Transferor Company and Transferee Company or such other date
as may be fixed or approved by the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authority (as
defined in the Scheme).

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of the amalgamation,
the shareholders of the Transferor Company (other than the shares already held
by the Transferee Company in the Transferor Company), whose name appear in
the register of members as on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme) or to
their respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representatives or
the successors-in-title as the case may be, shall be eligible to receive 94 (ninety
four) fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 5/- each of the Transferee
Company for every 3 (three) fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 100/-
each of the Transferor Company.

If any shareholder becomes entitled to any fractional shares or entitlements on
the issue and allotment of the New Equity Shares by the Transferee Company, the
Board of Directors of the Transferee Company shall consolidate all such fractional
entitlements and shall round up the aggregate of such fractions to the next whole
number and issue consolidated equity shares to a trustee nominated by the
Transferee Company (the "Trustee"), who shall hold such equity shares with all
additions or accretions thereto in trust for the benefit of the respective
shareholders, to whom they belong and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors for the specific purpose of selling such equity shares
in the market at such price or prices and on such time or times within ninety (90)
days from the date of allotment, as the Trustee may in its sole discretion decide
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and on such sale, distribute the net sale proceeds (after deduction of applicable
taxes and costs incurred) to the concerned shareholders of the Transferor
Company in proportion to their respective fractional entitlements.

f)  The equity shares of the Transferee Company issued in terms of this Scheme,
shall be listed and/or admitted to trading only on NSE, ie., the stock exchange on
which equity shares of Transferee Company are listed.

Note: The above details are only salient features of the Scheme. Shareholders are
requested to read the entire text of the Scheme which is enclosed as Annexure 1 to get
fully acquainted with the provisions thereof.

6) Relationship subsisting between Parties to the Scheme

The Transferee Company holds 11.69% shares of the Transferor Company as a
promoter group company.

7) BoardApprovals

a) The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company approved the Scheme of
Amalgamation on 21* September 2022 by unanimous resolution. The names of
the then Directors and their manner of voting are set out below:

Did not
SINo Name Voted in Vot'ed vote/
favour against =
participate
1 Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya v
2 Jagdish Prasad Mundra v
3. Rajkamal Devi Bangur v
4, Subhas Jajoo v
5. Ravi Goenka v
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b) The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company approved the Scheme of
Amalgamation on 21* September 2022 by unanimous resolution. The names of
the then Directors and their manner of voting are set out below:

Voted in Voted Did not
Sl No Name . vote/
favour against ..
participate
1. Debasish Ray v
2. Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya
3. Riya Puja Jain v
4. Bankat Lal Gaggar v
5. Jagdish Prasad Mundra v
6. Ashok Bhandari v
7. Priyanka Mohta v

Note: Mr. Sundeep Bhutoria was appointed as a Director of the Transferee
Company in the Board meeting held on 21st September, 2022. His appointment
was made just afterthe Board discussed the Scheme of Amalgamation matter.

8) Details of accounting treatment

a) Accounting Treatmentin the Books of the Transferor Company

There will be no accounting treatment in the books of the Transferor Company as
it shall cease to exist pursuant to application of the Scheme. All costs, charges,
stamp duty incurred in connection with giving effect to this Scheme shall be
debited by the Transferee Company to its statement of Profitand Loss.

b) Accounting Treatmentin the books of the Transferee Company

i. The Transferee Company shall record the assets, liabilities and reserves of
the Transferor Company, as on Appointed Date, vested in it pursuant to the
Scheme at their respective carrying values as per 'Pooling of Interest
Method' of accounting as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103
(Business Combination) in accordance with Appendix C of “Business
Combinations of entities under common control” under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. No adjustment shall be made to
reflect the fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.

ii. The identity of the reserves of Transferor Company shall be preserved and

shall appear in the financial statements of the Transferee Company in the
same form, in which they appeared in the financial statements of the
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Transferor Company.

iii. Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shallissue
New Equity Shares (as defined in the Scheme) to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company (other than for shares, if any, held by Transferee
Company into the Transferor Company). These New Equity Shares shall be
issued and recorded at face value and accordingly the aggregate face value
of the shares to be issued shall be credited to Transferee Company's share
capital account.

iv. The carrying value of investments in the financial statements of the
Transferee Company in the equity share capital of the Transferor Company
shall stand cancelled pursuant to the Scheme becoming effective and there
shall be no further obligation in that behalf.

v. Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, to the extent there are inter-
corporate loans/ advances, deposits, balances or other obligations as
between Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, the obligations
in respect thereof shall come to an end, and corresponding effect shall be
given in the books of accounts and records of the Transferee Company for
the reduction of any assets or liabilities, as the case may be.

vi. Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the surplus/ deficit, if any, of the net
value of assets, liabilities, reserves of the Transferor Company acquired and
recorded by the Transferee Company in terms of clause 11.1.1 of the
Scheme over the sum of (a) face value of New Equity Shares issued and
allotted to the shareholders of the Transferor Company, and (b) the value of
investments cancelled pursuant to clause 11.1.4 of the Scheme, shall be
adjusted in capital reserves account in the financial statement of the
Transferee Company.

vii.In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferee
Company and the Transferor Company, the impact of the same will be
quantified and the same shall be appropriately adjusted against the capital
reserves of the Transferee Company.

viii. The costs and expenses relating to the Scheme shall be accounted for in
the statement of Profitand Loss.
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Summary of Share Entitlement Ratio Report and Fairness Opinion

a)

b)

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of the amalgamation,
the shareholders of the Transferor Company (other than the shares already held
by the Transferee Company in the Transferor Company), whose name appear in
the register of members as on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme) or to
their respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representatives or
the successors-in-title as the case may be, shall be eligible to receive 94 (ninety
four) fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 5/- each of the Transferee
Company for every 3 (three) fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 100/-
each of the Transferor Company.

The Share Exchange ratio has been arrived by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP, an
independent registered valuer (IBBl Registered Valuer No.: IBBI/RV-
E/05/2019/110), on the basis of a relative valuation based on the Adjusted Net
Asset Value method explained in the Valuation Report and other qualitative
factors relevant to each company and the business dynamics, having regard to
information base, key underlying assumptions and limitations. A copy of the
Valuation Report dated 21* September, 2022 of RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP, the
independent registered valuer read with addendum dated 18th May 2023 to the
aforesaid Valuation Reportis annexed as Annexure 11.

c) Thecomputation ofthe Share Exchange ratio is as under:

Transferee Company Transferor Company
Valuation Approach INR per . INR per -
share" Weight share® Weight

Income Approach —
DCF Method NA 0% NA 0%
Market Approach —
Market Price Method NA 0% NA o
Market Approach -
Comparable Companies NA 0% NA 0%
Multiple Method
Asset Approach-
Adjusted Net Asset 6,609 100% 2,07,076 100%
Value Method
Rolative Valua por 6609 |  100%| 207,07 100%
Equity Share |

NA—NotApplicable
*Face Value INR 5 each
@Face Value INR 100 each
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d) Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited, an independent SEBI Registered Category |
Merchant Banker (SEBI Registration No.INM000008753) has issued Fairness
Opinion dated 21* September, 2022, confirming that the Share Exchange ratio as
recommended by the Registered Valuer, is fair and reasonable. The said Fairness
Opinion is annexed as Annexure 12 hereto.

e) The Audit Committee of the Applicant Companies at their meeting held on 21
September, 2022 has recommended the Scheme, including the Share Exchange
ratio, after taking into consideration, inter alia, the aforesaid Valuation Report and
Fairness Opinion. The Independent Directors Committee of the Applicant
Companies at their meeting held on 21 September, 2022 has also recommended
the Scheme.

f) The Board of Directors of each of the Applicant Companies have come to the
conclusion that the aforesaid Share Exchange ratio is fair and reasonable and
accordingly, approved the same as integral part of the Scheme at their meeting
held on 21* September, 2022.

g) Copies of the said Valuation Report and Fairness Opinion are available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company.

Details of capital/ debt restructuring, if any

The Scheme does not involve any capital or debt restructuring and therefore the
requirement to disclose capital/ debt restructuring is not applicable.

Benefits of the compromise or arrangement as perceived by the Board of
directors to the company, members, creditors and others (as applicable)

Considering the rationale and benefits as mentioned above, the Board of Directors of the
Transferor Company and Transferee Company recommends the Scheme as it is in the
best interest of the respective Applicant Companies, their shareholders, creditors and
other stakeholders.

Amount due to unsecured creditors

The amount due to unsecured creditors of the Transferor Company and Transferee
Company, as on 31" March, 2024 is INR 0.01 Crand INR 0.16 Crrespectively.

Disclosure about the effect of the compromise or arrangement on:

a) Equity Shareholders (Promoters and Non-Promoters), Employees, Key
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Managerial Personnel and Creditors of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company

The effect of the Scheme on the equity shareholders (promoter and non-promoter
shareholders), employees, key managerial personnel and creditors of the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company is given in the reports adopted by the Board
of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company on 21°
September, 2022 pursuant to the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act which are
attached as Annexure 5 and Annexure 6 to this Statement.

b) Directors

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Transferor Company will be dissolved without winding
up and the directors of the Transferor Company shall cease from the office of
directorship. The Scheme will have no effect on the office of existing directors of the
Transferee Company. The directors of the Transferee Company will continue to be
directors of the Transferee Company, as before. It is clarified that the composition of
the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company may change by
appointments, retirements or resignations in accordance with the provisions of the
Act, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Memorandum and Articles of Association
but the Scheme itself does not affect the office of directors of the Transferee
Company. The effect of the Scheme on directors of the Applicant Companies in their
capacity as shareholders of such companies is the same as in case of other
shareholders of such companies, as mentioned above.

c) Depositors and Deposit Trustees

The Applicant Companies have not accepted any deposits within the meaning of the
Act and Rules framed thereunder. Hence, no Deposit Trustees have been appointed.
Thus, the Scheme will have no adverse effect on the aforesaid stakeholders.

d) Debenture Holders and Debenture Trustee

The Applicant Companies have not issued any debentures and hence, no Debenture
Trustees have been appointed. Thus, the Scheme will have no adverse effect on the
aforesaid stakeholders.

Disclosure about the effect of the compromise or arrangement on material

interests of directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and debenture trustee.

a) TheApplicant Companies does not have any debenture trustee.
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b) None of the directors and KMPs (as defined under the Act and rules framed
thereunder) of the Applicant Companies have any interest in the Scheme except to
the extent of their shareholding in the respective Applicant Companies, if any.

Details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings, prosecution initiated,
and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the Company, its promoters
and directors. Investigation or proceedings, if any, pending against the company
under the Act.

a) The Transferor Company does not have any ongoing litigation, recovery
proceedings and any other enforcement action taken against it, its promoters,
directors.

b) The Transferee Company has following pending proceedings initiated againstiit.

e Fineof INR 8,26,000/- imposed by National Stock exchange under SEBI (LODR)
Regulations 2015, for delayed compliance of certain requirements. The
Transferee Company has paid the amount of the fine and filed an appeal in
Securities Appellate Tribunal.

e Order received under Section 143(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961 for an amount of
INR 15,84,470/- vide DIN No ITBA/AST/156/2021-22/1035012856(1). An
appeal has been filed by N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited on 10"
November, 2022 which is pending for hearing before Ld. CIT (A). Pending
hearing, the Income Tax Department has adjusted the said amount against
refund relating to the various assessment year(s).

e Orderreceived under Section 270A of Income Tax Act, 1961 for an amount of INR
14,80,275 vide DIN No ITBA/PNL/S/156/2021-22/1041302107(1). An appeal
has been filed by the Transferee Company on 10" November, 2022 which is
pending for hearing before Ld. CIT (A). Pending hearing, the Income Tax
Department has adjusted INR 2,78,254/- against refund relating to the various
assessment year(s).

There are no other ongoing adjudication and recovery proceedings pending against
the Transferee Company, its promoters, directors.

Auditors' Certificates of conformity of accounting treatment in the Scheme with
the Accounting Standards

The Statutory Auditors of the Transferee Company has confirmed that the accounting
treatment specified in the Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting Standards
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prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

17) Details of approvals, sanctions or no-objection(s), if any, from regulatory or any
other government authorities required, received or pending for the proposed
scheme of compromise or arrangement

a) Observation letters of the CSE dated 31* May, 2023 and NSE dated 26" May, 2023
respectively, have been received by Transferor Company and Transferee Company.
There are no adverse observations on the Scheme in the said observation letters.
Further, in terms of the SEBI Master Circular, the Applicant Companies have not
received any complaint relating to the Scheme and “NIL” complaint reports were filed
by the Transferee Company with NSE and by the Transferor Company with NSE and
CSE.

b) The Applicant Companies being a Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC')
registered with the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI'), has accordingly, sought for prior
approval of the Reserve Bank of India pursuant to Chapter 1X- Acquisition/ Transfer
of Control of Applicable NBFCs of RBI Master Direction-Non Banking Financial
Company- Non-Systemically Important Non- Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Master Directions”) with reference number
DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17. The No objection from the RBI has been
received vide its letter dated 18" January, 2024.

c) In addition to the approval of the NCLT, the Transferor Company and / or the
Transferee Company will obtain such necessary approvals / sanctions / no
objection(s) from the regulatory or other governmental authorities in respect of the
Scheme in accordance with law, as may be required.

d) A copy of the Scheme has also been filed by the Applicant Companies with the
Registrar of Companies, Kolkatain Form No. GNL-1.

18) Impact of merger on revenue generating capacity on Transferee Company

The merger would result in improving the potential for further expansion of the
businesses by way of consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing strengths of
the combined entity.

19) Costbenefit analysis of the Scheme

The Scheme would entail some costs towards implementation including administrative
cost, statutory dues, cost of advisors, etc. However, the long-term benefits are expected
to outweigh costs towards implementation of the Scheme.
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20) Synergies of business of the entities involved in the scheme

The Scheme would result in consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing
strengths of the Transferee Company. The Scheme also ensures simplified and
streamlined group structure. It helps in achieving reduction in overall costs, better
management and control on the combined entity.

21) A statement to the effect that the persons to whom the notice is sent may vote in
the meeting either in person or by proxies, or where applicable, by voting through
electronic means

Equity Shareholders to whom the Notice is sent may vote in the meeting either in person
or by proxies or through remote e-voting.

22) Documents available forinspection/ obtaining copies

In addition to the documents annexed hereto, copies of the following documents will be
available for inspection through electronic mode on the Company's corporate website at
www.western-india.co.in and also at the Registered Office of the Company between 10
a.m. to 6 p.m. on any working day up to the date of the Meeting:

a) Certified Copy of Scheme of Amalgamation;

b) Audited financial results of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company for
the yearended 31st March, 2024;

c) Certificate issued by the Statutory Auditor of the Transferee Company to the effect
that the accounting treatment if any proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the
Accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act;

d) Report of the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and Transferee
Company pursuant to Section 232(2)(c) of the Act;

e) Reportof the Audit Committee of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company
dated 21* September, 2022;

f) Report of the Committee of Independent Directors of the Transferor Company and
Transferee Company dated 21° September, 2022;

g) Valuation report by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP dated 21* September, 2022 and
Addendum to Valuation Report dated 18" May, 2023;

h) Fairness Opinion dated 21* September, 2022 issued by Sumedha Fiscal Services
Limited;

i) Shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company (pre and
post Scheme) as on 31* March, 2024;

j) Observation letters issued by the NSE and CSE on the Scheme;

k) No Objection letter dated 18" January, 2024 issued by the RBI to the Transferee
Company
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[) Statement showing Assets & Liabilities of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company — pre and post Scheme;

m) Complaints report submitted by the Transferor Company and Transferee Company
to the stock exchanges;

n) Copy of the order of National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench dated 18" June,
2024 in Company Application No. CA(CAA)/184(KB)/2023;

0) Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferor Company and Transferee
Company.

p) All other documents displayed on the Company's website in terms of the SEBI
Circular.

Shareholders can also obtain extract(s) from or copy(ies) of the documents listed above.

Based on the above, and considering the rationale and benefits, in the opinion of the
Board of Directors, the Scheme will be of advantage to, beneficial and in the best
interests of the Applicant Companies and their respective shareholders, creditors,
employees and other stakeholders, and the terms thereof are fair and reasonable. The
Board of Directors of the Company recommends the Scheme for the approval of its
Shareholders.

Sd/-

Mr. S.M. Gupta, PCS
Chairperson appointed by the NCLT for the Meeting

Date: 04" July, 2024
Place: Kolkata
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SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION Annexure: 1

{UNDER SECTIONS 230-232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013)

BETWEEN

WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
{("WESTERN INDIA” OR “TRANSFEROR COMPANY")

AND

N.B.LINDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(“N.B.LINDUSTRIAL” OR “TRANSFEREE COMPANY")

AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

1.1

1.2

2.1

PREAMELE AND OVERVIEW OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme (as dsfined herainafter) is presented under sections 230 to 232 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder
for amalgamation of Westem India Cornmerctal Company Limited {"Westemn India” or
“Transferor Company”) into N.B..Industniz! Finance Company Limited (“N.B.IL
Industrial” or “Transferee Company") and their respective shareholders and
creditors with effect from the Appointad Date (as defined hereinafter).

In addition, this Scheme also provide for various other matiers consequential,
supplemental and/or otherwise integrally connected therewith.

DESCRIPTION OF COMPANIES

Western India Commercial Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Western
India” or "Transferor Company”) is a public limited company, originally incorporated
on August 13, 1928 in the name of “Indian Investment Co. Ltd" under the Indian
Companies Act, 1913, with CIN L67120WB1928PLC093924 and having its registered
office at 21, Strand Road Kolkata — 700001, West Bengal, India. The company is
carmrying on the business as a Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC"} and is
registared with Resarve Bank of India (hereinafter referred to as “RBI") under section
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2.2

3.2

45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 having registration number B-05.06730.
The company is engaged mainly in investment in shares, securities and financial
activity. The equity shares of the Transferor Company are listed on Calcutta Stock
Exchange Limited ("GSE~).

N.B.Lindustrial Finance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as *N.B.L
Industrial” or "Transferee Company®), is a public limited company, orginally
incerporated in the name of “The New Bank Limited” under the Indian Companies Act,
1913, with CIN L65923WB1936PLC0OG5596 and having its registered office at 21,
Strand Road Kolkata - 700001, West Bengal, India. it was incorporated on 21*
December, 1938. The company is camying on the business as a NBFC and Is
registered with RBI under section 45-1A of the Resarve Bank of Indiz Act, 1934 having
registration number 05.00252. The company is engaged mainly in investrment in
shares, securities and financial activity. The equity shares of the Transferee Company
are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE™).

RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME

The proposed amalgamation would be in the best interests of the Companies (as
defined hereinafter} and their respective shareholders, employees, creditors and other
stakeholders. The proposed amalgamation will ylekd advantages as set out inter alia

balow:

The shares of the Transferor Company are listed on Calcutta Stock Exchange and no
trading activity is being undertaken in the shares of Transferor Cormpany. Upon
amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the Transfereg& Company, equity shares
of the Transfereg Company, fisted on National Stock Exchange {as defined
hereinafter) having nationwide trading terminal, would be issued to the shareholders of
the Transferor Company. Thus, the amalgamation would result in providing better
liquidity to the shareholders of Transferor Company while not belng prejudicial to the
interest of Transferee Company and its shareholders, creditors, employees or any

stakaholders.

The amalgamation would result in improving the potential for further expansion of the
businesses by way of consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing strengths

of the combined entity.
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3.3.

3.4,

3.5.

4.1

4.2

4.3.

The amalgamation will result not only in consolidating and improving the internal
systems, procedures and controls but will also bring greater management and
operational efficiency due to integration of various simitar functions being carried out

by both the Companies.

Greater size, scale, financial strength and flexibility for the merged Transferee
Company will result in maximizing and unlocking overall shareholders value.

The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in muttiplicity of legal and
regulatory compliances which at present is required to be made separately by the
Companies with saving in administrative cost and deriving economies of scale.

PARTS OF THE SCHEME:

This Scheme is divided into the following parts:

. PART A deals with the definitions of the capitalized terms and interpretations used in

this Scheme, date of taking effect of this Scheme and Share Capital of the

Companies;

. PART B deals with clauses in relation to amalgamation of Western india into N.B.I.

Industrial, consideration for amalgamation and accounting treatment for

amalgamation;

PART C deals with general terms and conditions applicable to this Scheme.




5.1.

PART A — DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL

GENERAL DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

In this Scheme (as defined hereinafter), unless repugnant to the meaning or context
thereof, the following expressions shall have the meaning mentioned herein below:

"Act" means the Companiss Act, 2013 and the rules and regulations and/or other
guidelines or notifications made thereunder, and includes any alterations, madifications,
amendments made thersto and/or any re-enactment thereof,

"Amalgamation” or "amalgamation” means amalgamation of the Transferor Company
with the Transferee Company, on a going concern basis in accordance with section
2(1B) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961, in terms of Part B of the Scheme;

"Applicable Law{s)" means any statute, notification, bye laws, nules, regulations,
guidslines, rule or common law, policy, code, directives, ordinance, schemis, notices,
orders or instructions, law enacted or issued or sanctioned by any Appropriate Authority
{as defined hereinafter} including any modification or re-enactment thereof for the time

being in force;

"Appointed Date” for the purpose of this Schema and the [T Act (as defined hereinafter)
means 1% April 2022 or such other date as may ba mutually agreed to by the Board of
Directors (as defined heseinafter) of Transferor Company and Transferee Company or
such other date as may be fixed or approved by the NCLT (as defined hereinafter) or
any cther Appropriate Authority (as defined hereinafter);

"Appropriate Authority’ means any Governmental Authority (as defined hereinafter),
statutory, reguiatory, departmental or public body or authority of the relevant jurisdiction,
including Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Official Liquidator, NCLT, Stock
Exchanges (as defined hereinafter), SEBI (as defined hereinafier), Reserve Bank of
India, any relevant tax authority and any other relevant competent authorities;

"Board of Dlrectors”" or "Board" in relation to the Transferor Company and/ or the
Transferee Company, as the case may be, means their respective Board of Directors
and shall inciude a committee duly constitited and authorised for the purposes of
matters pertaining to the Scheme and/ or any other matter relating thereto;
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“Companles” shall collectively mean the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company,;

“Effective Date” or "On the Scheme bocoming effective” means the date an which
last of the approvals or avents specified under clause 19 of Part C of the Scheme are
satisfied or obtained or have occurred or the requiremant of which has been walved (in
writing) in accordance with this Scheme. References in this Scheme to the date of “upon
this Scheme becoming effective” or "coming into effect of this Scheme” shall mean the

Effective Date;

“Governmental Authority” means any national, regional or local government or
governmental, administrative, flscal, judicial, or government-owned body or any of its
ministries, departments, secretariats, agencies or any legislative body, commission,
authority, court or tribunal or entity and any other authority exercising jurisdiction over

the Companies;

“IT Act’ means the Income-tax Act, 1961 and the rules, regulations, circulars, any
statutory modifications, re-enforcements or amendments thersof for the time being in

force;

“National Company Law Tribunal” or "NCLT" or “Hon'ble NCLT" means the National
Company Law Tribunal at Kolkata having jurisdiction in relation to the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company;

"Record Date” for the purpose of this Scheme shall mean the date to be fixed by the
Board of Directors of the Transferee Company in consultation with Board of Directors of
Transferor Company for the purpose of determining the shareholders of the Transferor
Company who are eligible to get the shares of the Transferee Company respectively as

per Part B of this Scheme;
“Registrar of Companies” means Registrar of Corpanies of State of West Bengal;

*RBl's Directions" means Reserve Bank of India’s direction DNBR (PD) CC.No.
065/03.10.001/2015-18 dated July 09, 2015 and any amendment thereto,
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"SAST Regulations” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India {(Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

"Scheme” means this Scheme of Amalgamation presented under sections 230 to 232 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and/ or Companies Act, 1956 in the present form or with such modification(s} approved

or directed by the NCLT;

“SEBI" means Securities Exchange Board of India established under Section 3 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;

“SEBI Circular” means, together, the circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10
March 2017, the circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/105 dated 21 September 2017,
circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated 3 January 2018, circular no. SEBI
HO/CFD/DIL 1 /CIR/P/2019/192 dated 12 September 2013; circular no. SEBI
MHO/CFD/MDIL1 /CIR/P 2020 /215 dated 3 Ngvember 2020; circular no. SEBVW
HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR / P/2021 /0000000657 dated 16 November 2021; cireular no. SEBI
HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR! P/2021/ 0000000659 dated 18 November 2021 each issusd by the
SEBI and all other applicable circulars and regulations issued by SEBI and as
amended or replaced from time {o time;

“SEB! Listing Repulations” means the Securities Exchange Board of India {Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, and shall include any
statutory modification, amendment and reenactment thereof for the time being in force
of any act, regulations, rules, guidelines, etc. that may replace such regulations;

"Share Exchange Ratlo" means ratios for determining the issuance of shares by
Transferee Company to the shareholders of Transferor Company under Part B of this
Scheme, as set out in the Share Exchange Ratio Report dated 21% September, 2022
issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP (Registration No. {BBI/RV-E/05/2019/110),

Registered Valuer, Kolkata, West Bengal,

"Share Exchange Ratio Report' means the report stating Share Exchange Ratio
issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP (Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/05/2019/110),
Registered Valuer, Kolkata, West Bengat dated 21* September, 2022;
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62

5.3.

“Stock Exchanges” means the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (“GSE") and the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE");

"Transferor Company" or "Weastern India" means Westem India Commercial
Company Limited, a company incorporated under the Indian Companies Act, 1913, and
having its registered office at 21, Strand Road Kolkata -700001, West Bengal, India;

"Transferece Company” or "N.BJ. Industrial® means N.B.l. Industrial Finance
Company Limited, a company incorporated under the Indian Companies Act, 1913, and
having its registered office at 21, Strand Road Kolkata -700001, West Bengal, india.

All terms and words used in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the
context or meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act,
the IT Act, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Secursities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, the Depositories Act, 1996 and other Applicable
Laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws, gquidelines/notifications/eirculars, as the case may
be or any statutory maodification or amendment or re-enactment thereof for the time

being in force.
In this Schems, unless the context otherwise requires:

g) references to “persons” includes individuals, bodies corporate (wheraver
incorporated), unincorporated associations and partmerships;

b) the headings, sub-headings, litles, sub-liles to clauses, sub-clauses and
paragraphs are inserted for ease of reference only and do not form part of the
operative provisions of this Scheme and shall not affect the construction or
interpretation of this Scheme;

c) references to one gender includes all genders;
d}  words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;
g)  words “include” and “including” are to be consirued without limitation;

f terms “hereof, "herein”, “hereby”, “hereto” and derivative or similar words refer to
this entire Scheme or specified clauses of this Scheme, as the case may be;
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6.1,

7.1

g)  areference 1o “writing” or "written” includes printing, typing, electronic mailing, and
other means of reproducing words in a visible form excluding a text or an instant

message;

h) reference to any agreement, contract, document or arrangement or to any
provision therecf shall include references to any such agreement, contract,
document or arrangement as it may, after the date hereof, from time to time, be

amended, supplemented or novated;

i} reference to the recital or clause are references to the recital or clause of this

Scheme; and
i references to any provision of law or legisiation or regulation include:

. such provision as from time to time amended, modified, re-enacted or
consolidated {whether before or after tha date of this Scheme) to the extent
such amendment, modification, re-enactment or consolidation applies or is
capable of applying to thé transaction entered into under this Scheme and
{to the extent liability thereunder may exist or can arise) shall include any
past statutory provision {as amended, modified, re-enacted or cansolidated
from time to time) which the provision referred to has directly or indirectly

replaced;

ii. all subordinate legislations (incfuding circulars, nofifications, clarifications,
guidelines gr supplement(s) to, or replacement ar amendment of, that law
or legislation or regulation) made from time to time under that provisicn
{whether or not amended, modified, re-enacted or consolidated from time to
time) and any retrospective smendment thereto.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any madification(s) approved or
imposed or directed by the NCLT shail be effective from the Appointed Date but shall
be operative from the Effective Date.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of Western India as per the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31,

2022 is as under;
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["Share Capital ' Amountin INR
, ,

Authorized Share Capital

35,000 equity shares of INR 100/- each 35,00,000
Total 35,00,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

18,000 equity shares of INR 100/- each 18,00,000

Total |I 18,00,000 |

The equity shares of Westem india are listed on CSE. Further, as on March 31, 2022,
the N.B.). Industrial holds 11.68% shares of Western India as a promoler group

company.

Subsequent to the above date and as on the date of filing this Scheme with the
Honr'ble NCLT, there has been ito change in the issued, subscribed and paid-up share
capital of Western India.

The share capital of N,B.I. Industrial as per the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2022 is as under:

} Share Capital Amount in INR
| Authorized Share Capital |
| 2,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 5/- each 10,00,00,000
- Total 10,00,00,000
Issued share capital |
[ 24,59,058 equity shares of INR 5/- each 1,22,95,290
Total 1,22,95,290
Subscribed and paid-up share capital
24,56,806 equity shares of INR 5/- each 1,22,84,030

Total | 1,22,84,030

The equity shares of N.B.l, Industria) are listed on NSE.

Subsequent to March 31, 2022 and as on the date of filing this Scheme with the
Hen'ble NCLT, there has been no change in the issued, subscribed and paid-up share
capital of N.B.I. Industriai.
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8.1.

8.2.

PART B - AMALGAMATION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITH TRANSFEREE
COMPANY

TRANSFER AND VESTING

With effect from the opening business hours of Appointed Date and on the Scheme
becoming effective, the entire business of the Transferor Company shall, pursuant t¢
the provisions of sections 230-232 and all other applicable provisions of the Act and
section 2(1B) of the IT Act, and without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or
thing, stand transferred to and vested, as a going concem, into the Transferee
Company by virtue of and in the manner providad in this Scheme.

This Scheme has been drawn up complying with the conditions relating to
amalgamation as specified under section 2(1B) of the IT Act. Further, if any terms or
provisions of the Scheme are found or interprefed to be inconsistent with the said
provisions at a later date, resulting from an amendment of law or for any other reason
whatsoever, the provisions of the said section of the IT Act shall prevail and the
Scheme shall stand medified to the extent determined necessary to comply with
saction 2(1B) of the IT Act. Such modification will however not affect other parts of the
Schame. The power fa make such amendments as may become necessary shall vest
with the Board of Directors of the Companies, which power shall be exercised
reasonably in the best interests of the Companies and their stakeholders.

Without prejudice to the generality of clause 8.1, in respect of assets of the Transfaror
Company, the same shall be transferred to and vested into the Transferee Company,

as follows:

8.2.1  all assets of the Transferor Company, that are movable in nature or are
otherwise capable of transfer by physical or constructive delivery and /or by
endorsement and delivery or by vesting and recordal of whatsoever nature,
including plant and machinery, equipment, if any, pursuant to this Scheme
shall stand transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to be transferred
to and vested in the Transferee Company, wherever located and shall
become the property and an integral part of the Transferee Company. The
vesting pursuani to this sub-clause shall be deemed to have occurred by
physical or constructive delivery or by endorsement and delivery or by
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8.2.2

8.2.3.

vesting and recordal, pursuant to this Scheme, as appropriate to the property
belng vested and titte to the properly shall be deemed to have been
transferred and no conveyance deed shall be required accordingly;

all other moveable properties of the Transferor Company, including
investments in shares and any other securities, sundry debtors, actionable
claims, earnast monies, receivables, bills, credits, outstanding kans and
advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind or for vaiue to be received,
bank balances and deposits, if any, with Government, semi-Government,
local and other authorities and bodies, customers and other persens, shall,
without any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested into
as the property of Transferee Company, and the same shall also ba deemed
to have been transferred by way of delivery of possession of the respective
documents in this regard. The Transferee Company may, if required, give
notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper to each person or debtor
that, pursuant to the Scheme, the said person or debtor should pay the debt,
loan or advance or make goad the same or hold the same to its account and
that the right of the Transferee Company to recover or realise the same is in
substitution of the right of the Transferor Company and that appropriate entry
should ba passed in their respective books to record the aforesaid changes.
The investments held In dematerialized form will be transferred to the
Transferee Company by issuing appropriate delivery instructions fo the
depository participant with whom the Transferor Company has an acceunt.
Such delivery and transfer shall be made on a date mutually agreed upon
between the respective Boards of Directors of the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company, being a date after the sanction of the Scheme by

the Hon'ble NCLT;

all immovable properties of the Transferor Company, including land together
with the buildings and structures standing thereon and rights and interests in
immovable properties of the Transferor Company, whether freshold or
leasqhold or otherwise and all documents of titke, rights and easements in
relation thereto, if any, shall be vested in and/or be deemed to have been
vested in the Transferee Company, without any further act or deed done or
being required to be done by the Transferor Company and/or the Transferse
Company. The Transferee Company shall be entitied to exercise all rights
and priviteges attached to the aforesaid immovable properties and shall be
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8.3.

8.4.

liable to pay the ground rent and taxes and fulfil all obligations in rejation or
uppilcably t such Immovabia properias. 1 hé télevant authonties shall grant
all clearances/permissions, if any, required for enabling the Transferee
Company to absolutely own and enjoy the immovable properties in
accordance with Applicable Law(s). The mutation or substitution of title to the
immovable properties shall, upon this Scheme becoming effective, be made
and duly recorded in the name of the Transferee Company by Governmental
Authorities pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the Hon'bie NCLT and
upon the Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the terms hereof,

824. al bank accounts operated or entitled to be operated by the Transferor
Company shall be deemed to have transferred and shall stand transferred to
the Transferee Company and names of the Trapsferor Company shall be
substituted by the name of the Transferee Company in the bank’s records.

With effect from the Appointed Date and on the Scheme becoming effective, all debts,
liabilities, contingent liabilities, subject to provisions of clause B.1, duties and
obligations, secured or unsecured, of every kind, nature and description of the
Transféror Company, shall, to the extent that they are outstanding on the Appointed
Date and/or on the Scheme becoming effective, under the provisions of this Scheme
and under provisions of sections 230-232 of the Act, and without any further act or
deed, be transferred to or be deemead to be transferred to the Transferee Company so
as to become, from the Appointed Date, the debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities,
duties and obligations of the Transferee Company and it shall r_10t be necessary lo
abtain the consent of any third party or other person, who is a party to any contract or
arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and
obligations have arisen, in order to give effect to the provisions of this clause.

All the existing securities, mortgages, charges, encumbrances or liens, if any, as on
the Appointed Date and those created by Transferor Company aiter the Appointed
Date, over the assets of Transferor Company transferred to the Transferee Company
shall, after the Effective Date, continue to relate and attach to such assets or any part
thereof to which they are related or attached prior to the Effective Date. Such
securities, morigages, charges, encumbrances or liens shall not relate or attach or
extend to any of the other assets of the Transferee Company.
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8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8

89

Subject to Applicable Laws, any undertaking of the Transferor Company, which is
binding on the Transferor Coempany, if any, as on the Appeinted Date of this Scheme,
to give a guarantee to any person in respect of any obligation of the Transferor
Company shall continue in full force and effect against the Transferee Company.

Where any of the liabilities and obligations attributed to the Transferor Campany on
the Appointed Date have been discharged by the Transferor Company on or after the
Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge shall be deemed to
have been for and on behalf of the Transferee Company.

With effect from the Appeinted Date and on the Scheme becoming effective, any
stafutory or other licences, permissions or approvals or consents, registrations,
incentives, tax deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessians, grants, rights, claims,
lease, tenancy rights, liberties, special status and/or other benefits or privileges
enjoyed or conferred upon or availed of or held by the Transferor Company shal! stand
transferred to or vested info the Transferee Company, without any further act or deed,
and shall, as may be required, be appropriately mutated by the statutory or other
authorities concemned therewith in favour of the Transferee Company. The benefit of
all statutory and regulatary permissions including statutory or other licenses, tax
registrations, permits, permissions or approvals or consents required to carry on the
operations of the Transferor Company shall vest into and become available to the
Transferee Company pursuant to this Scheme. The Companies shalf receive relevant
approvals from the Govemnmental Authority as may be necessary in this behalf.

Any guestion that may arise as to whether a particular asset or liability pertains or
does not pertain to the Transferor Company or whether it arises out of the activities or
operations of the Transferor Company shall be decided by mutual agreement between
the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

8.9.1. If any suit, action, claims, appeal or other proceading of whatsoever nature
by or against the Transferor Company are pending on the Effective Date, the
same shall not abate or be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially
affected by reason of or by anything contained in this Scheme, and may be
confinued, prosecuted and/or enforced by or against fthe Transferee
Company, as effectually and in the same manner and to the same extent as
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8.9.2.

it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and/or enforced by or
against the Transferor Company as if this Scheme had not been made.

The Transferee Company undertakes to have all legal or other proceedings
initiated by or against the Transferor Company, transferred in its name and to
have the same continued, prosecuted andfor enforced by or against the
Transfereg Company to the exclusion of the Transferor Company to the
extent legally permissible after the Scheme bacoming effective.

8.10. CONTRACTS, DEEDS ETC,

8.10.1.

8.10.2.

8.10.3.

Subject ta the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds,
insurance, letters of intent, undertakings, arrangements, policies,
agreements, schemes and other instruments, if any, of whatsoever nature,
pertaining to the Transferor Company or to the benefit of which the
Transferor Company may be eligible, which is subgisting as on the Effective
Date or have effect immediately before the Effective Date, shall continue in
full force and effect against or in favour of the Transferee Company, and may
be enforced by or against the Transferee Company as fully and effectually as
if, instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been a

party thereto.

Transferee Company shall enter into and/or issue and/or execute deeds,
writings or confirmations or enter into any tripatite arrangements,
confirnations or novations, fo which the Transferor Company will, if
necessary, also be party, in order to give formal effect to the provisions of
this Scheme. The Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorized to
execute any such deeds, writings or confirmations ar carry out all formalities
required on the part of the Transferor Company to give effect to the
previsions of this Scheme.

Without prejudice to the aforesaid, it is clarified that if any contracts, deeds,
bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements or other insiruments of
whatsoever nature in relation to the Transferor Company or to which the
Transferor Company are a party, cannot be transferred to the Transferee
Company for any reason whatsoever, the Transferor Company shall hold
such assets, contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements
or other instruments of whatsoever nature in trust for the benefit of the

49



Transferee Company, in so far as it is permissible so to do, till such time as
the transfer is affected.

811. TREATMENT OF TAXES

8111,

8.11.2,

All the taxes of any nature, duties, cess or any other deduction or any other
like payment made by the Transferor Company to any statutory authorities
such as income tax, advance tax, tax paid under Minimum Alternative Tax
("MAT"), Goods and Service tax ("GST"), custom duty etc. or any tax
deduction/ collection at source, credits (including GST credit, MAT credit),
efc., if any, of the Transferor Company shall be deemeéd to have been on
account of or on behalf of or paid by the Transferee Company, without any
further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing being made, done or executed,
and the Transferee Company shall be entitled to claim credit for such taxes
deducted (at source)paid against its tax duty habilities/MAT credit, GST,
custom duty, etc., on the Schems becoming effective, notwithstanding that
the cerlificatesfchallans or other dacuments for payment of such taxes/duties
are in the name of the Transferor Campany. Further, upon the coming into
effect of this Scheme, all tax compliances under the applicable tax laws by
the Transferor Company on or after Appointed Date shall be deemed to be
made by the Transferee Company.

All the deductions otherwise admissible to the Transferor Company including
payment admissible on actual payment or on deduction of appropriate taxes
or on payment of Tax Deducted at Source ("TDS") (such as section 43B,
section 40, section 40A etc. of the (T Act) will be eligible for deduction to the
Transferee Company, upon fulfilment of conditions, if any, required under
the [T Act. All benefits, entitlements, incentives, issues, refund, under the T
Act, GST laws, custom duty law or other Applicable Laws, regulations
dealing with taxes, duties, land levies, levies due to the Transferor Company
consequent to the assessment mads on the Transferor Company (including
any refund for which no credit is taken in the books of accounts of the
Transferor Company on the Appointed Date) shall belong to and be recelved
by the Transferee Company without any further act, instrument, deed, matter
or thing being made, done or executed, become the property of the

Transferee Company
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8.12.

8.11.3.

8.114.

8.11.5,

8.11.6.

EMPLOYEES

On the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company is also
expressly permitted to revise its income tax retumns, withholding tax returns,
GST returns, TDS returns, TDS certificates, and other statutory returns and
filings under the tax iaws notwithstanding that the period of filing/ revising
such returns may have lapsed and to claim refunds, advance tax and
withholding tax credits, etc., pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme. The
Transferee Company is expressly permitied to amend tax deduction at
source ceriificate and other statutory certificates, and shall have the right to
claim refunds, advance tax credits, set offs and adjustments relating to its
incomes/ transactions from the Appointed Date.

On and from the Appointed Date, if any certificate for TDS or any other tax
credit certificate relating to the Transferor Company is received in the name
of the Transferor Company, it shall be deemed to have been received in the
name of the Transferee Company, which alone shall be entitled to claim
credit for such tax deducted amount.

The accumulated losses and the allowances for unabsorbed depreciation of
the Transferor Company shall be deemed to be the loss and allowance for
unabsorbed depreciation of the Transferee Company in accordance with
section 72A of the IT Act and all other applicable provisions of the IT Act and
amendments thereof.

All tax assessment proceedings/appeals of whalsoever nature by or against
the Transferor Company pending and/or arising at the Appointed Date and
reiating to the Transferor Company shall be continued and/or enforced until
the Effective Date by the Transferor Company. In the event of the Transferor
Company failing to continue or enforce the proceedingsfappeaal, the same
may be continued or enforced by the Transferee Company. As and from the
effective date, the tax proceedings shall be continued and enforced by or
against the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent
as would or might have been continued or enforced by the Transferor

Company.,
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9.1,

8121,

8.12.2

On the Scheme becoming effective, all staff workmen and employees of the
Transferor Company who are in service as on the Effective Date shall
become staff, workmen and employees of the Transferee Company without
any break in their service, on the basis of continuity of service, and on terms
and conditions as to employment and remuneration not less favourable than
those on which they are engaged or employed by the Transferor Company.
The Transferee Company agrees that the services of all such employees
with the Transferor Company, up to the Effective Date shall be taken Into
account for purposes of all retirament benefits to which they may be eligible
as on the Effective Date. The Transferee Company undertakes to continue to
abide by any agreement/setliement, if any, entered into by the Transferor
Company with any union/employee of the Transferor Company.

It Is expressly provided that on the Scheme becoming effective, the
provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund or such other speciai fund,
it any, or trusts (hereinafter collectively refemed as "Funds”) created for the
benefit of the staff, workmen and employees of the Transferor Company, if
any, shall, with the approval of the Appropriate Authorities, either continue as
Funds of the Transferee Company, or shall be transferred to or merged with
other similar funds of the Transferee Company for all purposes whatsoever in
relation to the administratlon or operation of such Funds or in relation to the
obligation to make contributions to the said Funds in accordance with the
provisians of respective trust deeds or other agreements, if any, to the end
and intent that all rights, duties, powers and obligations of the Transferor
Company in relation to such Funds shall become those of the Transferee
Company. It is clarified that the services of the staff, workmen and employee
will be treated as having been continuous for the purpose of the said Funds.

INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY

On the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date and
pursuant to the provisions of saction 232(3) of the Act, the authorized share capital of
the Transferee Company shall automatically stand increased by merging with the
authorized share capital of the Transferor Company, without any further act,
instrument or deed on the part of the Transferee Company by only upon filing the
requisite forms with the Appropriate Authorily, and no separate act, procedure or
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9.2.

9.3

9.4.

9.5

10.

10.1.

instrument or deed or payment of any stamp duty and registration fees shall be
required to be made or followed under the Act.

The Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company (relating to the
authorized share capital) shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and
stand altered, modified and amended and no future resolutions under section 13, 14,
61 or 64 and any other applicable provisions of the Act shall be required to be
separately passed. The stamp duties and fees pafd on the authorised capital of the
Transferor Company shall be ufilized and appiied to the increased authorised share
capitaf of the Transferae Company and shali be deemed to have been so paid by the
Transferea Company for increase in the authorised share capital on such combined
authorised share capital and accordingly no extra stamp duty and/or fee shall be
payable by the Transferee Company for increase in the authorised share capital to
that extent. The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferee Company
shall be amended as may be required to give effect to this clause.

Consequently, subject to the above clauses, Clause V of the Memorandum of
Association of the Transferee Company shall be replaced by the following clause:

“The Authorised Share Capital of the Company INR 10,35,00,000/- -(Rupees ten
crores thirty five fakhs only) divided into 2,07,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 5/- (five)
with such rights , privileges or conditions attached thereto as may be determined by
the Board at the time of issue, with powers to increase and decrease the Capital and
to divide the shares into several classes.”

It is clarified that the consent of the members of the Transferee Company to the
Scheme shall be deemed to bhe sufficient for the purposes of effecting the
aforementioned amendment and shall alsa be desmed to be their cansent / appraval
to the alteration of the Memorandum and Aricles of Assaciation of the Transferee
Company as may be required under the Act and referred in clause 9.2 of the Scheme.

Pursuant to this Scheme, Transferee Company shall file the requisite documents/
information (if any) with the Registrar of Companies or any other Appropriate Authority
for such increase of the authorized share capital,

CONSIDERATION

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of the amalgamation, the
shareholders of the Transferor Company (other than for shares already held by the
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10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

Transferse Company in the Transferor Company), whose name appears in the
register of members as on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), or to their
respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representatives or the
successors-in-fitle as the case may be, shall be eligible ta receive 94 (ninety four) fully
paid up equity shares of face value of INR 5/- each of the Transferee Company for
every 3 (three) fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 100/~ each of the
Transferor Company held by such sharehclder as provided in Share Exchange Ratio

Report.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, intercompany investmenis held by the
Transferor Company and Transferee Company in each other shall without any
application or deed stand cancelled.

Where equity shares of the Transferee Company are to be allotted to heirs, executors
or administrators, as the case may be, successors of deceased equity shareholders or
legal representatives of the equity shareholders of the Transferor Company, the
concerned heirs, execufors, administrators, successors or legal representatives shall
be obliged fo produce evidence of title satisfactory to the Board of Dirsctors of the

Transferee Company,

The shares issued pursuant to the provisions of the Scheme as per clause 10.1
(herein after referred to as "New Equity Shares"), shall be issued to the shareholders
of the Transferor Company in dematerialized form into the account in which shares of
Western India are held or such other account as is Intimated in writing by the
sharaholders to Westarn India and/ or its registrar provided such intimation has been
received by Western India and/or its registrar at least 7 (seven) days before the
Record Date. All those shareholders who hold shares of Western India in physical
form shafl also receive the equity shares to be issued by N.B.Lindustrial, in
dematerialized form provided the details of their account with the depository
participant are intimated in writing to Westemn India and/ or its registrar provided such
intimation has been received by Western India and/or its registrar at least 7 {(seven)
days before the Record Date. If no such intimation is received from any sharehoider
who holds shares of Western India in physical form 7 (seven) days before the Record
Date, or if the details furnished by any shareholder do not permit electronic credit of
the shares of N.B.l.Industrial, then N.B.LIndustrial may, subject to Applicable Laws,
either issue physical shares or at its discmﬁm hold such equity shares in abeyance
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10.5.

10.6.

10.7.

10.8

10.8.

until details of such shareholder's account with the depository participant are intimated
in writing to N.B.i.Industrial and/ or its registrar, in writing.

if any shareholder becames entitied to any fractional shares or entitlements on the
issue and allotment of the New Equity Shares by the Transferee Company in
accordance with clause 10.1 above, the Board of Directors of the Transferee
Company shall consolidate all such fractional entilements and shall round up the
aggregate of such fractions to the next whole number and issue consolidated equity

- shares to a frustee nominated by the Transferee Company (the “Trustee"), who shall

hold such equity shares with all additions or accretions thereto in trust for the benefit
of the respective shareholders, to whom they belong and their respective heirs,
executors, administrators, successors for the specific purpose of selling such equity
shares in the markst at such price or prices and on such time or times within ninety
{90) days from the date of allotment, as the Trustes may in its sole discretion decide
and on such sale, distribute the net sale proceeds (after deduction of applicable taxes
and costs incurred) to the concemed shareholders of the Transferor Company in
proportion to their respsctive fractional entitlements.

On the approval of this Schemse by the shareholders of the Transferee Company
pursuant to sections 230-232 of the Act and/or the relevant provisions of the Act, if
applicable, it shall be deemed that the said shareholders have -also accorded their
consent under sections 13, 42, 61, and 82(1){c) of the Act and/or any other applicable
provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder as may be applicable for the
aforesaid issuance of New Equity Shares to the equity shareholders of the Transferor
Company, and no further resolution or actions shall be required to be undertaken by

the Transferee Company.

The equity shares to be issued and allotted by the Transferee Company in terms of
clause 10.1 shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Arlicles of

Association of Transferee Company.

Further, the equity shares to be issued in terms of clause 10.1 on amalgamation shall
rank pari passu with the existing equity shares of the Transferee Company.

The New Equity Shares of the Transferee Company issued in terms of this Scheme,
shall pursuant to the SEBI Circular and subject to compliance with reguisite
formalities, be listed and/or admitted to trading only on NSE, i.e., the stock exchange
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10.10.

10.11.

10.12.

10.13,

10.14.

on which equity shares of Transferee Company are listed. The Transferee Company
shall enter nto such arangement and issue such confirmations andfor underiakings
as may be necessary in accordance with Applicable Laws for complying with
formalities of the relevant stock exchange. On such formalities being fulfilled, the NSE
shall list and/or admit such equity shares issued pursuant to this Scheme, for the

purpose of trading.

The Transfaree Company shall, if and to the extent required, apply for and obtain any
approvals from the concerned regulatory authorities, including the NSE, for the issue
and allotment by the Transferee Company of the eguity shares to the shareholders of
the Transferor Company pursuant to the Scheme.

The equity shares, in the Transferee Company allotted pursuant ta the Scheme, shall
remain frozen in the depositories system till listing/trading permission is given by the
designated stock exchange, i.e., NSE.

Post the issue of New Equity Shares pursuant to clause 10.1, there shall be no
change in the control in the Transferee Company between the Record Date and the
listing which may affect the status of the approval by the Stock Exchanges.

In the event that the Companies restructure their equity share capital by way of share
split! consolidation/ issue of bonus shares during the pendency of the Scheme, the
Share Exchange Ratio shall be adjusted accordingly to take into account the sffect of

any such corporate actions.

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or
outstanding, of any shareholder of the Transferor Company, the Board of Directors or
any committee thereof, of the Transferee Company, at the sole discretion, shall be
empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the Effective Date, as
the case may be, to effectuate such a transfer in Transferor Company as if such
changes in the registered holder were operative as on the Effective Date in order to
remove any difficulties in relation to the new shares after the Scheme becomes
effective. The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company shall be empowered to
remove such difficulties as may arise in the course of implementation of the Scheme
and registration of new members in the Transferee Company on account of difficulties

faced in the transition period.
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10.15.

10.16.

11.

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and upon shares being Issued and allotted by
Transfaree Company to the shareholders of Transferor Company in accordance with
above clauses, the investment held by the shareholders in the equity share capital of
Transferor Company shall, without any further application, aet, instrument or deed
stand cancelled. The share certificates, if any, and / or the shares in electronic form
fepresenting the shares held by the shareholders of the Transferor Company in
Transfaror Company shall be of no effect, and be exfinguished and be deemed fo
have been automatically cancelled, on and from issue and allotment of shares in

Transferee Company.

The New Equity Shares to be issued by the Transferea Company pursuant te clause
10.1 of the Scheme in respect of such equity shares of the Transferor Company, the
allotment or transfer of which is held in abeyance under Applicable Law shall, pending
aliotment or settlement of dispute by order of the appropriate court or otharwise, aiso
be kept in abeyance in like manner by the Transferee Company.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

IN THE BOOKS OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY

11.1.1. The Transferee Company shall record the assets, iiabiliies and resarves of
the Transferor Company, as on Appointed Date, vested in it pursuant to the
Scheme at their respective carrying values as per ‘Pooling of Interest Method'
of accounting as per Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 103 (Business
Combination) in accordance with Appendix C of “Business Combinations of
entities under common control” under the Companies {(Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015. No adjustment shall be made to reflect the fair
values, of recognise any new assets or liabiiities.

11.1.2, The I[dentity of the reserves of Transferor Company shall be preserved and
shall appear in the financial statements of the Transferee Company in the
same form, in which they appeared in the financlal statements of the

Transferor Company.

11.1.3. Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall issue
New Equity Shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company {(other
than for shares, if any, held by Transferee Company into the Transferor
Company). These New Equity Shares shall be issued and recorded at face
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11.2.

11.1.4.

11.1.5.

11.1.6.

11.1.7.

11.1.8.

value and accordingly the aggregate face value of the shares to be issued
shall be credited to Transferee Company's share capital account.

The camying value of investments in the financial statements of the
Transferee Company in the equity share capital of the Transferor Company
shall stand cancelled pursuant to the Scheme becoming effective and there
shall be no further obligation in that behalf, ~ :

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, to the extent there are inter-corporate
loans/ advances, deposits, balances or other obligations as between
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, the obligations in respect
thereof shall come to an end, and comesponding effect shall be given in the
bocks of accounts and records of the Transferee Company for the reduction
of any assets or liabilities, as the case may be.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the surplus/ deficlt, if any, of the net
value of assets, habilities, reserves of the Transferor Company acquired and
recorded by the Transferee Company in terms of ¢lause 11.1.1 of the Scheme
over the sum of (a) face value of New Equity Shares issued and allotted to the
shareholders of the Transferor Company, and (b) the value of investments
cancelled pursuant to clause 11.1.4 of the Scheme, shall be édjusted in
capital reserves account in the financial statement of the Transferee

Company.

In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferse
Company and the Transferor Company, the impact of the same will be
quantified and the same shall be appropriately adjusted against the capital
reserves of the Transferee Company,

The costs and expenses relating to the Scheme shall be accounted for in the
statement of Profit and Loss.

IN THE BOOKS OF TRANSFEROR COMPANIES

11.2.1.

There will be no accounting treatment in the books of the Transferor
Company as it shall cease to exist pursuant to application of the Scheme. All
costs, charges, stamp duty incurred in connection with giving effect to this
Scheme shall be debited by the Transferee Company to its statement of
Profit and Loss.
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12 GONDUGT OF BUBGINEGS TILL EFFEGTIVE DATE

Upcen filing the Scheme with the NCLT and upte and including the Effective Date:

12.1. The Transferor Company:

12.1.1. shall be deemed to have been carrying on and shall carry on the business and
shall be deemed to have held and stood possessed of and shail hold and
stand possessed of all its properties and assets for and on account of and in
trust for the Transferee Company with utmost prudence, until the Effective

Date.

12.1.2. shall carry on the business and activities with reasonable diligence, business
prudence and shall not, except in the ordinary course of business or without
prior written consent of the Transferee Company, alienate, charge, mortgage,
encumber or otherwise deal with or dispose of any business or any part
thereof.

12.1.3. shall not vary the ferms and conditions of any agreements or contracts except
in the ordinary course of business or without the prior consent of the
Transferea Company or pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken by
them, as the case may be.

12.1.4. shall not vary the terms and conditions of employment of any of their
employees, except in the ordinary course of business or without the prior
consent of the Transferee Company or pursuant to any pre-existing obligation
undertaken by them, as the case may be, prior to the Appointed Date.

12.1.5. shall be entiled, pending sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the
Central/State Government and all other agencies, departments and authorities
concemed as are necessary under any law or rules for such consents,
approvals and sanctions, which may be required pursuant to this Scheme.

12.2. With eifect from the Appointed Date all the profits or losses or income or expenditure
of the Transferor Company shall for all purposes be treated and be deemed to be
accrued as the profits or losses or income or expenditure, as the case may be, of the

Transferee Company.
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12.3. Any of the rights, powers, authorities and privileges attached or related or pertaining to

12.4.

13.

13.1.

14.

14.1.

14.2.

and exercised by or available to the Transferor Company shall be deemed to have
been exercised by the Transferor Company for and on behalf of and as agent for the
Transferee Company. Similarly, any of the obligations, duties and commitments that
have been undertaken or discharged by the Transferor Company shall be deemed to
have been undertaken or discharged for and on behalf of and as agent for the

Transferee Company.

On and from the Effective Date and till such time that the name of the bank accounts
of the Transfercr Company have been replaced with that of the Transferee Company,
the Transferee Company shall be entitled to maintain and operate the bank accounts
of the Transferor Company, in the name of the Transferor Company for such time as
may be determined to be necessary by the Transferee Company. All cheques and
other negatiable instruments, payment orders received or presented for encashment
which are in the name of the Transferor Company, after the Effective Date shall be
accepted by the banker of the Transferee Company and credited to the account of the
Transferee Company, if presented by the Transferee Company.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTION

The transfer of assets, properties and liabilities of the Transferor Company into the
Transferee Company, transfer of all employees of Transferor Company, continuation
of legal proceedings, and the effectiveness of contracts and deeds, under above
mentioned clauses, shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already concluded
by the Transferor Company on or after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to
the end and intent that the Transferee Gompany accepts and adopts ali acts, deeds
and things done and executed by or on behalf of the Transferor Company.

DIVIDENDS

The Companies shall be antitled to declare and pay dividends, whether interim and/or
fina), to their respective shareholders prior to the Effective Date, but only in the

ordinary course of business,

It is clarfied that the aforesaid provisions in respect of declaration of dividends are
enabling provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer any right on any
sharsholder of the Companies ta demand or claim any dividends which, subject to the
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15.

15.1.

16,

16.1.

provisions of the Act, shall be entirely at the discretion of the respective Boards of
Directors of the Companies, and if applicable in accordance with the provisions of the
Act, be subject to the approval of the sharehclders of the respective Companies.

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

On the Scheme becoming effactive, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved
automatically without winding up in accordance with the provisions of sections 230-
232 of the Act and rules and regulations made thereunder.

EXEMPTICN UNDER SAST REGULATIONS

For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that pursuant to Amalgamation of the
Transferor Company into the Transferee Company, the issuance of New Equity
Shares of the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Company as
consideration for the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the Transferee
Company in terms of this Scheme is exempt under the provisions of Regulation
10(1){d)(i) of the SAST Regulations, and therefore, the requirement to make an ‘open
offer' shall not be triggered in terms of the provisions of the SAST Regulations.
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17.

17.1

18.1.

18.2.

18.

19.1.

19.2,

PART C - GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

APPLIGATION TO NCLT

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, as may be directed by the
Hon'ble NCLT shall make all necessary applications and petitions under sections 230-
232 read with other applicable provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder for

seeking approval of the Scheme.
MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, with approval of thair
respective Board of Directors may consent, from time to time, on behalf of all persons
concemed, to any modifications/famendments or additions/deletions to the Schame
which may otherwise be considered necassary, desirable or appropriate by the said
Board of Direclors to resolve alt doubts or difficulties that may arise for carrying out
this Scheme and to do and execute all acts, deeds maitters, and things necessary for
bringing this Scheme into effect or agree to any terms and / or condltions or limitations
that the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authorities under law may deem fit to approve,
direct and/or impose. The aforesaid powers of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company to give effect to the modification/famendments to the Scheme
may be exercised by their respective Board of Dirsctors or any person authorized in
that behalf by the concemed Board of Directors subject to approval of the Hon'ble
NCLT or any other Appropriate Authorities under Applicable Law.

in the event that any conditions proposed by the NCLT are found unacceptable for any
reason whatsoever by the respective Companies, then the r&spective Companies
shall be entitied to withdraw the Scheme in which event no rights and liabilities
whatsoever shall accrue o or be incwred inter se to or by the Companies or any of

them.
CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme shall be conditional upon and subject to:
the Stock Exchanges having Issued their observation / no-objection letter as required

under the SEBI Listing Regulations read with the SEB} Circular,

the Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of shareholders and
creditors (as applicable) of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company as
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19.3.

19.4.

19.5.

19.6.

20.1.

20.2.

required under the Act and as applicable under SEB! Circular, subjecl to any
dispensation that may be granted by the NCLT;

the requislte consent, approval or permission of the Reserve Bank of India (as per
RBIl's Directions) or any other Appropriate Authorily, which by law may be necessary
for the implermentation of this Scheme;

the Scheme being sanctioned by the NCLT or any ather Appropriate Authority under
sections 230-232 of the Act and the rules made thereunder;

the certified copy of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme being filed with the
Registrar of Companies by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company;

the Scheme shail not come into effect unless the aforementioned conditions
mentioned in clause 19.1 to 19.5 above are satisfied and in such an event, unless
each of the conditions are satisfied, no rights and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to
or be incurred inter se the Companies or their respective sharehalders or creditors or

employees or any other person.
EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

in the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in clause 19 not
being obtained and / or the Scheme not being sanctioned by the Hon'ble NCLT or
such other Appropriate Authority, if any, this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled
and be of no effact, save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto
as is contemplated hereunder or as to any rights and / or liabilities which might have
arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be govemned and be preserved or
worked out as is specifically provided In the Scheme or as may otherwise arise in law
and as agreed upon between the respective Companies to this Scheme. Each party
shall beal: and pay its respective costs, charges and expenses for and or in connection
with the Scheme unless otherwise mutually agreed.

it is further provided in a case if the Board of Directors of any of the Companies as
being part of this Scheme, at any stage prior to the Scheme coming into effect,
decides not to proceed further with the Scheme and withdraw the consent of the
respecfive company to the Scheme, in such a case, the Scheme in its entirety shall
not be proceeded with by any party and this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled

and be of no effact.
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21,

211,

21.2.

22,

22.1.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

Save and except as provided elsewhere in the Scheme or expressly otherwise
agreed, alf costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses of
Transferor Company and Transferee Company arising out of or incurred in carrying
out andfor implementing this Scheme and matters incidental thereto, shall be borne by

Transferee Company.

in the event that this Scheme fails to take effect or the Scheme is ravoked in terms of
clause 20 of this Scheme, then the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, shall bear their own costs and expenses incurred by them, in relation to or
in connection with the Scheme.

SEVERABILITY

If any clause of this Scheme is found invalid, unworkable for any reason whatsoever,
ruled iliegai by any court of competent jurisdiction or unenforceable under present or
future faws, the same shall not, subject to the decision of Board of Directors, affect the
validity or implementation of the other clauses of this Scheme.

N.B.l. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.

e

Director
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Audited Financial
Results of Western India Commercial Company Limited pursuant to the Regulation 33
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended.

To
The Board of Directors of
Western India Commercial Company Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date Financial
Results of Western India Commercial Company Limited ("the Company") for the quarter
and year ended 31 March, 2024 (‘Statement’), attached herewith, being submitted by the
Company pursuant to the reguirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (the "Listing Regulations”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Statement:

i. is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations in this regard
and ;

ii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting standards and cther
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of its profits (including other
comprehensive income) and other financial information of the Company for the quarter and
year ended 31% March, 2024,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ('the Act’). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Results' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evide we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Results

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the annual financial statements for the
year ended 31st March, 2024. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the Statements that gives a true and fair view of its profits
(including other comprehensive income) of the Company and other financial information in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with relevant rules issued there under and other accounting principles generally
accepted in for the India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations.
This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial results.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
prefessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audil evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Under

section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our

opinion on whether the company has adequate inte cial controls system in place
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« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Boards of Directors' use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up te the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal centrol that we identify during our audit.

We also provide, those charged with governance, with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The Statement includes the results for the quarter ended 315 March, 2024, being the
balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended
31% March, 2024 and the published unaudited year to date figures up to the third
quarter of the current financial year, which were subject to a limited review by us, as
required under Listing Regulations.

For K.K.CHANANI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registr;aﬁon’ Number: 32223
P

Krishdg Kdmar Chanani
Partner

Membership Number: 056045  Nowap:
UDIN: 24056045BKBIGV2770

Place: Kolkata

Date: May 10, 2024
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

CIN : L67120WB1928PLC093924

Audited Statement of Assets & Liabilities as at 31st March, 2024

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 5 AS
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 10.64 10.70
{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1.70 6.62
(c) Investments 57,226.06 56,814.36
(d) Other financial assets 7.71 0.04
TOTAL 57,246.11 56,831.72
Non-financial assets
(a) Current tax assets (Net) 3.25 3.60
(b) Other non-financial assets 0.05 0.47
TOTAL 3.30 4.07
TOTAL - ASSETS 57,249.41 56,835.79
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
a) Payables
Trade Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - s
(ii)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises - 29.21
(b) Other financial liabilities 1.47 1.00
Non-financial liabilities
{a) Current tax liabilities (net) 1.47 -
(b) Provisions 1.53 0.53
(c) Deferred tax liability {net) 2,061.80 2,101.75
{d) Other non-financial liabilities 0.33 0.28
TOTAL 2,066.60 2,132.77
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 18.00 18.00
{b) Other equity 55,164.81 54,685.02
TOTAL 55,182.81 54,703.02
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 57,249.41 56,835.79
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : L67120WB1928PLC093924
Registered Office : 21, Strand Road, Kelkata 700 001
Website ;www.western-india.co.in

E-mail ; westernindiac ialcoltd@gmail.com

Statement of Audited Financial Results for the Quarter and Year Ended 31st March,2024
(All amounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Quarter ended Year ended
31st March, 2028 | 315t March,2023 | >** t;’;;;"""‘ 315t March,2024 | 315t March, 2023
(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited)
Revenue from Operations
Interest Incame 332 72,69 399 15.26 86.52
Dividend Income 116.58 103.63 14.30 264.34 216.28
et Gain on Fair Value Changes 116.81 314 5.25 13336 4.47
(1) |Total Revenue from operations 236.71 179.46 23.54 412.96 307.27
{Il) |Other Income - - 0.02 0.15 0.44
(in) |Total Income (I1+11} 236.71 179.46 23.56 413.11 307.71
Expenses
Finance Cast - 0.17 - 0.01 1.13
Employee Benefit Expenses 5.07 311 354 15.02 1171
Other Expenses 3.42 7.66 0.68 5.62 18.19
(IV) [Total Expenses R4S 10.94 4.22 20,65 31.03
(V) [Profit/{ioss) before Tax (111-1v) 228.22 168.52 19.34 392.36 276.68
(V1) [Tax Expense
Current Tax 22.00 36.68 8.55 62.55 64.20
Deferred Tax a.35 6.46 (2.45) 11.46 7.14
Total Tax Expenses 31.35 43.14 6.10 74.01 71.34
(Vil] |Profit/(Loss) for the Period (V- VI) 156.87 125.38 13.24 318.45 205.34
{VIIl)|Other Comprehensive Income
{1} ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit/{Loss)
{a) Re-measurement (loss)/ gain on defined benefit plans (0.28) - - {0.28) -
(b) Tax impact on above 0.07 - - 0.07 -
{c} Equity Instruments through OC1 (5,829.10) 5,813.82 6,878.00 206.17 4,691.24
(d) Tax impact on above JOB.15 (667.36) {786.65) 41.88 {548.15)
(11} Items that will be reclassified to Profit/(Loss) .
(a) Financial Instruments through OCI {41.25)! - - (41.25)
{b) Tax impact on above 9.44 = % 0.44 -
Other Comprehensive Income for the Period (i + ii) (5,152.97) 5,146.46 6,091.35 216.03 4,143.09
(1x] |Total Comgrehensiw! Income far the Period {Vil+Vill) (4,956.10) 5,271.84 6,104.59 534.48 4,348.43
{X) |Paid up equity share capital (face value per share-Rs 100/-) 1B.00 18.00 1B.00 18.00 18.00
{X1) |Other Equity 55,164.81 54,685.02
{%il)|Earnings per Equity Share (FV Rs. 100/- each) (not annualised)
Basic & Diluted (Rs.) 1,093.72 696.56 73.56
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

CIN : L67120WB1928PLC093924

Statement of cash flow for the Year Ended 31st March, 2024

{All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
Particulars 31st March,2024 31st March, 2023
Audited Audited
A. |Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 392.46 276.68
Adjustments for:
Liability no longer required written back - (0.07)
Interest en financial assets (15.16) (14.54)
Net (gain|/loss on fair value changes of investment (133.36) (4.47)
(148.52) (19.08)
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 243.94 257.60
Adjustments for :
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (7.68) 13.19
(Increase)/Decrease in other non- financial assets 0.42 (0.47)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (29.21) 29.21
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities 0.48 0.28
Increase /( Decrease) in pravision 0.71 (0.84)
Increase /| Decrease) in ather non-financial liabilities 0.05 (0.93)
(35.23) 40.42
Cash generated from operations 208.71 298,02
Net income tax (paid)/refund (60.73) (69.32)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (4) 147.98 228.70
B. |Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Investments (1,783.74) {3,135.64)
Sale of Investments 1,630.78 1,794.09
(Investment)/Realisation of Fixed Deposit (Net) 492 3.38
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (148.04) {1,338.17)
C.  |Cash flow from financing activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings - =
NET CASH FROM /(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) - :
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) {0.06) (1,109.47)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 10.70 1,120.17
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10.64 10.70
Notes:

i)

i)

The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set cut in IND AS 7-'Staternent of Cash Flows'.

Since the Company is an investment and finance camgany, purchase and sale of investments have been considered as part of “Cash
flow from investing activities” and interest earned (net) % 0.10 lakhs (Previous year X 71.98 lakhs), dividend earned of € 264.33 lakhs
(Previous year ® 216.28 lakhs) and interest paid % 0.01 lakhs (Previous year % 1.13) have been considered as part of "Cash flow from

operating activities".

Direct taxes paid is treated as arising from operating activities and is not bifurcatad between Investing and financing activi
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : L67120WB1928PLC0O93924
Notes to the statement of Audited financial results for the Quarter & Year Ended 31st March, 2024

1 The above results for the Quarter & Year Ended 31st March, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in
their respective meetings held on 10th May,2024.The Statutory Auditor's has expressed an unmodified opinion on the above results.

2 The Company has operated only in one segment i.e non banking financial activity. Accordingly there are no separate reporting
segments as in Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment".

3 The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on September 21,2022 has approved the scheme of amalgamation
("Scheme"} of the Company with N.B.l.Industrial Finance Company Ltd. (“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders
and creditors under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the Appointed Date being
April 1, 2022, The Scheme is subject to the required statutory and regulatory approvals. The above results have been prepared
without considering the effect of the said scheme.

4 The figures for the quarter ended 31st March 2024 & 31st March 2023 are balancing figures between the audited figures of the full
financial year and the reviewed year-to-date figures up to the third quarter of the previous financial year.

5 There were no exceptional items during the period.

6 Figures for the previous period have been regrouped and reclassified to conform to the classification of current period wherever
necessary.

For Western India Commercial Co. Ltd.

Subhas Jajoo
Chairman
DIN:- 00429371

Place: Kolkata
Date: 10th May, 2024
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CHATURVEDI & COMPANY Annexure: 3
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
KOLKATA. MUMBAL DELHI. CHENNAI. KANPUR
60,BENTINCKSTREET KOLKATA- 700062
: 2237 - 4060 / 4603 6407

E-mail: oca[cutta@chalurvedlco com; canilimajoshi@gmail.com

DRAFT INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE QUARTERLY AND
YEAR TO DATE FINANCIAL RESULTS OF N.B.I INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO. LTD
PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF REGULATION 33 OF THE SEBI
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015, AS AMENDED

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
N.B.IL Industrial Finance Co. Ltd,

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Statement of quarterly financial results of N.B.L
Industrial Finance Co. Lid, (“the company”) for the three months and year ended
March 31, 2024 (“the statement”) attached herewith, being submitted by the company
pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements)Regulations, 2015, as amended ("Listing Regulations™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us these financial results:

i.are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing
Regulations inthis regard; and

il. give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles
laid down in the applicable Indian accounting standards and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India of the net profit and total comprehensive income and other
financial information of the company for the three months and year ended March 31,2024

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further deseribed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Results section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial results
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management’s Responsihilities for the Financial Results

This statement is the responsibility of the company's management and approved by the
board of directors, has been compiled from the annual financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2024. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the Financial results that give a true and fair view of the net
Profit and other comprehensive income and other fina neigkinformation in accordance with
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the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34,
‘Interim Financial Reporting’ prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued there under and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in
compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial results that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial results, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of
the company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial results asa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial results.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial results, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressingan opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis
ofaccounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the

financial results or, if such disclosures are inadeq ,‘ 10 modify our opinion. Our
) co
9
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conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial results, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial results represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial results of the
company to express an opinion on the financial results

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial results that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial results may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
oul;ll work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
results.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter(s)

The standalone annual financial results include the results for the quarter ended
31 March 2024 being the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full
financial year and the published reviewed year to date figures up to the third quarter of the
current financial year.

For Chaturvedi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration: 302137E

Parml.;:;
Membership No. 52122
o @ L(&PW 694

UDIN: 2.40S2AZ55 Se0ligs,

%

/\/ 2\ \
Place : Kolkata ( 0. Bertnck Seet |
Date : 16/05/2024 n\m' 20008 }
8 Qe

Ldff
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N.B.). INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO. LTD.

N : LES92IWB193A6PLCDES596
Registered Office : 21, Strand Road, Kolkata 700 001
Website www.nbl-indka.co.In
E-mil : nbifmance@ymail.cam

Statement of Audited Financial Results for the QGuarter & Year Ended 31st March, 2024
{Allamaunts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Quarter endad Year ended
Particulars 31st March,2024 315t March,2023 | 31st December, 2023 | 315t March,2024 | 31st March,2023
{Auditedh {audited) {Unauditedi [Audited) [Audited}
Revenue from Operations
Intarest Income .50 1.01 0.51 107 2.34
Dividend Incame 555.20 366,68 9535 1,261.01 1,007.68
Met Gain on Fair Yalue Changas 12.93 2.62 0.52 3150 4.7
{ly | Total Revenue from operatians 573.63 470.31 9678 1,294.58 1,014.73
{il} | Other Income 0.15 114 1.25 D80
{H]| Tatal Income (=10 57378 | 470.31 | 97,58 1.295,83 1,015.53
Expenses
Finance Cost* 0.02 - 0.00 .02 =
Employee Benefit Expenses 49,12 3B.23 35.01 164,37 15731
Depreclatlen & Amortisation Expense 0.0z aa .0 0.06 0.1y
Other 2751 12.96 5.36 50.83 70.05
(]| Total Exp . 75.97 51.23 45.38 225,28 227.53
{v) |Profit/{loss) before Tax (Il-1i) = 496.41 419.08 52.50 | _ _1370.5;_ ~788.00
{¥1] | Tax Expense
Current Tax 130.70 131.36 1873 28322 23916
Deferred Tax 263 1085 .08 0.7% 31.55
Talal Tax Expenses 133.33 142.71 18.51 2183.57 250.69_
vl Profit/tLoss) for the Period {v- Vil 26248 27637 12.60 FE5.58 527.31
(1l| |Other Comprehensive Income
(i} lterns that will not ke reclassifled to Profit/{Loss)
[a} Re-measurement {loss)/ gain on defined beneflt plans 143 2.84 143 2.84
by Tax impact on above {0.36) 0.72) ; {0.36) {0.72)
{c} Equlty Instruments through OCI (29,712.55) 29,580.80 28,767.84 {3,767.84) 25,034.21
{d} Tax impact on above 4,086.63 {3.834.07) {3,29087) 1,029.52 {2,646.58)
(il) Items that will be reclassified to Profit/{Loss)
{aj Financial tnstruments through O¢| < - -
tb] Tax imoack on above 250 - - 2.50 =
Dther Cc Ive Income for the Period (i +il! 25.622.35) 25.648.85 25.476.87 (2,734,751 21.389.75
tX}{Total Comprehensive income for the Period (Vi Vill] 125,258.87) 25,925.22 25,510.56 (1.94817)| 21,917.06
{X} |Pald up equity share capital {face value par share- % 5/ 122.84 12284 12284 122.84 122.34
{X1] | Other Equiry 2,33 ,6859.47 2,35,647.47
(%11)| Earnings per Share of X 5/~ ¢ach {not annualised the quarterly
data}
Basic & Diluted (%) 14.79 1i.25 137 3242 21.46

" '0.00 represents rounding off norms adapted by the company
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N.B.l. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO. LTD.
CIN : L65923WB1936PLC065596

Audited Statement of Assets & Liabilities as at 31st March, 2024

(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat -
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Audited Audited
ASSETS
Financial assets
{2) Cash and cash equivalents 4.30 3.04
{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 173 55.39
{c} Investments 2,42,577.92 2,45,701.66
{d) Other financial assets 18.03 8.48
TOTAL 2,42,601.98 2,45,768.57
Non-financial assets
{a) Current tax assets {Net} 34.91 43.39
{b} Property, plant and equipment 0.24 0.30
{c} Other non-financial assets 8.88 0.73
TOTAL T 22.03 21.42
TOTAL - ASSETS 2,42,646.01 2,45,812.99

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
{a) Other financial liabilities 16.41 1191
Non-financial liabilities
{a) Current tax liabilities (net} 1.50 -
{b) Provisions 67.47 60.27
{c) Deferred tax liability {net) 8,743.37 9,965.77
{d} Other non-financial liabilities 4.95 4.73
TOTAL 8,333.70 10,042.68
Equity
{a) Equity Share capital 122.84 122.84
(b} Other equity 2,33,689.47 2,35,647.47
TOTAL 2,33.812.31 2,35,770.31

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,42,646.01 2,45,812.99
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N.B.L INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO, LTD.
CIN : LB5923WE1936PLCOG5596
Statement of cash flow for the Year Ended 315t March, 2024

{All amounts in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
Partlculars 315t March,2024 315t March, 2023
Audited Audited
A. |Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 1,070.55 788.00
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 0.06 0.17
Investment written off : 0.29
Interest income on Financial assets at effective interest rates {1.89) {1.74)
Net [gain)floss an fair value changes of investment {31.50) {4.71)
{33.33) {5.99}
Operating profit/{loss) before working capital changes 1,037.22 782,01
Adjustments for
{Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets {9.55) 9.07
{Increase)/Decrease in other non- financial assets {2.15) 0.01
Increase { (Decrease] in Trade Payabie - {1.04)
Increase/{Decrease) in other financial liabilities 4.49 621
Increase /{ Decrease) in provision 863 9.58
Increase f{ Decrease) in unpaid claimed dividend account = =
Increase /{ Decrease) in other non-financial Kabilities 0.23 0.57
{a.35) 2a.40
Cash generated from aperations 1,032.87 806.41
Net income tax {pald)/refund {464.75) {231.96)
NET CASH FROM/{USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) S5E8.12 574.45
B. |Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Investrnents (7.738.18) (2,997.75)
Sale of Investments 7.127.49 1,869.90
|{investment)/Realisation of Fixed Depasit 53.66 {53.77)
NET CASH FROM/{USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) {557.03) {1,181.62)
C. |Cash fiow from financing activities
Dividends paid (9.83) 0.01
NET CASH FROM /{USED IN} FINANCING ACTIVITIES {C} {9.83) .01
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE] IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS {A+B+C) 1.26 {607.16)
Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the year 3.04 610.20
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 4.30 3.04

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Notes:

i} The above staternent of cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in IND AS 7-'Statement of Cash
Flaws',

ii} Since the Company is an investment and finance company, purchase and sale of investments have been considered as part of
“Cash flow from investing activities” and interest earned {net) % 0.18 lakhs (Previous year % 0,60 lakhs) and dividend earned of X
1,261.01 lakhs {Previous year % 1,007.68 lakhs) have been considered as part of "Cash flow from operating activitias",




N.B.J. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO. LTD.
ON : LE5923WE1936PLL065596
Notes to financial statements for the Quarter & Year Ended 31st March 2024

1 The above results for the Quarter & Year Ended 315t March, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS")
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended and have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in their respective meatings held on 16th
May,2024. The Statutory Auditor's has expressed an unmodified opinion on the above results,

2 The Company has operated only in one segment i.e non banking financlal activity. Accordingly there are no separate reporting segments as in
Ind A3 108 "Operating Segment”,

3 The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on September 21, 2022 has approved a scheme of amalgamation {"Scheme") of
Western India Commercial Company Limited (“Transferor Company”) with the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors under
sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the Appointed Date being April 1, 2022. The Scheme is
subject to the required statutory and regulatory approvals. The above results have been prepared without considering the effect of the said
scheme,

4 The figures for quarter ended 31st March 2024 & 31st March 2023 are halancing figures between the audited figures of the full financial year
and the reviewed year-to-date figures up to the third quarter of the respective financlal year.

5 The Board of directors has recommended a dividend of % 0.50{10 %) {{Previous Year X 0.40 {8%)} per Ordinary share of ¥ 5.00 each,

& Thera were no exceptional items during the pericd.
7 Figures for the previous period have been regrouped and redlassified to conform to the classification of current period wherever necessary.

For N_B.l.InHustrial Finance Co.Ltd.

Chairman
DIN - 00012210

Place: Kolkata
Date ; 16th May 2024

“CH
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CHATURVEDI & COMPANY Annexure: 4
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
KOLKATA. MUMBAL DELHL CHENNAIL KANPUR
60, BENTINCK STREET, KOLKATA-700 069

Phone : 2237 - 4060 / 4603 6407
E-mail: hocalcutta@chaturvedico.com: canilimajoshi mail.com

To,

The Board of Directors,

N.B.LIndustrial Finance Company Limited,
21, Strand Road,

Kolkata — 700001,

West Bengal

Ref : Auditor's certificate to confirm that the Accounting Treaiment contained in the Draft
Scheme of Amalgamation is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

1. We, the statutory auditor of N.B.LIndustrial Finance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Transferee Company’ or ‘the Company’ or ‘N.B.LIndustrial’), have examined the proposed accounting
treatment specified in clause 11 of the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation (‘Scheme’) between Western
India Commercial Company Limited and the Company (collectively referred to as ‘Companies’) and
their respective shareholders and creditors in terms of the provisions of sections 230-232 and other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the requirements of the SEBI Master
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated 23 November, 2021 (‘SEBI
Master Cireular’) issued under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 ('SEBI Regulations') with reference to its compliance with the applicable Accounting
Standards notified under the Act and other generally accepted accounting principles.

Management’s Responsibility

2. The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme and its compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations, including the applicable Accounting Standards as aforesaid, is that of the Board of
Directors of the Companies involved. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Scheme and
applying an appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

3. The management of the Company is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the
requirements of the Act and SEBI Regulations and to provide all relevant information to The Securities
and Exchange Board of India, the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (‘'NSE’) and the National
Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT").

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. Our responsibility is to examine and report whether the accounting treatment as specified in clause 11
of the Scheme complies with the applicable Accounting Standards and other generally accepted
accounting principles. Nothing contained in this certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of,
or in connection with the services that are subject to this certificate, will extend any duty of care that
we may have in our capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial statements of the Company.

5. We carried our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Andit Reports and Certificates
for Special Purposes, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAIL’). This Guidance
Note reqnires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAL
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6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)
1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements. Further our examination did not extend to dany
other parts and aspects of a legal or proprietary nature in the aforesaid Scheme.

Opinion

7. Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm
that the accounting treatment contained in the aforesaid scheme is in compliance with SEBI
Regulations and circulars issued thereunder and all the applicable Accounting Standards notified by
the Central Government under section 133 of the Act, read with the rules made there under, and other
generally accepted accounting principles, as applicable.

8. For ease of references, clause 11 of the Scheme, duly authenticated on behalf of the Company, is
reproduced in Annexure 1 to this certificate and is initialled by us only for the purposes of identification.

Restriction on Distribution and Use

9. This certificate is issued at the request of the Company pursuant to the requirements of circulars issued
under SEBI Regulations for onward submission to the NSE, NCLT and other regulatory authority
associated for approval of the Scheme. This certificate should not be used for any other purpose without
our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whoge hands it may
come without our prior consent in writing.

For Chaturvedi & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 302137E

fgw&A
. Bignature
Nilima Joshi

Partner

Membership Number : 052122
Ol g UDIN - 22052122ATJSZN2555

Place : Kolkata

Date : 20t September, 2022 %, Bsndnch St |-

Voo Kolata.mose
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Annexure 1 to the Auditors' certificate, dated 20t September, 2022, on the proposed
accounting treatment specified in the Scheme

Relevant extract of clause 11 “Accounting Treatment” as per the Scheme of Amalgamation
between Western India Commercial Company Limited and N.B.LIndustrial Finance
Company Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors

11.

11.1.

iL.1.1,

11.1.2,

11.L3.

11.1.4.

1L.L5.

11.1.6.

11.1.7.

11.1.8.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT
IN THE BOOKS OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY

The Transferee Company shall record the assets, liabilities and reserves of the Transferor Company,
as on Appointed Date, vested in it pursuant to the Scheme at their respective carrying values as per
‘Pooling of Interest Method’ of accounting as per Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 103
(Business Combination) in accordance with Appendix C of “Business Combinations of entities
under common control” under the Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. No
adjustment shall be made to reflect the fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.

The identity of the reserves of Transferor Company shall be preserved and shall appear in the
financial statements of the Transferee Company in the same form, in which they appeared in the
financial statements of the Transferor Company.

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall issue New Equity Shares to
the shareholders of the Transferor Company {other than for shares, if any, held by Transferee
Company into the Transferor Company). These New Equity Shares shall be issued and recorded at
face value and accordingly the aggregate face value of the shares to be issued shall be credited to
Transferee Company’s share capital account.

The carrying value of investments in the financial statements of the Transferee Company in the
equity share capital of the Transferor Company shall stand cancelled pursuant to the Scheme
becoming effective and there shall be no further obligation in that behalf.

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, 1o the extent there are inter-corporate loans/ advances,
deposits balances or other obligations as between Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, the obligations in respect thereof shall come to an end and corresponding effect shall be
given in the books of accounts and records of the Transferee Company for the reduction of any
assets or liabilities, as the case may be.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the surplus/ deficit, if any, of the net value of assets, liabilities,
reserves of the Transferor Company acquired and recorded by the Transferee Company in terms of
clause 11.1.1 of the Scheme over the sum of (a) face value of New Equity Shares issued and allotted
to the shareholders of the Transferor Company, and (b) the value of investments cancelled pursuant
to clause 11.1.4 of the Scheme shall be adjusted in capital reserves account in the financial statement
of the Transferee Company.

In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferee Company and the Transferor
Company, the impact of the same will be quantified and the same shall be appropriately adjusted
against the capital reserves of the Transferee Company.

The costs and expenses relating to the Scheme shall be accounted for in the statement of Profit and
Loss.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 001
W ;2213 0957, 2243 7725, 2230 7905, 2230 9601/9604 (4 LINES), Fax - D33-2213 1650
E mail : westemindiacommercialcolidi@gmail . com

Annexure: 5

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY
LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON 21* SEPTEMBER, 2022 AT 21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA -
700001 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION ON SHAREHOLDERS, KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS UNDER
SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

1.0 Background

1.1 The Board of Directors ('the Board') of Western India Commercial Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as 'the Transferor Company' or 'the Company' or 'Western India’) at its meeting held on
21° September, 2022 approved the draft Scheme of Amalgamation (‘Scheme') of the Company with
N.B.l.Industrial Finance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Transferee Company' or
'N.B.l.Industrial') and their respective shareholders and creditors on a going concern basis which
inter-aliainvolves, the following:

a. The amalgamation of the Company with the Transferee Company and dissolution of the
Company without winding up and consequent issuance of equity shares of the Transferee
Company to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Scheme;

b. Various other matters incidental, consequential or otherwise integrally connected therewith,
pursuant to sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
('the Act') in the manner provided forin the Scheme.

C. The appointed date for the Scheme is 1st April, 2022 or such other date as may be mutually
agreed to by the Board of the Company and the Transferee Company or such other date as
may be fixed or approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench ('NCLT") or
any other Appropriate Authority (as defined in the Scheme) and shall be operative from the
Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme).

1.2 The provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Act, requires the Board to adopt a report explaining the
effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-
promoters shareholders of the Company laying out in particular the share exchange ratio specifying
any valuation difficulties, and the same is required to be circulated as part of the notice of meeting(s)
to be held for the purpose of approving the Scheme. This Report of the Board is accordingly being
made in pursuance of the requirements of section 232(2)(c) of the Act.

2.0 The Scheme is subject to the following approvals:

2.1 No objection letter on the draft Scheme from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited ('NSE'")
and the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited ('CSE') (collectively referred to as 'Stock Exchanges');
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2.2

23

24

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

Approval from Reserve Bank of India ('RBI');

Approval of shareholders and creditors of both the Transferor Company and Transferee Company
[as may be directed by National Company Law Tribunal (‘'NCLT")];

Order of NCLT approving the Scheme;

Such other regulation / statutory approvals, as may be necessary and/ or incidental.

Documents placed before the Board of the Company
The following documents were placed before the Board of the Company:

Draft Scheme duly initialed by the Chairman of the Company, for the purpose of identification;

Valuation report dated 21* September, 2022 issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP (registration
number: IBBI/RV-E/05/2019/110) ('the Registered Valuer'), inter-alia, recommending the fair share
exchange ratio ('Share Exchange Ratio') ('Valuation Report');

Fairness opinion dated 21* September, 2022 issued by Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited, Merchant
Banker registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'), on the Share Exchange
Ratio as mentioned in the Valuation Report ('Fairness Opinion');

Report of Audit Committee recommending the Scheme after taking into consideration, inter-alia, the
Valuation Report and Fairness Opinion.

Rationale of the Scheme:

The proposed amalgamation would be in the best interests of the Transferor Company and
Transferee Company and their respective shareholders, employees, creditors and other
stakeholders. The proposed amalgamation will yield advantages as set outinter alia below:

a. The shares of the Transferor Company are listed on CSE and no trading activity is being
undertaken in the shares of Transferor Company. Upon amalgamation of the Transferor
Company into the Transferee Company, equity shares of the Transferee Company, listed on
NSE having nationwide trading terminal, would be issued to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company. Thus, the amalgamation would result in providing better liquidity to the
shareholders of Transferor Company while not being prejudicial to the interest of Transferee
Company and its shareholders, creditors, employees or any stakeholders.

b. The amalgamation would result in improving the potential for further expansion of the
businesses by way of consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing strengths of the
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5.0

combined entity.

The amalgamation will result not only in consolidating and improving the internal systems,
procedures and controls but will also bring greater management and operational efficiency
due to integration of various similar functions being carried out by both the Transferor

Company and Transferee Company.

Greater size, scale, financial strength and flexibility for the merged Transferee Company will

resultin maximizing and unlocking overall shareholders value.

The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in multiplicity of legal and regulatory
compliances which at present is required to be made separately by both the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company with saving in administrative costs and deriving

economies of scale.

Effects of the Scheme on the key stakeholders:

sl Category of Effect of the Scheme on the Stakeholders
No Stakeholders
1 Equity Shareholders: | a) Under the Scheme, an arrangement is sought to be entered

Promoters and Non-
Promoters of the
Company

into between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company and their respective shareholders and creditors.

b) Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme as on Effective
Date (as defined in the Scheme), the share certificates, if
any, and / or the shares in electronic form representing the
shares held by the shareholders of the Transferor
Company in Transferor Company shall be of no effect, and
be extinguished and be deemed to have been automatically
cancelled, on and from issue and allotment of shares in
Transferee Company.

c) Upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration
of the amalgamation, the shareholders of the Transferor
Company (other than the shares already held by the
Transferee Company in the Transferor Company), whose
name appear in the register of members as on the Record
Date (as defined in the Scheme) or to their respective heirs,
executors, administrators or other legal representatives or
the successors-in-title as the case may be, shall be eligible
to receive 94 (ninety four) fully paid up equity shares of
face value of INR 5/- each of the Transferee Company for
every 3 (three) fully paid up equity shares of face value of
INF. 100/- each of the Transferor Company.
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Category of Effect of the Scheme on the Stakeholders
Stakeholders

d) The Share Exchange Ratioc mentioned above has been
arrived at based on the Valuation Report of RBSA Valuation
Advisors LLP and Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited has
provided Faimess Opinion on the fairness of the Share
Exchange Ratio determined for the amalgamation of
Transferor Company with the Transferee Company. Based
on the recommendation of the Audit Committees of the
Transferor Company and that of the Transferee Company,
the Valuation Report and the Fairness Opinion have been
duly approved by the Board of both the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company.

&) The equity shares to be issued to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company shall rank pari passu with the existing
equity shares of the Transferee Company.

fl The equity shares to be issued and allotted by the
Transferee Company in terms of the Scheme shall be
subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Transferee Company.

g) The equity shares to be issued to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company will be listed and/cr admitted to
trading only on M53E, i.e, the stock exchange on which
equity shares of Transferee Company are listed.

h) The equity shares to be issued by the Transferee Company
pursuant to this Scheme in respect of any equity shares of
the Transferor Company which are held in abeyance under
the Act or otherwise shall, pending allotment or settlement
of dispute by order of a court or otherwise, also be keptin
abeyance by the Transferee Company.

i) Post the issue of shares, there shall be no change in the
control in the Transferee Company between the Record
Date (as defined in the Scheme) and the listing which may
affect the status of the approval by the Stock Exchanges.

i} Promoters of the Transferor Company are also Promoters
of the Transferee Company and shall continue to be
Promoters of Transferee Company after the effectiveness
of the Scheme.

k) Since the Promoter and Non-Promoter shareholders of the
Transferor Company are being issued shares in the same
proportion, the rights of Non-Promoter shareholders of the
Transferor Company shall not be affected under the
Scheme.
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sl
No

Category of
Stakeholders

Effect of the Scheme on the Stakeholders

Employees

a)

Under clause 8.12 of the Scheme on and from the
Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme), the Transferee
Company shall engage all the employees, including key
managerial personnel of the Transferor Company without
any interruption of service and in the manner provided
under the Scheme. The employees of the Transferor
Company shall continue to remain employees in the
Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions.
The services of the employees of the Transferor Company
will not be retrenched due to amalgamation.

Please refer to Sl. Mo. 5.1 above for details regarding the
effect of the Scheme on the employees who are also the
shareholders of the Transferee Company.

The contributions made by Transferor Company in respect
of its employees under applicable law, to the provident
fund, gratuity fund, leave encashment fund and any other
special scheme or benefits created, if any, for the period
after the Appointed Date (as defined in the Scheme) shall
be deemed to be the contributions made by Transferee
Company.

Under the Scheme, no rights of the employees of the
Transferor Company are being affected.

Key Managerial
FPersonnel

Under clause 8.12 of the Scheme on and from the
Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme), the Transferee
Company shall engage all the employees, including key
managerial personnel of the Transferor Company without
any interruption of service and in the manner provided
under the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, on and from the Effective Date, the
Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without winding
up. In the circumstances, the key managerial personnel of
the Transferor Company will cease to be the key
managerial personnel of the Transferor Company.

Please refer to Sl. Mo. 5.1 above for details regarding the
effect of the Scheme on the key managerial personnel
who are also the shareholders of the Transferee
Company.
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6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

S5l Category of Effect of the Scheme on the Stakeholders
No Stakeholders

d) The contributions made by Transferor Company in respect
of its key managerial personnel under applicable law, to
the provident fund, gratuity fund, leave encashment fund
and any other special scheme or benefits created, for the
period after the Appointed Date (as defined in the
Scheme) shall be deemed to be the contributions made by
the Transferee Company.

e) Thus, there will be no adverse effect of the Scheme on the
key managerial personnel of the Transferor Company.

4 Creditors a) As per clause 8.3 of the Scheme, all liabilities of the
Transferor Company shall stand transferred to the
Transferee Company.

b) The interest of the creditors of the Transferor Company
shall not be impacted in any manner.

5 Board of Directors of | a) Under the Scheme on and from the Effective Date, the

the Transferor Transferor Company will stand dissolved without winding
Company up and accordingly the Board shall cease to exist.
Share Exchange Ratio

For the purpose of arriving at the Share Exchange Ratio, the Valuation Report was obtained by the
Company in terms of the SEBI Circular dated 23 November, 2021
(SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665).

The Share Exchange Ratio has been arrived at based on various methodologies explained in the
Valuation Report and various qualitative factors relevant to the business and the business dynamics
and growth potentials of the business, having regard to information base, key underlying
assumptions and limitations.

The Fairness Opinion issued by Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited, a SEBI registered merchant
banker, wherein they have confirmed that the Share Exchange Ratio as per the Valuation Report
issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP is fair to the shareholders of the Company in accordance
with SEBI Circular dated 23" November, 2021 (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665).

The Valuers have not expressed any special difficulty while carrying out the valuation.
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7.0 Adoption of the Report by the Directors of the Company

71 The directors of the Company have adopted this report after noting and considering the information
set forth in the report. The Board is entitled to make relevant modifications to this report, if required,
and such modifications oramendments shall be deemed to form part of this report.

For and on behalf of Western India Commercial Company Limited

Name: Subhas Jajoo
Designation: Chairman

Place: KOLKATA

Date: 21* September, 2022
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N. B. |. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CIN No. LES923WB1936PLC065596

Regd. Office : 21, STRAND ROAD, (Ground Floor) KOLKATA-700 001

Phone : 2230 9601 - 9603 (3 Lines), 2243 7725, 2230 7905, Telefax : 033-2213 1650
e.mail : nbifinance@ymail.com

Annexure: 6

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF N.B.LINDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY

LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON 21* SEPTEMBER, 2022 AT 21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA -

700001 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION ON SHAREHOLDERS, KEY

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS UNDER

SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

1.0

1.1

1.2

2.0

2.1

Background

The Board of Directors (‘the Board') of N.B.l.Industrial Finance Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as 'the Transferee Company’ or 'the Company' or 'N.B.l.Industrial'), at its meeting held on
21* September, 2022 approved the draft Scheme of Amalgamation ('Scheme') of Western India
Commercial Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Transferor Company' or 'Western
India") with the Transferee Company and their respective shareholders and creditors on a going
concern basis which inter-alia involves, the following:

a. The amalgamation of the Transferor company with the Company and dissolution of the
Transferor Company without winding up and consequent issuance of equity shares of the
Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Company in accordance with the Scheme;

b. Various other matters incidental, consequential or otherwise integrally connected therewith,
pursuant to sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
('the Act') in the manner provided for in the Scheme.

c. The appointed date for the Scheme is 1st April, 2022 or such other date as may be mutually
agreed to by the Board of the Transferor Company and the Company or such other date as
may be fixed or approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench ('NCLT") or
any other Appropriate Authority (as defined in the Scheme) and shall be operative from the
Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme).

The provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Act, requires the Board to adopt a report explaining the
effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-
promoters shareholders of the Company laying out in particular the share exchange ratio specifying
any valuation difficulties, and the same is required to be circulated as part of the notice of meeting(s)
to be held for the purpose of approving the Scheme. This Report of the Board is accordingly being
made in pursuance of the requirements of section 232(2)(c) of the Act.

The Scheme is subject to the following approvals:

No objection letter on the draft Scheme from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited ('NSE')
and the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited ('CSE') (collectively referred to as 'Stock Exchanges');
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22

23

24

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.0

41

Approval from Reserve Bank of India ('RBI');

Approval of shareholders and creditors of both the Transferor Company and Transferee Company
[as may be directed by National Company Law Tribunal (‘'NCLT")];

Order of NCLT - Kolkata Bench approving the Scheme;

Such otherregulation/ statutory approvals, as may be necessary and / or incidental.

Documents placed before the Board of the Company
The following documents were placed before the Board of the Company:

Draft Scheme duly initialed by the Chairman of the Company, for the purpose of identification;

Valuation report dated 21* September, 2022 issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP (registration
number: IBBI/RV-E/05/2019/110) ('the Registered Valuer'), inter-alia, recommending the fair share
exchange ratio ('Share Exchange Ratio') ('Valuation Report');

Fairness opinion dated 21* September, 2022 issued by Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited, Merchant
Banker registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'), on the Share Exchange
Ratio as mentioned in the Valuation Report ('Fairness Opinion');

An auditor's certificate dated 20" September, 2022 submitted by Chaturvedi & Company certifying
the accounting treatment contained in the Scheme (‘Auditor Certificate');

Report of Audit Committee recommending the Scheme after taking into consideration, inter-alia, the
Valuation Report and Fairness Opinion.

Rationale of the Scheme:

The proposed amalgamation would be in the best interests of the Transferor Company and
Transferee Company and their respective shareholders, employees, creditors and other
stakeholders. The proposed amalgamation will yield advantages as set out inter alia below:

a. The shares of the Transferor Company are listed on CSE and no trading activity is being
undertaken in the shares of Transferor Company. Upon amalgamation of the Transferor
Company into the Transferee Company, equity shares of the Transferee Company, listed on
NSE having nationwide trading terminal, would be issued to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company. Thus, the amalgamation would result in providing better liquidity to the
shareholders of Transferor Company while not being prejudicial to the interest of Transferee
Company and its shareholders, creditors, employees or any stakeholders.
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5.0

The amalgamation would result in improving the potential for further expansion of the
businesses by way of consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing strengths of the
combined entity.

The amalgamation will result not only in consolidating and improving the internal systems,
procedures and controls but will also bring greater management and operational efficiency
due to integration of various similar functions being carried out by both the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company.

Greater size, scale, financial strength and flexibility for the merged Transferee Company will
resultin maximizing and unlocking overall shareholders value.

The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in multiplicity of legal and regulatory
compliances which at present is required to be made separately by both the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company with saving in administrative costs and deriving
economies of scale.

Effects of the Scheme on the key stakeholders:

5l Category of Effect of the Scheme on the Stakeholders

No Stakeholders

1 Equity Shareholders: | a) Under the Scheme, an arrangement is sought to be entered
Promoters and Non- into between the Transferor Company and the Company
Fromoters of the and their respective shareholders and creditors.
Company

b) Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme as on Effective
Date {as defined in the Scheme), the share certificates, if
any, and / or the shares in electronic form representing the
shares held by the shareholders of the Transferor
Company in Transferor Company shall be of no effect, and
be extinguished and be deemed to have been automatically
cancelled, on and from issue and allotment of shares in
Transferee Company.
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S
No

Category of
Stakeholders

Effect of the Scheme on the Stakeholders

c) Upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration
of the amalgamation, the shareholders of the Transferor
Company (other than the shares already held by the
Company in the Transferor Company), whose name appear
in the register of members as on the Record Date (as
defined in the Scheme) or to their respective heirs,
executors, administrators or other legal representatives or
the successors-in-title as the case may be, shall be eligible
to receive 94 (ninety four) fully paid up equity shares of
face value of INR 5/- each of the Transferee Company for
every 3 (three) fully paid up equity shares of face value of
INR. 100/~ each of the Transferor Company.

d) The Share Exchange Ratio mentioned above has been
arrived at based on the Valuation Report of RESA Valuation
Advisors LLP and Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited has
provided Fairness Opinion on the faimess of the Share
Exchange Ratio determined for the amalgamation of
Transferor Company with the Company. Based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committees of the Transferor
Company and that of the Company, the Valuation Report
and the Fairness Opinion have been duly approved by the
Board of both, Transferor Company and the Company

e) The equity shares to be issued to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company shall rank par passu with the existing
equity shares of the Company.

f) The equity shares to be issued and allotted by the
Company in terms of the Scheme shall be subject to the
provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company.

g) The equity shares to be issued to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company will be listed andior admitted to
trading only on NSE, i.e_, the stock exchange on which
equity shares of Transferee Company are listed.

h) The equity shares to be issued by the Company pursuant
to this Scheme in respect of any equity shares of the
Transferor Company which are held in abeyance under the
Act or otherwise shall, pending allotment or settlement of
dispute by order of a court or otherwise, also be kept in
abeyance by the Company.
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51
No

Category of
Stakeholders

Effect of the Scheme on the Stakeholders

i)

)]

Post the issue of shares, there shall be no change in the
control in the Transferee Company between the Record
Date (as defined in the Scheme) and the listing which may
affect the status of the approval by the Stock Exchanges.

The Promoters of the Company shall continue to remain
promoters even after the effectiveness of the Scheme.

Since the Promoter and Non-Fromoter shareholders of the
Transferor Company are being issued shares in the same
proportion, the rights of Mon-Promoter shareholders of the
Transferor Company shall not be affected under the
Scheme.

Employees

a)

Under clause 8.12 of the Scheme on and from the
Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme), the Transferee
Company shall engage all the employees, including key
managerial personnel of the Transferor Company without
any interruption of service and in the manner provided
under the Scheme. The employees of the Transferee
Company shall continue to remain employees in the
Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions.
The services of the employees of the Transferee
Company will not be retrenched due to amalgamation.

Please refer to SI. No. 5.1 above for details regarding the
effect of the Scheme on the employees who are also the
shareholders of the Transferee Company.

The contributions made by Transferor Company in respect
of its employees under applicable law, to the provident
fund, gratuity fund, leave encashment fund and any other
special scheme or benefits created, if any, for the period
after the Appointed Date (as defined in the Scheme) shall
be deemed to be the contributions made by Transferee
Company.

Under the Scheme, no rights of the employees of the
Transferee Company are being affected.

93




Sl Category of Effect of the Scheme on the Stakeholders
No Stakeholders
3 key Managerial a) The key managerial personnel of the Transferee Company
Fersonnel shall continue as the key managerial personnel of the
Transferee Company after effectiveness of the Scheme on
the same terms and conditions
by Please referto 51 No. 5.1 above for details regarding the
effect of the Scheme on the key managerial personnel
who are also the shareholders of the Transferee
Company.
¢} The contributions made by Transferor Company in respect
of its key managerial personnel under applicable law, to
the provident fund, gratuity fund, leave encashment fund
and any other special scheme or benefits created, if any,
for the period after the Appointed Date (as defined in the
Scheme) shall be deemed to be the contributions made by
the Company.
d) Under the Scheme, no rights of the key managerial
personnel of the Transferee Company are being affected.
4 Creditors a) Under the Scheme, the interest of the creditors of the
Transferee Company shall not be impacted in any
manner.

6.0 Share Exchange Ratio

6.1 For the purpose of arriving at the Share Exchange Ratio, the Valuation Report was obtained by the
Company in terms of the SEBI Circular dated 23" November, 2021
(SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665).

6.2 The Share Exchange Ratio has been arrived at based on various methodologies explained in the
Valuation Report and various qualitative factors relevant to the business and the business dynamics
and growth potentials of the business, having regard to information base, key underlying
assumptions and limitations.

6.3 The Fairness Opinion issued by Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited, a SEBI registered Merchant
Banker, wherein they have confirmed that the Share Exchange Ratio as per the Valuation Report
issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP is fair to the shareholders of the Company in accordance
with SEBI Circular dated 23" November, 2021 (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665).

6.4 The Valuers have not expressed any special difficulty while carrying out the valuation.
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7.0 Adoption of the Report by the Directors of the Company

71 The directors of the Company have adopted this report after noting and considering the information
set forth in the report. The Board is entitled to make relevant modifications to this report, if required,
and such modifications oramendments shall be deemed to form part of this report.

For and on Hehalf of N.B.l.Industrial Finance Company Limited

Designation: Chairman
DIN : 00012210

Place: KOLKATA
Date: 21% September, 2022
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 001
W ;2213 0957, 2243 7725, 2230 7905, 2230 9601/9604 (4 LINES), Fax - D33-2213 1650
E mail : westemindiacommercialcolidi@gmail . com

Annexure: 7

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
DATED 21* SEPTEMBER, 2022 HELD AT 21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA -700001 CONSIDERING THE
DRAFT SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 BETWEEN WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY
LIMITED, N.B.I. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE
SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

Present—Directors/Members
1. Ravi Goenka Chairman of Audit Committee
2. T KBhattacharya Member of Audit Committee

Other invitees and advisors / consultants were present at the meeting along with the Company Secretary at
the meeting

1.0 Background

1.1 A meeting of the Audit Committee ('Committee') was held on 21% September, 2022, inter-alia, to
consider and if thought fit, recommend to the Board of Directors ('Board') the proposed Scheme of
Amalgamation (‘Scheme') under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), between Western India Commercial Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as 'the Transferor Company' or 'the Company' or 'Western India'), N.B.l.Industrial
Finance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Transferee Company' or 'N.B.l.Industrial")
and their respective shareholders and creditors under the provisions of the Act.

1.2 The appointed date for the Scheme is 1st April, 2022 or such other date as may be mutually agreed
to by the Board of the Company and the Transferee Company or such other date as may be fixed or
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench ('NCLT') or any other Appropriate
Authority (as defined in the Scheme) and shall be operative from the Effective Date (as defined in the
Scheme).

1.3 The Scheme will be presented before the NCLT under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder and will also be in compliance with section 2(1B)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and Securities and Exchange Board of India Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated 23" November 2021 ('SEBI Master Circular').

14 In terms of the SEBI Master Circular, a report from the Audit Committee is required recommending
the draft Scheme, taking into consideration, inter-alia, the Valuation Report (as defined hereinafter),
and commenting on the need for the amalgamation, rationale of the Scheme, impact of the Scheme
on the shareholders, cost benefit analysis of the Scheme and synergies of business of the entities
involved in the Scheme. This report of the Committee is made in order to comply with the
requirements of the SEBI Master Circular.
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2.0

2.1

22

2.3

24

The Salient Features of the Scheme

The Scheme inter-alia provides for:

Amalgamation of the Company with the Transferee Company and consequent issue of equity
shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with clause
10 of the Scheme.

The appointed date for the Scheme is 1st April, 2022 or such other date as may be mutually agreed
to by the Board of the Company and the Transferee Company or such other date as may be fixed or
approved by the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authority (as defined in the Scheme).

The Scheme is subject to various conditions precedent specified in the Scheme:

a. The stock exchanges, i.e., National Stock Exchange of India Limited ('NSE') and Calcutta
Stock Exchange ('CSE") (collectively referred to as 'Stock Exchanges') having issued their
observation / no-objection letter as required under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listings Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing
Regulations') read with the SEBI Master Circular;

b. The Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of shareholders and
creditors (as applicable) of the Company and the Transferee Company as required under
the Act and as applicable under SEBI Master Circular, subject to any dispensation that may
be granted by the NCLT;

C. The requisite consent, approval or permission of the Reserve Bank of India or any other
Appropriate Authority (as defined in the Scheme), which by law may be necessary for the
implementation of this Scheme.

d. The Scheme being sanctioned by the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authority (as defined in
the Scheme) under sections 230-232 of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

e. The certified copy of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the Registrar
of Companies (as defined in the Scheme) by the Company and the Transferee Company.

The report of the Audit Committee is made in order to comply with the requirements of the SEBI
Master Circular, after considering the following:

a. Draft Scheme, duly initiated by the Chairman of the Company for the purpose of
identification;

b. Valuation report dated 21" September, 2022 issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP
(registration number: IBBI/RV-E/05/2019/110) ('the Registered Valuer'), inter-alia,
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3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

recommending the fair share exchange ratio (‘Share Exchange Ratio') ('Valuation Report');

Fairness opinion dated 21* September, 2022 issued by Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited,
Merchant Banker registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘'SEBI'), on
the Share Exchange Ratio as mentioned in the Valuation Report ('Fairness Opinion');

Rationale of the Scheme

The proposed amalgamation would be in the best interests of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company and their respective shareholders, employees, creditors and other
stakeholders. The proposed amalgamation will yield advantages as set outinter alia below:

a.

The shares of the Transferor Company are listed on CSE and no trading activity is being
undertaken in the shares of Transferor Company. Upon amalgamation of the Transferor
Company into the Transferee Company, equity shares of the Transferee Company, listed on
NSE having nationwide trading terminal, would be issued to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company. Thus, the amalgamation would resultin providing better liquidity to the
shareholders of Transferor Company while not being prejudicial to the interest of the
Transferee Company and its shareholders, creditors, employees or any stakeholders.

The amalgamation would result in improving the potential for further expansion of the
businesses by way of consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing strengths of
the combined entity.

The amalgamation will result not only in consolidating and improving the internal systems,
procedures and controls but will also bring greater management and operational efficiency
due to integration of various similar functions being carried out by both the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company.

Greater size, scale, financial strength and flexibility for the merged Transferee Company will
resultin maximizing and unlocking overall shareholders value.

The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in multiplicity of legal and regulatory
compliances which at present is required to be made separately by both the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company with saving in administrative costs and deriving
economies of scale.

The Audit Committee reviewed and noted the Share Exchange Ratio recommended in the Valuation
Report and confirmed the following exchange ratio:

“94 (ninety four) fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 5/- each of the Transferee Company
for every 3 (three) fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 100/- each of the Transferor
Company”

Further, the Audit Committee noted that the Fairness Opinion from Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited
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4.0

41

5.0

5.1

6.0

7.0

7.1

has confirmed that the Share Exchange Ratio as recommend by the Registered Valuer, is fair and
reasonable.

Impact of the Scheme on the shareholders

The Scheme would result in improving the potential for further expansion of the businesses by way
of consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing strengths of the combined entity. The
Committee also noted that the Scheme is subject to the majority approval of the public shareholders
of the Company. The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the Scheme is not detrimental to the
interests of the shareholders of the Company. Further, the need for the amalgamation and rationale
ofthe Scheme is setoutin SI.3.1 above.

Cost benefit analysis of the Scheme

The Consideration (as defined in the Scheme) represents a fair value of the business as
substantiated by the Share Exchange Ratio recommended in the Valuation Report and Fairness
Opinion obtained in relation to the amalgamation. The Scheme would entail some costs towards
implementation. However, the benefits of the Scheme over a longer period are expected to far
outweigh such costs for the stakeholders of the Scheme entities.

Synergies of business of the entities involved in the Scheme are set outin SI. No.3.1 above
Recommendations of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee after due deliberations and due consideration of all the terms of the draft
Scheme, Share Exchange Ratio / Valuation Report, Fairness Opinion, rationale of the Scheme,
impact of the Scheme on the shareholders and other stakeholders, cost benefit analysis of the
Scheme and the specific matters mentioned above, recommends the draft Scheme for favorable
consideration by the Board of the Company, the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other applicable
regulatory authorities.

This report of the Committee is made in order to comply with the requirements of Part [(A)(2)(c) of the
SEBI Master Circular after considering the necessary documents.

By Order of the Audit Committee of Western India Commercial Company Limited

Name: Ravi

Designation: Chairman of the Committee

DIN: 01393012

Place: Kolkata
Date: 21% September, 2022
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N. B. |. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CIN No. LES923WB1936PLC065596

Regd. Office : 21, STRAND ROAD, (Ground Floor) KOLKATA-700 001

Phone : 2230 9601 - 9603 (3 Lines), 2243 7725, 2230 7905, Telefax : 033-2213 1650
e.mail : nbifinance@ymail.com

Annexure: 8

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF N.B.L.INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED DATED
21* SEPTEMBER, 2022 HELD AT 21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700001 CONSIDERING THE DRAFT
SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 BETWEEN WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY
LIMITED, N.B..LINDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE
SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

Present—Directors / Members

1. T KBhattacharya Chairman of Audit Committee
2. Ashok Bhandari Member of Audit Committee
3. Debasish Ray Member of Audit Committee

Otherinvitees and advisors / consultants were present at the meeting along with the Company Secretary and
Chief Finance Officer at the meeting

1.0 Background

1.1 A meeting of the Audit Committee ('Committee') was held on 21% September, 2022, inter-alia, to
consider and if thought fit, recommend to the Board of Directors ('Board') the proposed Scheme of
Amalgamation ('Scheme') under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), between N.B.l.Industrial Finance Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as 'the Transferee Company' or 'the Company' or 'N.B.l.Industrial'), Western India
Commercial Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Transferor Company' or 'Western
India') and their respective shareholders and creditors under the provisions of the Act.

1.2 The appointed date for the Scheme is 1st April, 2022 or such other date as may be mutually agreed
to by the Board of the Transferor Company and the Company or such other date as may be fixed or
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench ('NCLT") or any other Appropriate
Authority (as defined in the Scheme) and shall be operative from the Effective Date (as defined in the
Scheme).

1.3 The Scheme will be presented before the NCLT under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder and will also be in compliance with section 2(1B)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and Securities and Exchange Board of India Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated 23" November 2021 ('SEBI Master Circular').

14 In terms of the SEBI Master Circular, a report from the Audit Committee is required recommending
the draft Scheme, taking into consideration, inter-alia, the Valuation Report (as defined hereinafter),
and commenting on the need for the amalgamation, rationale of the Scheme, impact of the Scheme
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2.1

2.2
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involved in the Scheme. This report of the Committee is made in order to comply with the
requirements of the SEBI Master Circular.

The Salient Features of the Scheme:
The Scheme inter-alia provides for:

Amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Company and consequent issue of equity shares by
the Company to the shareholders of Transferor Company in accordance with clause 10 of the
Scheme.

The appointed date for the Scheme is 1st April, 2022 or such other date as may be mutually agreed
to by the Board of the Transferor Company and the Company or such other date as may be fixed or
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench ('NCLT") or any other Appropriate
Authority (as defined in the Scheme).

The Scheme is subject to various conditions precedent specified in the Scheme:

a. The stock exchanges, i.e., National Stock Exchange of India Limited (‘'NSE') and Calcutta
Stock Exchange ('CSE') (collectively referred to as 'Stock Exchanges') having issued their
observation / no-objection letter as required under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listings Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing
Regulations') read with the SEBI Master Circular;

b. the Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of shareholders and
creditors (as applicable) of the Transferor Company and the Company as required under
the Act and as applicable under SEBI Master Circular, subject to any dispensation that may
be granted by the NCLT;

C. The requisite consent, approval or permission of the Reserve Bank of India or any other
Appropriate Authority (as defined in the Scheme), which by law may be necessary for the
implementation of this Scheme.

d. The Scheme being sanctioned by the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authority (as defined in
the Scheme) under sections 230-232 of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

e. The certified copy of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the Registrar
of Companies (as defined in the Scheme) by the Transferor Company and the Company.
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2.5

3.0

3.1

The equity shares of the Company are listed on NSE. The Company shall be filing the Scheme along
with necessary information / documents with NSE for their approval under Regulation 37 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

The report of the Audit Committee is made in order to comply with the requirements of the SEBI
Master Circular, after considering the following:

Draft Scheme, duly initialed by the Chairman of the Company for the purpose of
identification;

Valuation report dated 21" September, 2022 issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP
(registration number: IBBI/RV-E/05/2019/110) ('the Registered Valuer'), inter-alia,
recommending the fair share exchange ratio ('Share Exchange Ratio') ("Valuation Report');

Fairness opinion dated 21* September, 2022 issued by Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited,
Merchant Banker registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'), on
the Share Exchange Ratio as mentioned in the Valuation Report ('Fairness Opinion');

An auditor's certificate dated 20" September, 2022 submitted by Chaturvedi & Company
certifying the accounting treatment contained in the Scheme (‘Auditor Certificate');

Rationale of the Scheme:

The proposed amalgamation would be in the best interests of the Transferor Company and the
Company and their respective shareholders, employees, creditors and other stakeholders. The
proposed amalgamation will yield advantages as set out inter alia below:

a.

The shares of the Transferor Company are listed on CSE and no trading activity is being
undertaken in the shares of Transferor Company. Upon amalgamation of the Transferor
Company into the Company, equity shares of the Company, listed on NSE having
nationwide trading terminal, would be issued to the shareholders of the Transferor
Company. Thus, the amalgamation would result in providing better liquidity to the
shareholders of Transferor Company while not being prejudicial to the interest of the
Company and its shareholders, creditors, employees or any stakeholders.

The amalgamation would result in improving the potential for further expansion of the
businesses by way of consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing strengths of
the combined entity.

The amalgamation will result not only in consolidating and improving the internal systems,
procedures and controls but will also bring greater management and operational efficiency
due to integration of various similar functions being carried out by both the Transferor
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3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

Company and Transferee Company.

d. Greater size, scale, financial strength and flexibility for the merged Transferee Company will
resultin maximizing and unlocking overall shareholders value.

e. The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in multiplicity of legal and regulatory
compliances which at present is required to be made separately by both the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company with saving in administrative costs and deriving
economies of scale.

The Audit Committee reviewed and noted the Share Exchange Ratio recommended in the Valuation

Report and confirmed the following exchange ratio:

“94 (ninety four) fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 5/- each of the Transferee Company
for every 3 (three) fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 100/- each of the Transferor
Company”

The Audit Committee reviewed and confirmed the accounting treatment provided in clause 11 of the
Scheme which has been certified by the auditors of the Company. Pursuant to the Scheme, the
Transferee Company shall account for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company in its books of
accounts as per 'Pooling of Interest Method' of accounting as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS) 103 (Business Combination) in accordance with Appendix C of “Business Combinations of
entities under common control” under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The Fairness Opinion confirmed that the Share Exchange Ratio as recommend by the Registered
Valuer, is fair and reasonable.

Impact of the Scheme on the shareholders

The Scheme would result in improving the potential for further expansion of the businesses by way
of consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing strengths of the combined entity. The
Committee also noted that the Scheme is subject to the majority approval of the public shareholders
of the Company. The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the Scheme is not detrimental to the
interests of the shareholders of the Company. Further, the need for the amalgamation and rationale
ofthe Scheme is setoutin SI.3.1 above.

Cost benefit analysis of the Scheme:

The Consideration (as defined in the Scheme) represents a fair value of the business as
substantiated by the Share Exchange Ratio recommended in the Valuation Report and Fairness
Opinion obtained by the Company in relation to the amalgamation. The Scheme would entail some
costs towards implementation. However, the benefits of the Scheme over a longer period are
expected to far outweigh such costs for the stakeholders of the Scheme entities.
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6.0 Synergies of business of the entities involved in the Scheme are set outin SI. No.3.1 above
7.0 Recommendations of the Audit Committee

71 The Audit Committee after due deliberations and due consideration of all the terms of the draft
Scheme, Share Exchange Ratio / Valuation Report, Fairness Opinion, rationale of the Scheme,
accounting treatment, impact of the Scheme on the shareholders and other stakeholders, cost
benefit analysis of the Scheme and the specific matters mentioned above, recommends the draft
Scheme for favorable consideration by the Board of the Company, the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and
other applicable regulatory authorities.

This report of the Committee is made in order to comply with the requirements of Part I(A)(2)(c) of the
SEBI Master Circular after considering the necessary documents.

By Order of the Audit Committee of N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited

Lol

Name: T K Bhattacharya
Designation: Chairman of the Committee
DIN : 00711665

Place: Kolkata

Date: 21* September, 2022
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 001
W ;2213 0957, 2243 7725, 2230 7905, 2230 9601/9604 (4 LINES), Fax - D33-2213 1650
E mail : westemindiacommercialcolidi@gmail . com

Annexure: 9

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OF WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED AT
ITS MEETING HELD ON 21* SEPTEMBER, 2022 AT 21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700001
RECOMMENDING THE DRAFT SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND
OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 BETWEEN WESTERN INDIA
COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED, N.B.L.INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND THEIR
RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

Members Present

1. Ravi Goenka Independent Director

2. T KBhattacharya Independent Director

1. Background

1.1. A meeting of Independent Directors was held on 21% September, 2022 inter-alia, to consider and if

thought fit, recommend to the Board of Directors ('Board') the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation
('Scheme') between Western India Commercial Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the
Transferor Company' or 'the Company' or 'Western India'), N.B.l.Industrial Finance Company
Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Transferee Company' or 'N.B.l.Industrial') and their
respective shareholders and creditors under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the CompaniesAct, 2013 ('the Act').

1.2. The appointed date for the Scheme is 1* April, 2022 or such other date as may be mutually agreed to
by the Board of the Company and the Transferee Company or such other date as may be fixed or
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench ('NCLT") or any other Appropriate
Authority (as defined in the Scheme) and shall be operative from the Effective Date (as defined in the
Scheme).

1.3. The Scheme will be filed with the NCLT under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Act and the rules made thereunder and will also be in compliance with the provisions of section
2(1B) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and Securities and Exchange Board of India Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated 23" November 2021 ('SEBI Master Circular').

1.4. In terms of the SEBI Master Circular, a report from the Independent Directors is required
recommending the draft Scheme, taking into consideration, inter-alia, that the scheme is not
detrimental to the shareholders of the listed entity. This report of the Independent Directors is made
in order to comply with the requirements of the SEBI Master Circular.

2. Documents placed before the Independent Directors
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2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

The following documents were placed before the Independent Directors:

Draft Scheme duly initialed by the Chairman of the Company, for the purpose of identification;

Valuation report dated 21* September, 2022 issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP (registration
number: IBBI/RV-E/05/2019/110) ('the Registered Valuer'), inter-alia, recommending the fair share
exchange ratio ('Share Exchange Ratio') ('Valuation Report');

Fairness opinion dated 21* September, 2022 issued by Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited, Merchant
Banker registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'), on the Share Exchange
Ratio as mentioned in the Valuation Report ('Fairness Opinion');

The Salient Features of the Scheme:
The Scheme inter-alia provides for:

Amalgamation of the Company with the Transferee Company and consequent issue of equity
shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with clause
10 of the Scheme.

The appointed date for the Scheme is 1st April, 2022 or such other date as may be mutually agreed
to by the Board of the Company and the Transferee Company or such other date as may be fixed or
approved by the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authority (as defined in the Scheme).

The Scheme is subject to various conditions precedents as specified in the Scheme:

a. The stock exchanges, i.e., National Stock Exchange of India Limited ('NSE') and Calcutta
Stock Exchange Limited ('CSE'") (collectively referred to as 'Stock Exchanges') having issued
their observation / no-objection letter as required under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listings Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing
Regulations') read with the SEBI Master Circular;

b. The Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of shareholders and
creditors (as applicable) of the Company and the Transferee Company as required under the
Act and as applicable under SEBI Master Circular, subject to any dispensation that may be
granted by the NCLT;

c. The requisite consent, approval or permission of the Reserve Bank of India or any other
Appropriate Authority (as defined in the Scheme), which by law may be necessary for the
implementation of this Scheme.

d. The Scheme being sanctioned by the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authority (as defined in
the Scheme) under sections 230-232 of the Act and the rules made thereunder.
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e.

The certified copy of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the Registrar
of Companies (as defined in the Scheme) by the Company and the Transferee Company.

Rationale of the Scheme:

The proposed amalgamation would be in the best interests of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company and their respective shareholders, employees, creditors and other
stakeholders. The proposed amalgamation will yield advantages as set outinter alia below:

a.

The shares of the Transferor Company are listed on CSE and no trading activity is being
undertaken in the shares of Transferor Company. Upon amalgamation of the Transferor
Company into the Transferee Company, equity shares of the Transferee Company, listed on
NSE having nationwide trading terminal, would be issued to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company. Thus, the amalgamation would result in providing better liquidity to the
shareholders of Transferor Company while not being prejudicial to the interest of the
Transferee Company and its shareholders, creditors, employees or any stakeholders.

The amalgamation would result in improving the potential for further expansion of the
businesses by way of consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing strengths of the
combined entity.

The amalgamation will result not only in consolidating and improving the internal systems,
procedures and controls but will also bring greater management and operational efficiency
due to integration of various similar functions being carried out by both the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company.

Greater size, scale, financial strength and flexibility for the merged Transferee Company will
resultin maximizing and unlocking overall shareholders value.

The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in multiplicity of legal and regulatory
compliances which at present is required to be made separately by both the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company with saving in administrative costs and deriving
economies of scale.

Impact of the Scheme on the shareholders

The Independent Directors discussed upon the rationale, salient features and expected benefits of
the Scheme. The Independent Directors noted that the proposed Scheme is in the interest of the
shareholders on account of benefits as enumerated in SI. No. 4 above which may also potentially
unlock long term value.

The Independent Directors also noted that pursuant to the Scheme, the entire business of the
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Transferor Company shall vest in the Transferee Company, and accordingly will result in
consolidation of financial resources thereby resulting in stronger financial leverage required not only
to sustain such business in long term but also to facilitate their organic and inorganic expansion.

The Independent Directors discussed and deliberated upon the rationale and salient features of the
Scheme. In light of the above discussions, Valuation Report, Fairness Opinion and other documents
presented before the Independent Directors, the Independent Directors is of the informed opinion
that the proposed Scheme is not detrimental to the interest of all the stakeholders including minority
shareholders and will not adversely affect the rights of the Company.

Recommendations of the Independent Directors

The Independent Directors after due deliberations and due consideration of all the terms of the draft
Scheme, Share Exchange Ratio / Valuation Report, Fairness Opinion, rationale of the Scheme,
impact of the Scheme on the shareholders and other stakeholders, recommends the draft Scheme
for favorable consideration by the Board of the Company, the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other
applicable regulatory authorities.

This report of the Independent Directors is made in order to comply with the requirements of Part
I(A)(2)(i) of the SEBI Master Circular after considering the necessary documents.

By Order of the Independent Directors of Western India Commercial Company Limited

~

Name: Ravi Soenka
Designation: Independent Director

DIN: 01393012

Place: KOLKATA
Date: 21" September, 2022
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N. B. |. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CIN No. LES923WB1936PLC065596

Regd. Office : 21, STRAND ROAD, (Ground Floor) KOLKATA-700 001

Phone : 2230 9601 - 9603 (3 Lines), 2243 7725, 2230 7905, Telefax : 033-2213 1650
e.mail : nbifinance@ymail.com

Annexure: 10

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OF N.B.L.INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED AT

ITS MEETING HELD ON 21* SEPTEMBER, 2022 AT 21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700001

RECOMMENDING THE DRAFT SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND

OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 BETWEEN WESTERN INDIA

COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED, N.B.LINDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND THEIR

RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

Members Present

1. Ashok Bhandari Chairman & Independent Director

2. T KBhattacharya Independent Director

3. Debasish Ray Independent Director

4. Priyanka Mohta Independent Director

1. Background

1.1. A meeting of Independent Directors was held on 21* September, 2022, inter-alia, to consider and if

1.2.

1.3.

thought fit, recommend to the Board of Directors ('Board') the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation
('Scheme') between N.B.l.Industrial Finance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the
Transferee Company' or 'the Company' or 'N.B.l.Industrial'), Western India Commercial Company
Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Transferor Company' or 'Western India') and their respective
shareholders and creditors under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 ('the Act').

The appointed date for the Scheme is 1* April, 2022 or such other date as may be mutually agreed to
by the Board of the Transferor Company and the Company or such other date as may be fixed or
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench ('NCLT") or any other Appropriate
Authority (as defined in the Scheme) and shall be operative from the Effective Date (as defined in the
Scheme).

The Scheme will be filed with the NCLT under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Act and the rules made thereunder and will also be in compliance with the provisions of section
2(1B) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and Securities and Exchange Board of India Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated 23" November 2021 ('SEBI Master Circular').
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2.3.

2.4.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

In terms of the SEBI Master Circular, a report from the Independent Directors is required
recommending the draft Scheme, taking into consideration, inter-alia, that the scheme is not
detrimental to the shareholders of the listed entity. This report of the Independent Directors is made
in order to comply with the requirements of the SEBI Master Circular.

Documents placed before the Independent Directors
The following documents were placed before the Independent Directors:

Draft Scheme duly initialed by the Chairman of the Company, for the purpose of identification;

Valuation report dated 21* September, 2022 issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP (registration
number: IBBI/RV-E/05/2019/110) ('the Registered Valuer'), inter-alia, recommending the fair share
exchange ratio ('Share Exchange Ratio') ("Valuation Report');

Fairness opinion dated 21* September, 2022 issued by Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited, Merchant
Banker registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'), on the Share Exchange
Ratio as mentioned in the Valuation Report ('Fairness Opinion');

An auditor's certificate dated 20" September, 2022 submitted by Chaturvedi & Company certifying
the accounting treatment contained in the Scheme (‘Auditor Certificate');

The Salient Features of the Scheme:
The Scheme inter-alia provides for:

Amalgamation of Western India with the Company and consequent issue of equity shares by the
Company to the shareholders of Western India in accordance with clause 10 of the Scheme.

The appointed date for the Scheme is 1st April, 2022 or such other date as may be mutually agreed
to by the Board of the Transferor Company and the Company or such other date as may be fixed or
approved by the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authority (as defined in the Scheme).

The Scheme is subject to various conditions precedents as specified in the Scheme:

a. The stock exchanges, i.e., National Stock Exchange of India Limited ('NSE') and Calcutta
Stock Exchange ('CSE') (collectively referred to as 'Stock Exchanges') having issued their
observation/no-objection letter as required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listings Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing
Regulations') read with the SEBI Master Circular;
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the Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of shareholders and
creditors (as applicable) of the Transferor Company and the Company as required under the
Act and as applicable under SEBI Master Circular, subject to any dispensation that may be
granted by the NCLT;

The requisite consent, approval or permission of the Reserve Bank of India or any other
Appropriate Authority (as defined in the Scheme), which by law may be necessary for the
implementation of this Scheme.

The Scheme being sanctioned by the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authority (as defined in
the Scheme) under sections 230-232 of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

The certified copy of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the Registrar
of Companies (as defined in the Scheme) by the Transferor Company and the Company.

The equity shares of the Company are listed on NSE. The Company shall be filing the Scheme along
with necessary information / documents with NSE for their approval under Regulation 37 of SEBI
Listing Regulations.

Rationale of the Scheme:

The proposed amalgamation would be in the best interests of the Transferor Company and the
Company and their respective shareholders, employees, creditors and other stakeholders. The
proposed amalgamation will yield advantages as set out inter alia below:

a.

d.

The shares of the Transferor Company are listed on CSE and no trading activity is being
undertaken in the shares of Transferor Company. Upon amalgamation of the Transferor
Company into the Company, equity shares of the Company, listed on NSE having nationwide
trading terminal, would be issued to the shareholders of the Transferor Company. Thus, the
amalgamation would result in providing better liquidity to the shareholders of Transferor
Company while not being prejudicial to the interest of the Company and its shareholders,
creditors, employees or any stakeholders.

The amalgamation would result in improving the potential for further expansion of the
businesses by way of consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing strengths of the
combined entity.

The amalgamation will result not only in consolidating and improving the internal systems,
procedures and controls but will also bring greater management and operational efficiency
due to integration of various similar functions being carried out by both the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company.

Greater size, scale, financial strength and flexibility for the merged Transferee Company will
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5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

6.1.

resultin maximizing and unlocking overall shareholders value.

e. The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in multiplicity of legal and regulatory
compliances which at present is required to be made separately by both the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company with saving in administrative costs and deriving
economies of scale.

Impact of the Scheme on the shareholders

The Independent Directors discussed upon the rationale, salient features and expected benefits of
the Scheme. The Independent Directors noted that the proposed Scheme is in the interest of the
shareholders on account of benefits as enumerated in Sl. No. 4 above which may also potentially
unlock long term value.

The Independent Directors also noted that pursuant to the Scheme, the entire business of the
Transferor Company shall vest in the Company, and accordingly will result in consolidation of
financial resources thereby resulting in stronger financial leverage required not only to sustain such
business in long term but also to facilitate their organic and inorganic expansion.

The Independent Directors discussed and deliberated upon the rationale and salient features of the
Scheme. In light of the above discussions, Valuation Report, Fairness Opinion and other documents
presented before the Independent Directors, the Independent Directors is of the informed opinion
that the proposed Scheme is not detrimental to the interest of all the stakeholders including minority
shareholders and will not adversely affect the rights of the Company.

Recommendations of the Independent Directors

The Independent Directors after due deliberations and due consideration of all the terms of the draft
Scheme, Share Exchange Ratio / Valuation Report, Fairness Opinion, rationale of the Scheme,
accounting treatment, impact of the Scheme on the shareholders and other stakeholders,
recommends the draft Scheme for favorable consideration by the Board of the Company, the Stock
Exchanges, SEBI and other applicable regulatory authorities.

This report of the Independent Directors is made in order to comply with the requirements of Part
I(A)(2)(i) of the SEBI Master Circular after considering the necessary documents.

By Order ¢f the Indepghdent Directors of N.B.l.Industrial Finance Company Limited

)

3

DIN: 00012210
Place: KOLKATA

Date: 21° September, 2022
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Annexure: 11

RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP

WA LDATEON | INWE STR ENT BRANEING | RESTRUCTU RING | ADMISORY SERVICES "J

TRANSACTION SERVICES | TRANSACTION TAK RBSA %
Advisors

Strictly Private and Confidential
Date: Seprtember 21, 20322
Report Reterence Number, RVAZZZZBOMREPLGS

The Board of Directors The Board of Directors

M.B.!. Industrial Finance Company Limited Western Indiz Commercial Company Limnited
21, Strand Road, 21, Strand Road,

Kolkata 700 001 Kolkata 700 001

Subject: Recommendation of Share Exchange Ratla far propased amalgamation of Western India
Commercial Company Limited (nko M.B.1. Industrial Finance Company Limited

Dear Sirs,

We refer to our engagement letter dated August 05, 2022 whereby the Board of Directers af RLB.L
Industrial Finance Company Limited ["NBIIFQL") and Western India Commercial Company Limited
("WICCL") have appointed RBSA Valuation Advisars LLP ("RBSA"/ "Valuer") to recommend the Share
Fxchange Ratin for the proposed amalgarmation of WICCL into NRIIFCL on & ‘going concern wvalug”
premise, pursuant o 3 Scheme of Amalgamation betwesn NBIFCL, WICCL and their respective
shareholders and creditors wnder Seclions 230 o 222 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Scheme"). NBIFCL and WICCL are together referred to as the “Specified
Companies”]\

The Share Exchanga ratio fer the purpose of this report {"Report”) refers to the number of fully pald-
up equity shares of face value INR 5/- 2ach to be lssued by NRIFCL to the equity shareholders of WICCL
as consideration for the proposed amalgamation of WICCL into NBIFCL on & ‘going concern walug”
premise, pursuant to the Scheme [the "Shara Exchange Ratia").

This Report 15 our deliverable to recommend the Share Exchange Ratia to the Board of Directors of
the Specified Companies, for the proposed amalgamation of WICCL Into NBIFCL pursuant to the
Scheme.

This Report is subject to the scope, assumptions, exclusions, limitations, and disclaimers detailed
hereinalter. As such, the Report |s to be read in totality, and not in parts, in canjunction with the
relevant documents referred to therein.

CONTEXT AND PURPOSE OF THIS REFORT

we unpderstand that the management of WICCL and MBIFCL (together referred to as the
"Manage-ment"] gre contemplating the smalgamalion of WICCL inte MBHFCL on a ‘going concern’
basis. As consideration tor amalgamation, NBIFCL would issue ks equity shares to the shareholders of
WICCL, pursuant to the Scheme (the “Preposed Transaction”),

In this context, the Beard of Dinectors of NBIIFCL and WICCL have jointly appointed RBESA, a Registered
walugr Entity, to recommend the Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed amalga malmﬂ of WICCL into
NENFCL ona ‘guing concern value” gramise, pursuant to the Scheme,

Pape 1 of 1
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SOURCES OF INFORMATION

In connection with this exercise, we have considered the following information received from the

Management and/ or abtained from the public domain:

¢ Audited financial statements of the Specified Companies for FY2021 and FY2022;

e Provisional financial statements of the Specified Companies for the three months period ended
June 30, 2022;

s Latest available financial statements of key investee companies of the Specified Companies;

e Draft Scheme of Amalgamation between NBIIFCL, WICCL and their respective shareholders and
creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

e Websites of NSE India and BSE India and databases such as CapitallQ and Mergermarket,;

e Discussions and correspandence with the Management;

¢ Otherinformation and documents considered relevant for the purpose of this engagement;

* We have also obtained the explanations, information, and representations, which we believed
were reasonably necessary and relevant for our exercise from the Management.

PROCEDURES ADOPTED

Procedures adopted for our analysis included such substantive steps as we considered necessary
under the circumstances, including, but not limited to the following:
» Discussion with the Management to inter-alia:
— Understand the business and fundamental factors that affect the business of the
Specified Companies;
— Understand histarical financial performance, current state of affairs and expected future
financial performance of the Specified Companies;
«  Analysis of audited financial statements of the Specified Companies for FY2021 and FY2022;
¢ Analysis of Provisional financial statements of the Specified Companies for the three months
period ended June 30, 2022;
s Analysis of the latest available financial statements of the key investee companies of the Specified
Companies;
e Cansidered the draft Scheme;
e Selection of appropriate valuation approach and methodology/(ies);
* Determination of the Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed amalgamation of WICCL inte NBIIFCL.

Page 2 of 10
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BACKGROUND

N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited

NBIIFCL, incorparated in December 1936, is a public limited company incorporated under the indian
Companies Act, 1913 with CIN L65923WB1936PLC0O65596 and has its registered office at 21, Strand
Road Kolkata - 700001, West Bengal, India.

NBIIFCL is a Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC”) and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India
under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. NBIIFCL is engaged in investment in shares,
securities, and financial activity.

The subscribed equity share capital of NBIIFCL as of June 30, 2022 is INR 12.28 Mn consisting of
2,456,806 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each fully paid up. The equity shares of NBIIFCL are
listed on Natianal Stock Exchange of India Limited {“NSE").

The shareholding pattern of NBIIFCL as of June 30, 2022 is as under:
Sr. No. Shareholder category No. of shares Percentage

1. Promoter and Group 1,526,292 74.34
2. Public sharehalders 630,514 25.66
Total 2,456,806 | 100.00

Source: NSE filing

Western India Commercial Company Limited

WICCL, incorporated in August 1928, is a public limited company incorporated under the Indian
Companies Act, 1913 with CIN L67120WB1928PLC093924 and has its registered office at 21, Strand
Road Kolkata - 700001, West Bengal, India.

WICCL is a NBFC and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India under section 45-14 of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. WICCL is engaged in investment in shares, securities, and financial activity.

The issued and subscribed equity share capital of WICCL as of June 30, 2022 is INR 1.8 Mn consisting
of 18,000 equity shares of face value of INR 100 each. The equity shares of WICCL are listed on the
Calcutta Stock Exchange {“CSE”).

The shareholding pattern of WICCL as of June 30, 2022 is as under:
Sr. No. Shareholder category No. of shares Percentage

1. | Promoter and Group 13,490 74.94
.72 _|____Pub|ic shareholders 4510 25.06
Total 18,000 100.00 |

Saurce: information provided by the Management

Page 3 of 10
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VALUATION APPROACH & METHODOLOGY

Valuation Base: Valuation base means the indication of the type of value being used in an
engagement. Different Valuation bases may lead to different conclusions of value. Considering the
nature of this exercise, we have adopted Relative Value as the Valuation base.

Premise of Value: Premise of Value refers to the conditions and circumstances how an asset is
deployed. Considering the nature of this exercise, we have adopted 'Going Concern Value’ as the
premise of value.

Intended Users: This Report is intended for consumption of the Board of Directors of NBIFCL and
WICCL and may be submitted to the shareholders of NBIFCL and WICCL and refevant regulatory and
judicial authorities as may be mandatorily required under the laws of India, in connection with the
Proposed Transaction.

It should be understood that the valuation of any entity or business is inherently subjective and is
subject to uncertainties and contingencies, all of which are difficult to predict and are beyond the
canirol of the Management. In performing our analysis, we have relied on explanations, informatian,
provided by the Management and have made assumptions with respect to industry performance and
general business and economic conditions, many of which are beyond the control of the Management
and respective Companies. This valuation could fluctuate with the passage of time, changes in
prevailing market conditions and prospects, industry performance and general business and economic
conditions financial and ctherwise, of the Specified Companies, and other factors which generally
influence the valuation of companies and their assets.

Caommaonly accepted approach/ methods for determining the value of the equity shares of a company/
husiness, include:

¢ Incame Approach — Discounted Cash Flow method

& Market Approach

e Asset Approach — Net Asset Value method

There are several commonly used and accepted methods, within the market approach, income
approach and asset appreach, for determining the Share Exchange Ratio, which have been considered
in the present case, to the extent relevant and applicable, and subject to the availability of detailed
information.

lncome Anproach — Discounted Cash Flow ("DCF*)

Income approach is a valuation approach that converts maintainable or future amounts (e.g., cash
flows or income and expenses) to a single current {i.e., discounted or capitalized) amount.

Under the DCF method the projected free cash flows to the firm are discounted at the weighted
average cost of capital. This method is used to determine the present value of a business on a going
concern assumption and recognizes the time value of money by discounting the free cash flows for
the explicit forecast period and the perpetuity value at an appropriate discount factar. The terminal
value represents the total value of the available cash flow for all periods subsequent to the horizon
period. The terminal value of the business at the end of the horizon period is estimated, discounted
to its present value equivalent, and added to the present value of the available cash flow to estimate
the value of the business.
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Such DCF analysis involves determining the following:

= Estimating future free cash flows: Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated by
the company/ asset that are available to the providers of the company’s capital — both debt and
equity.

* Appropriate discount rate to be applied to cash flows i.e., the cost of capital: This discount rate,
which is applied to the free cash flows, should reflect the opportunity cost to all the capital
providers [namely shareholders and creditars), weighted by their relative contribution to the total
capital of the company. The opportunity cast to the capital provider equals the rate of return the
capital provider expects to earn on other investments of equivalent risk.

The Specified Companies are primarily engaged in investment in shares, securities, and financial
activity. Considering inter-afia the nature of the business of the Specified Companies and significant
uncertainties in preparation of the medium/ long term forecast, the Management has not provided
us the financial projections of the Specified Companies. Considering the aforementicned, we have
not adopted the Income Approach for the valuation.

Market Approach

Market approach is a valuation approach that uses prices and other relevant information generated
by market transactions involving identical or comparable {i.e., similar} assets, liabilities or a group of
assets and liabilities, such as a business.

Market Price Method:

Under this method, the value of shares of a company is determined by taking the average of the
market capitalization of the equity shares of such companies as quoted on a recognized stock
exchange over reasonable periods of time where such quotations are arising fram the shares being
regularly and freely traded in an active market, subject to the element of speculative support that may
be inbuilt in the market price.

The market price of an equity share as quated on a stock exchange is normally considered as the value
of the equity shares of that company where such quotations are arising from the shares being regularly
and freely traded in, subject to the element of speculative suppart that may be inbuilt in the value of
the shares. There could be situations where the value of the share as quoted on the stock market
would not be regarded as a proper index of the fair value of the share especially where the market
vatues are fluctuating in & volatile capital market or when market prices do not seem to be reflective
of financial performance. Further, in the case of a merger / amalgamation, where there is a question
of evaluating the shares of one company against thase of another, the volume of transactions and the
number of shares available for trading on the stock exchange over a reasonable pericd would have to
he of a comparable standard.

In the present case, the equity shares of NBIIFCL and WICCL are listed on the NSE and CSE respectively.
while the equity shares of NBIIFCL are traded on the NSE, the trading volume is irregular and erratic,
Since CSE has been derecognized as a stock exchange, the equity shares of WICCL are not traded.
Considering the aforementioned, we have not adopted market price method for present valuation
exercise,
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Comparable Transaction Multiple (CTM} Method

Under Comparable Transaction Method, the value of shares / business of a company is determined
based on market multiples of publicly disclosed transactions in the similar space as that of the subject
company. Multiples are generally based on data from recent transactions in @ comparahle sector, but
with appropriate adjustment after consideration has been given to the specific characteristics of the
business being valued.

Comparable Companies Multipte {CCM)} Method:

Under this method, the value of the shares / business of a company is estimated by applying the
derived market multiple based on market quotations of comparable public / listed companies, in an
active market, possessing attributes similar to the business of such company - to the relevant financial
parameter of the company / business {based on past and / or projected working results) after making
adjustments to the derived multiples on account of dissimilarities with the comparable companies and
the strengths, weaknesses and other factars peculiar o the company being valued. These valuations
are based on the principle that such market valuations, taking place between informed buyers and
informed sellers, incorporate all factors relevant to valuation. Relevant multiples need to be chosen
carefully and adjusted for differences between the circumstances.

Considering inter-alia, the business of Specified Companies (investments helding companies), lack of
comparable listed companies, we have not adopted this method for present valuation exercise.

Asset Approach

The asset-based valuation technigue is based on the value of the underlying net assets of the business,
either on a book value basis or realizable value hasis or replacement cost basis. The approach
considers fair value of assets and liabilities, to the extent possible, the respective asset would fetch,
or liability settled on the Valuation Date.

The Specified Companies are primarily engaged in investment in shares, securities, and financial

activity and are investment holding companies. The fair value of the Specified Companies have been

estimated based on Asset Approach - Adjusted Net Asset Value Methad, considering inter-olia the

following adjustments

i. Fairvalue of Quoted shares based on their average market prices over an appropriate period;

ii. Fair value of Unquoted shares of key investee companies based on valuation approach, as
appropriate.

DISCLOSURE OF RV INTEREST OR CONFLICTS

We do not have any financial interest in the Specified Companies, nor do we have any conflict of
interest in carrying out this valuation as of this Report Date. We are independent of the Specified
Companies and their promoters and have not been under any direct or indirect influence, which may
affect the valuation exercise.

Page &6 of 10
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SCOPE, ASSUMPTIONS, EXCLUSIONS, LIMITATIONS AND DISCLAIMERS

Pravision of valuation opinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas of qur
regular practice. These services do not represent accounting, assurance, accounting/ tax due
diligence, consulting or tax related services that may otherwise be provided by us or our affiliates.

The scope of our services is to recommend a Share Exchange Ratio for the Proposed Transaction.
Valuation Standards (“ICAI VS”} issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India has been
adopted for the valuation.

The racommendation contained herein is as at the date of the Report (“Valuation Date”) and is not
intended to represent value at any time other than the date of the Report.

This Report, its contents and the results herein are (i) specific to the purpose of valuation agreed as
per the terms of our engagement; (i) the Valuation Date and {iii} are based on the information
provided in the section - Sources of information. We have been informed by the Management that
the business activities of the Specified Companies have been carried out in the normal and ordinary
course between June 30, 2022 and the Report date and that no material changes have occurred in
their respective operations and financial position between lune 30, 2022 and the Report date.

An analysis of this nature is necessarily based on the information made available to us, the prevailing
stock market, financial, economic, and other conditions in general and industry trends in particular,
as of the Valuation Date. Events occurring after the date hereof may affect this Report and the
assumptions used in preparing it, and we do not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm
this Report.

The recommendation rendered in this Report only represents our recommendaticn based upen
information til date, furnished by the Management [or their representatives) and cther sources and
the said recommendation shall be considered to be in the nature of non-binding advice. Our
recommendation will however not be used for advising anyhody to take buy or sell decision, for which
specific apinion needs to be taken from expert advisars.

Valuatian of a business or an entity is not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at in many
cases will, of nacessity, be subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual judgement. There
is, therefore, no single undisputed Share Exchange Ratic. While we have provided our
recommendation of the Share Exchange Ratio based on the information avaitable to us and within the
scope of our engagement, others may have a different opinion. The final responsibility for the
determination of the Share Exchange Ratio at which the Praposed Transaction shall take place will be
with the Board of Directors of the Specified Companies who should take into account ather factors
such as their own assessment of the Proposed Transaction and inputs from other advisors.

The Report assumes that the Specified Companies complies fully with relevant laws and regulations
applicable in its area of operations and usage unless otherwise stated, and that they will be managed
in 8 competent and responsible manner. Further, unless specifically stated to the contrary, this Report
has given no consideration to matters of a legal nature, including issues of legal title and compliance
with local laws, and litigations and other contingent liabilities that are not recorded/ reflected in the
financial statements provided to us.

We have relied on the assessment of the Management as regards to cantingent and other liakilities.

L= Page 7 of 10
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In the course of our valuation, we were provided with both written and verbal information. We have
evaluated the information provided to us by/ on behalf of the Management through tiroad inquiry,
analysis and review but have not carried out a due diligence or audit of the information provided for
the purpose of this engagement. Our conclusions are based on the assumptions, forecasts and ather
information given by/on behalf of the Management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
offer any form of assurance regarding the truth and fairness of the financial position as indicated in
the financial statements. Further, with respect to the information and explanation sought for the
Specified Companies, we have been given to understand by the Management that they have not
omitted any relevant or material information. Our conclusions are based on the assumptions and
information given by/on behalf of the Management. The Management has indicated to us that they
have understood that any omissions, inaccuracies, or misstatements may materially affect our
valuation analysis/results.

This Report does not analyse the business/ commercial reasons behind the Proposed Transaction nar the
likely benefits arising out of the same. Similarly, it does not address the relative merits of the Proposed
Transaction as compared with any other alterative business transaction or other alternatives or whether
such alternatives could be achieved or are available.

We have relied on data fram external sources also to conclude the valuation. These sources are believed
to be reliable and therefore, we assume no liability for the truth or accuracy of any data, apinions or
estimates furnished by others that have been used in this analysis. Where we have relied on data,
opinions or estimates from external sources, reasonable care has heen taken to ensure that such data
has been correctly extracted from those sources and / or reproduced in its proper form and context.

The valuation analysis is based on the exercise of judicious discretion by the valuer taking into account
the relevant factors. There will always be several factors, e.g., management capability, present and
prospective competition, yield ¢n comparable securities, market sentiment, etc. which may not be
apparent from the financial statements but could strongly influence the value.

Mo investigation/ inspection of the Specified Companies’ claim to title of assets has been made for the
purpose of this Report and the Specified companies' claim to such rights has been assumed to be valid.
No consideration has been given to liens or encumbrances against the assets, beyond the loans disclosed
in the financial statements. Therefore, na responsibility is assumed for matters of a legal nature.

Neither this Report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any registration statement,
praspectus, offering memerandum, annual report, loan agreement or other agreement or document
given to third parties other than in connection with the Scheme, without our prior written consent. This
Report does not in any manner address the prices at which equity shares of the Specified Companies will
trade following announcement of the Proposed Transaction and we express no opinion or
recommendation as to how the shareholders of the Specified Companies should vote at the
shareholders’ meeting{s) to be held in connection with the Proposed Transaction.

This Report and the information contained in it is absolutely confidential and intended anly for the sole
use and information of the Board of Directors of NBIIFCL and WICCL in connection with the Proposed
Transaction including for the purpose of obtaining regulatory approvals, as reguired under applicable
laws of India, for the proposed amalgamation. Without limiting the foregoing, we understand that
NBIFCL and WICCL may be required to share this Report with their shareholders, regulatory or judicial
authorities, in connection with the Proposed Transaction {together, "Permitted Recipients"). We hereby
give consent to such disclosure of this Report, on the basis that the Valuer owes responsibility only to

| =LV
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NBIFCL and WICCL that have engaged us, under the terms of the engagement, and to no other person;
and that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Valuer accepts no responsibility or liability to any
other party, in connection with this Report. It is clarified that reference to this Report in any document
and / or filing with Permitted Recipients, in connection with the Proposed Transaction, shall not be
deemed to be an acceptance by the Valuer of any responsibility or liability to any person/ party other
than the Specified Companies.

The Management has informed us that:

e There are no unusual / abnormal events in the Specified Companies till the Report Date materiatly
impacting their operating / financial performance. Further, the Management has informed us that
all material information impacting the Specified Companies has been disclosed to us.

¢ There would be no material variation between the draft Scheme of Amalgamation and the final
scheme submitted and approved by the relevant authorities.

we owe responsibility to only the Boards of Directors of NBIFCL and WICCL that has appointed us
under the terms of our engagement letter and nobody else. We will not be liable for any losses, claims,
damages or lizhilities arising out of the actions taken, omissions of ar advice given by any ather advisor
to the Specified Companies. In no event shall we be liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses
arising in any way from fraudulent acts, misrepresentations or willful default on part of the Specified
Companies, their directeors, employees or agents. In no circumstances shall the liability of a Valuer, its
partners, its directars or employees, relating to the services provided in connection with the
engagement set out in this Yaluation Report shalf exceed the amount paid to the Valuer in respect of
the fees charged by it for these services,

We do not accept any [fability to any third party in relation to the issue of this Report. It is understood
that this analysis does not reprasent a fairness opinion on the Share Exchange Ratio. This Report is not
a substitute for the third party's own due diligence/ appraisal/ enguiries/ independent advice that the
third party should undertake for his purpose.

Our Report can be used by the Board of Directors of NBIFCL and WICCL only for the purpose, as
indicated in this Report, for which we have been appointed. The results of our valuation analysis and
cur Report cannot be used or relied by NBIIFCL andfor WICCL for any other purpose or by any other
party for any purpose whatsoever, We are not responsible to any other person/ party for any decision
of such persan / party based on this Report. Any person / party intending to provide finance / invest
in the shares / business of the companies / their holding companies/ subsidiaries/ associates/ investee
companies/ other group companies, if any, shall do so after seeking their own professional advice and
after carrying cut their own due diligence procedures to ensure that they are making an informed
decision. If any person/ party (other than the Specified Companies) chooses 1o place reliance upon
arty matters included in the Report, they shall do 30 at their own risk and without recourse to the
Valuer. It is hereby notified that usage, reproduction, distribution, circulation, copying or otherwise
quoting of this Report or any part thereof, except for the purpose as set out earlier in this Report,
without our prior written consent, is not permitted, unless there is a statutory or a regulatory
requirement to do so.

The Management of NBIFCL and WICCL have been pravided with the opportunity to review the draft
report {excluding the recommended Share Exchange Ratio) as part of aur standard practice to make
sure that factual inaccuracies / omissions are avoided in our final Report. The fee for the engagement
is not contingent upan the results reported. This Report is subject to the laws of India and should be
used in connection with the Scheme.
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BASIS OF FAIR SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO

The Proposed Transaction contemplates the amalgamation of WICCL into NBITFCL on a ‘geing concern
valug’ premise, pursuant to the Scheme. Arriving at the Share Exchange Ratio for the Proposed
Transaction would require determining the value of the equity shares of the Specified Companies,
independently but on a relative basis, and without considering the Proposed Transactian.

The Share Exchange Ratio has been arrived at on the basis of a relative valuation based on the Net
Assets method explained herein earlier and other gualitative factors relevant to each company and
the business dynamics, having regard to information base, key underlying assumptions and
limitatians.

The computation of the Share Exchange Ratic is as under:

Valuation Approach NBIIFCL WICCL
INR per share  Weight  INR per share Weight
# ®

| Incorme Approach — DCF Method 1 ! NA

[ Market larket Approach: Market I Price Methad | NA |

Market Approach: Comparable Companles NA |

Multiple Method | | | |

Asset Approach Adjusted Net Asset Value 2,07,076

Method |

Relotive Value per Equity Share 6,609 24 2,07,076

NA — Not Applicable

# Face value INR 5 each

& Face value INR 100 each

On the basis of the foregoing and on consideration of the relevant factors and circumstgnces as
discussed and outlined herein above, we recommend the following Share Exchange Ratio for the
amalgamation of WICCL inte NBIIFCL:

94 (Ninety four) fully poid-up Equity Shares of face value of INR 5 each of N.B.1. industriol Finance
Company Limited for every 3 {Three} fully paid-up Equity Shares of face volue INR 100 each held In
Western India Commerciol Company Limited.

The Share Exchange Ratic has been determined based on the capital structure of the Specified
Companies as on the Report Date. In the event of any material change in the Scheme or capital
structure of the Specified Companies, the Share Exchange Ratio may not remain valid.

Respectfully submitted,

For RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP
{RVE No.: IBBI/RY-E/05/2019/110)

22ty

—

Partner

Ravishu Vinod Shah
Asset Class: Securities or F|nanciéi,5§s‘.e13
{RV Na.: IBBI/RV/06/2020/12728)

Date: Septemnber 21, 2022

Place: Mumbai

A\
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Advisors -
Strictly Private and Confidential
Report Reference Number: RVA2223BOMREP163 - Addendum
The Board of Directors The Board of Directors
N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited Western India Commaercial Cemnpany Limited
21, Strand Road, 21, Strand Road,
Kolkata 700 001 Kolkata 700 001

Subject: Addendum to report on Recommendation of Share Exchange Ratio for proposed
amalgamation of Western India Commercial Company Limlted into N.B.I. Industrial Finance
Company Limited

Dear Sirs,

We refer to our valuation report with Report Reference Number: RVA2223BOMREP163 dated
September 21, 2022 recommending the Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed amalgamation of WICCL
into NBIIFCL on a ‘going cancern value’ premise, pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation hatween N.B.I.
Industrial Finance Company Limited {*NBIIFCL"), Western India Commarcial Company Limited {"WI1CCL")
and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Scheme™) and your email dated May 16, 2023.

Inthe said repaort, in the section on Market Price Method, it has been stated as under:
“Since CSE has been derecognized as a stock exchange, the equity shares of WICCL are not traded.”

This sentence may be read as under:
“As there is no share trading activity happening on the CSE for many years, the equity shares of WICCL

have nat been traded on CSE.”

Yau are kindly requested to read the above-mentioned report with this change mentioned in this
addendum. Kindly note there is no change in the Share Exchange Ratio recommended in the Report.

We regret the inconvenience to you due to the above.

Respectfully submitted,

pe!

Partner
Ravishu Vinod Sh
Asset Class: Securities or Financial Assets
{RV No.: IBBI/RV/06/2020/12728}

Dxate: May 18, 2023
Place: Mumbai

Pagelofl

RBSA Valuation Advisgrs LEP., 1121, Building No.11, Solitaire Corporate Park, Chakala, Andheri Fast, Mumbai-400093
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September 21, 2022

The Beard of Directors The Board of Directors

N.B.IL Industrial Finance Company Limited Western India Commercial Company Limited
21, Strand Road, 21, Strand Road,

Kolkata 700 001 Kolkata 700 001

Members of the Board:

)  Subject: “Fairness Opinion” on the Equity Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed
amalgamation of Western India Commercial Company Limited (“WICCL") into N.B.L
Industrial Finance Company Limited (“NBIIFCL").

Purpose

We, Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited (“SFSL”), refer to the engagement letter dated
August 5, 2022, towards issuance of “Fairness Opinion” report as required under SEBI
Master Circular Ref. No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/TP/2021/0000000665 dated November 23,
2021, whereby N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited (“NBIIFCL”) and Western
India Commercial Company Limited (“WICCL”) (hereby referred to as “Companies”)
have jointly appointed us, inter alia, to provide the fairness opinion to the Board of
Directors of NBIFFCL and WICCL on the respective Equity Share Exchange Ratio
recommended in the valuation report dated September 21, 2022 (“Valuation Report”)
issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP ("RBSA” or “Valuer”) for the proposed
) amalgamation of WICCL into NBIIFCL as a going concern (“Proposed Transaction”),
pursuant to the proposed amalgamation between WICCL and NBIFCL and their
respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Scheme”).

Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited (“SFSL”)
SFSL is a Category 1 Merchant Banker bearing SEBI Registration Number INMO00008753.
The registered office is situated at 6A Geetanjali, 6th Floor, 8B Middleton Street, Kolkata —
700 071, West Bengal, India.

Sumedha Fiscal Services Ltd.

CIN: L7O010IWBISBGPLCOIT4GS

Registered & Carporate Qffice:

GA Geetanjali, 8B Middleton Street, Kolkata - 70007 1
Telephone ; +91 33 2229 8636 / 6738
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Proposed Transaction Background

NBIIFCL and WICCL have proposed to enter into the scheme of amalgamation, which
envisages the merger of WICCL into NBIIFCL. Pursuant to the Merger, NBIFCL will issue
and allot to the shareholders of WICCL, 94 fully paid-up equity shares of face value INR
5.00 each of NBIIFCL for every 3 fully paid-up equity shares of face value INR 100.00 each
of WICCL held by such shareholders (“Share Exchange Ratio”).

NBIIFCL and WICCL, in terms of the Appointment Letter, have requested us to issue our
independent opinion on the fairness of the Equity Share Exchange Ratio recommended by
the Valuer (“Fairness Opinion”) in relation to the proposed transaction. Qur scope is
restricted to providing an Opinion on the Equity Share Exchange Ratio towards the
merger of WICCL into NBIFCL.

Sources of Information
In arriving at our Opinion, we have reviewed the following information:
* Valuation report by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLI’, dated September 21, 2022

recommending the Equity Share Exchange Ratio for the Proposed Transaction.

* Draft Scheme of Arrangement towards the proposed transaction between WICCL
and NBIIFCL and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to
232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

* Audited Financial Statements of NBIIFCL and WICCL for Financial Year ended on
March 31, 2020, March 31, 2021, and March 31, 2022 as well as provisional Financial
Statements for the three months peried ended June 30, 2022.

* Financial Statements of companies where both NBIOFCL and WICCL have
investments.

* Further, we have discussions with RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP on such matters
which we believed were necessary or appropriate for the purpose of issuing the
Opinion.

* Such other information, documents, data, reports, discussions, and explanations
received verbally and in writing from the Management of NBIIFCL and WICCL.

* Moreover, we have taken into consideration certain publicly available information,
and have taken into account such other matters as we deemed necessary including
our assessment of general economic, market and monetary conditions.

Sumedha Fiscal Services Ltd.

CIN: L70101WEBI98IPLCDIT 465

Registered & Corporate Office:

64 Geetanjali, 8B Middleton Street, Kelkata —~ 700071,
Telephane : +91 33 2229 8936 7 6753
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Brief Profile of the Companies Under Reference

NBIIFCL: Incorporated on December 21, 1936, N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited
("NBHFCL") is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve
Bank of India vide Registration Number 5.00252. NBIIFCL is presently engaged in the
business of investment in shares and securities and financial activity. The equity shares of
NBIIFCL are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited {(“NSE”) (Symbol:
NBIFIN) (ISIN: INE365101020).

WICCL: Incorporated on August 13, 1928, Western India Commercial Company Limited
(“WICCL"} is a Non-Banking Finance Company {(NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank
of India vide Registration Number B-05.06730. WICCL is presently engaged in the
business of investment in shares and securities and financial activity. The equity shares of
WICCL are listed on the Calcutta Stock Exchange (“CSE”) (Scrip Code: 033036) (ISIN:
INE925M01015).

Exclusions and Limitations

The report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant
documents referred to therein.

We have assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and
completeness of all information that was publicly available or provided or otherwise made
available to us by the management of both NBIIFCL and WICCL for the purposes of the
Fairness Opinion. We express no opinion, and accordingly, accept no responsibility with
respect to or for such information on an “as is” basis, and have not verified the accuracy
and/or the completeness of the same from our end.

Our opinion is necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions as in
effect on the date of the issue of Fairness Opinion, and the information made available to
us as of, the date hereof, including the capital structure of NBIIFCL and WICCL. Qur
opinion does not address matters such as corporate governance or shareholder rights. We
have assumed the Proposed Transaction is legally enforceable.

We assume no responsibility for the legal, tax, accounting or structuring matters
including, but not limited to, legal or title concerns. We have further assumed that the
Transaction would be carried out in compliance with applicable laws rules and
regulations. Our opinion is not, nor should it be construed as our opinion or certifying the
compliance of the proposed transfer with the provisions of any law including companies,
taxation and capital market-related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues
arising thereon.

Sumedha Fiscal Services Ltd.

CIN: L70101WEBI1989PLCO47465

Registered & Corporate Gffice:

BA Geetanjali, 8B Middleton Street, Kalkata — 700071,
Telephone : +91 33 2229 8936 / 6758
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Our work does not constitute an audit, due diligence or verification of historical financials
including the working results of the companies or their business referred to in this report.
Accordingly, we are unable to and do not express an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of
any financial information referred to in this report.

We have not assumed an obligation to conduct, nor have we conducted any physical
inspection or title verification of the properties or facilities of NBIIFCL or WICCL, nor
have we been furnished with any such appraisals. No investigation of the companies'
claim to the title of assets or property owned by the companies has been made for the
purpose of this Fairness Opinion.

We have not received any internal management information statements or any non-public
reports, and instead, have relied upon information that was publicly available or provided
or otherwise made available to us by NBIIFCL and WICCL on an “as is” basis for the
purpose of this Fairness Opinion.

We are not experts in the evaluation of litigation or other actual or threatened claims. We
have assumed that there are no other contingent liabilities or circumstances that could
materially affect the business or the financial prospects of NBIIFCL or WICCL.

We understand that the management of NBIIFCL and WICCL, during our discussion with
them, would have drawn our attention to all information and matters which may have an
impact on our analysis and opinion.

We have assumed that in the course of obtaining necessary regulatory or other consent, no
restrictions will be imposed or there will be no delays that will have a material adverse
effect on the conditions as they currently exist and on the information made available to us
as of the date hereof. It should be understood that although subsequent developments
may affect this Fairness Opinion, we do not have an obligation to update, revise or
reaffirm this opinion.

In the ordinary course of business, the SFSL Group is engaged in auditing, assurance,
insolvency practice, merchant banking, debt restructuring, and loan syndication. In the
ordinary course of its trading, investing and financing activities, any member of the SFSL
Group may at any time hold long or short positions, and may trade or otherwise effect
transactions, for its own account, in debt or equity securities or senior loans of any
company that may be involved in the proposed amalgamation.

Sumedha Fiscal Services Ltd.

CIN: L70101 WB1989PL CO47485

Registered & Corporate Office:

GA Geetanjali, 3B Middleton Street, Kolkata — 700071,
Telephone : +91 33 2229 8936 / 6758
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We express no opinion whatsoever and make no recommendation at all as to NBIIFCL’s
and WICCL’s underlying decision to effect the proposed amalgamation. We also do not
provide any recommendation to the holders of equity shares of NBIIFCL and WICCL with
respect to the proposed amalgamation.

We hereby declare that we do not have any direct or indirect material pecuniary
relationship with NBIIFCL and WICCL, except to the extent of professional fees agreed
upon amongst us for this assignment of Fairness Opinion.

This report is issued on the understanding that it is solely for the use of the persons to
whom it is addressed and for the purpose described above. We will not accept any liability
or respansibility to any person other than those to whom it is addressed. The report must
not be made available or copied in whole or in part to any other person without our
express written permission.

Conclusion

Valuer's Recommendation: As stated in the Valuation Report by RBSA Valuation
Advisors LLP, they have recommended the following Share Exchange Ratio for the
amalgamation of WICCL into NBIIFCL:

94 fully paid-up Equity Shares of the face value of INR 5 each of N.B.I Industrial Finance
Company Limited for every 3 fully paid-up Equity Shares of face value INR 100 each held in
Western India Commercial Company Limited.

Our Opinion on the Valuer's Report: Based on the information, and data made available
to us, including the Valuation Report by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP, our examination
and analysis of factors that we deemed relevant and subject to the scope, limitations as
mentioned herein above, we are of the opinion that the proposed Equity Share Exchange
Ratio as suggested by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP in relation to the proposed
amalgamation of WICCL into NBIIFCL is fair from a financial point of view to the
shareholders.

Distribution of the Fairness Opinion
The Fairness Opinion is addressed only to the Board of Directors of NBIIFCL and WICCL.
The Fairness Opinion shall not otherwise be disclosed or referred to publicly or to any
third party without SFSL’s prior consent.
However, NBIIFCL and WICCL may provide a copy of the Fairness Opinion if
requested/called upon by any regulatory authorities of India subject to promptly
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intimating SFSL in writing about the receipt of such request. The Fairness Opinion should
be read in totality and not in parts. Further, this Fairness Opinion should not be used or
quoted for any purpose other than the purpose mentioned hereinabove. If this Fairness
Opinion is used by any person other than to whom it is addressed or for any purpose
other than the purpose stated hereinabove, then, we will not be liable for any
consequences thereof and shall not take any responsibility for the same. Neither this
Fairness Opinion nor its contents may be referred to or quoted to/by any third party, in
any registration statement, prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan
agreement or any other agreement or documents given to third parties. In no
circumstances, however, will SFSL or its management, directors, officers, employees,
agents, advisors, representatives and controlling persons of SFSL accept any responsibility
or liability including the pecuniary or financial liability to any third party.

For edha Fiscal Services Limited

Bijay Murmuria
Director

Sumedha Fiscal Services Ltd.

CIN; L70101WE1989PLCO47465 ] é
Registered & Corporate Office:

6A Geetanjali, 8B Middleton Street, Kolkata - 700071,

Telephone : +91 33 222G 8936 / 6758
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Annexure: 15
O NSE -25-

National Stock Exchange Of India Limited

Ref: NSE/LIST/32753_1 May 26, 2023

The Company Secretary

Western India Commercial Co. Ltd
21 Strand Road, Ground Floor
Kolkata - 700001.

Kind Attn.: Mr. Ghanshyam Mohta
Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation Letter for draft scheme of amalgamation between Western India Commercial
Company Limited (“Western India” or “Transferor Company”) and N.B.I. Industrial Finance
Company Limited (“N.B.I. Industrial” or “Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders
and creditors.

We are in receipt of draft scheme of amalgamation between Western India Commercial Company Limited
(“Western India” or “Transferor Company”) and N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited (“N.B.I.
Industrial” or “Transferee Company’’) and their respective shareholders and creditors under sections 230-232
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 vide application dated September 29, 2022.

Based on our letter reference no. NSE/LIST/32753 1 dated March 31, 2023, submitted to SEBI pursuant to
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, read with Master circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/665 dated November 23, 2021 and Regulation 94(2) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations 2015, SEBI vide its letter dated May 25, 2023, has inter alia given the following comment(s) on
the draft scheme of arrangement:

a. Company shall ensure to disclose all the details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings,
prosecution initiated, and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the Company, its promoters
and directors, before Hon'ble NCLT and shareholders, while seeking approval of the Scheme.

b. Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company after filing the
Scheme with the stock exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter, is displayed on the websites of the
listed Company and the stock exchanges.

c. The entities involved in the scheme shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circulars and ensure
that all the liabilities of Transferor Company are transferred to the Transferee Company.

d. Company shall ensure that information pertaining to all the Unlisted Companies involved, if any, in the
scheme shall be included in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in Part E of
Schedule VI of the ICDR Regulations, 2018, in the explanatory statement or notice or proposal
accompanying resolution to be passed, which is sent to the shareholders for seeking approval.

e. Company shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including financials considered for valuation
report are not for period more than 6 months old.

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: DIPTI VIPIL CHINCHKHEDE
Date: Fri, May 26, 2023 17:54:10 IST

‘} NS E Location: NSE

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limitad | Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kura Comnplax, Bandra (E), Mumnbai — 400 051,
India +91 22 26598100 | www.nssindia.com | CIN U6T120MH199 2PLCOG9T 69
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1 Company shall ensure that the details of the proposed Scheme under consideration as provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange shall be prominently disclosed in the notice sent to the Shareholders.

g.  Both the companies shall ensure to disclose the following as a part of explanatory statement or notice or
proposal accompanying resolution to be passed to be forwarded by the company to the shareholders
while seeking approval u/s 230 to 232 of the Companies Act 201 3.

e Details of assets and liabilities of Transferor Company transferred to Transferee Company.

o Details of assets and liabilities of Transferee Company pre and post amalgamation.

e Impact of amalgamation on revenue generating capacity of Transferee Company.

e Rationale of the scheme, Synergies of business of the entities involved in the scheme, Impact of
the scheme on the shareholders and cost benefit analysis of the scheme and the rationale for
arriving at the share entitlement ratio.

h. Company shall ensure that the proposed equity shares to be issued in terms of the “Scheme” shall
mandatorily be in demat form only.

i.  Company shall ensure that the “Scheme” shall be acted upon subject to the applicant complying with the
relevant clauses mentioned in the Scheme document.

J. Company shall ensure that no changes to the draft scheme except those mandated by the
regulators/authorities/ tribunals shall be made without specific written consent of SEBI.

k.  Company shall ensure that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the petition
to be filed before NCLT and the Company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT.

[ Company to comply with all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and regulations
issued thereunder including obtaining the consent from the creditors for the proposed Scheme.

m. It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the Company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ Stock Exchange. Hence, the
Company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/ observations/ representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its
comments/observations/representations.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking given in
terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No objection” in terms of
Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the Company to file the draft scheme with
NCLT.

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: DIPTI VIPIL CHINCHKHEDE
Date: Fri, May 26, 2023 17:54:10 IST

‘-‘S NS E Location: NSE
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Please note that the submission of documents/information in accordance with circular to SEBI/Exchange
should not in any way be deemed or construed that the same has been cleared or approved by SEBI/Exchange.
SEBI/Exchange does not take responsibility either for the financial soundness of any Scheme or for the
correctness of the statements made or opinions expressed in the document submitted.

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted to the
Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws
and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines/ Regulations issued by statutory authorities.
The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from May 26, 2023, within which the Scheme
shall be submitted to NCLT.

Kindly note, this Exchange letter should not be construed as approval under any other Act /Regulation/rule/bye
laws (except as referred above) for which the Company may be required to obtain approval from other
department(s) of the Exchange. The Company is requested to separately take up matter with the concerned
departments for approval, if any.

The Company shall ensure filing of compliance status report stating the compliance with each point of
Observation Letter on draft scheme of arrangement on the following path: NEAPS > Issue > Scheme of
arrangement > Reg 37(1) of SEBI LODR, 2015> Seeking Observation letter to Compliance Status.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Dipti Chinchkhede
Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following URL:
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/raising-capital-further-issues-main-sme-checklist

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: DIPTI VIPIL CHINCHKHEDE
Date: Fri, May 26, 2023 17:54:10 IST

‘3 NSE Location: NSE
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The Calcutta Stock Exchange Lth.

7. Lyons Range, Kolkata - 700 001
Ph(_:nne ;491 33 4025 3000, Fax : +91 33 4025 3030/ 3017
Website : www.cse-india.com, E-mail : cseadmn@cse-india.com

Ref o CSELDI[BR]Z (2023 CIN: U67120WB1923PLCO04707 May 31, 2023

The Company Secretary

WESTERN INDiA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.
21 Strand Road, Ground Floor,

Kolkata-700 001,

H

Dear S

Sub: Observation letter for draft Scheme of Amalgamation between Western india Commercial Company
Limited {Transferor Company"”). and N.B.l. Industries Finance Company Limited (Transferee Company) and
their respective shareholders and creditors field under Regulation 37 of SEBI (LODR} Regulations, 2015.

WwWe are in receipt of the draft Scheme of Amalgamaton Western Indha Commercal Company Limited (Transferor
Company™y and N.B | Industnes Finance Company Limited (Transferee Company) and their respectve shareholders
and creditors under section 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the Comparies Act, 2013,

As required under SEB! Circular No. CFED/DIL3ICIR/2017/21 dated March 10. 2017, read with Master Gircular no.
SEBYHOICFDDIL1/CIRIP/2021/685 dated November 23, 2023 and Regulation 94(2) of SEBI {LODR) Regulation
2015, SEBI vide its letter dated May 25, 2023, has inter alia given the following comment{s) on draft scheme of
arrangement:

» Company shall ensure to disclose all the details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings.
prosecution intiated, and all other enforcement action taken. if any agairs! the Company its promoters and
directors. before Hon'ble NCLT and shareholders, while seeking approved of the Scheme.

« ‘Company shall ensure that additional infermation, if any, submitted by the Company. after filling the scheme
with the stock exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter s displayed on the websites of the listed
company.”

« "Company ghall duly comply with various prowvisions of the Circulars™ and ensure the liabihties of Transferor
Company are transferred 1o the Transferee Campany

» Company shall ensure that information pertaining 1o all the Unlisted Compares involved, if any, 0 the
scheme shall be included in the farmat specified for abrndge prospectus as provided in Part E of Schedule Yl
of the ICDR Regulations, 2018, n the explanatory stalement or notice or proposed accompanying resolution
to be passed. which is sent to the sharzholders for seeking approval.

« Company shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including financials considered for valuation report
are not for period more than 6 months old. E

« Company shall ensure that the details of the proposed Scheme under consideralion as provided by the
-~ Company to lhe Stock Exchange shall be prominently disclosed in the notice sent to ithe shareholders.

» Both the companies shall ensure to disclose th following as a part of exptanatory staternent or nohte or
propesal accompanying resolution 1o be forwarded by the company to the shareholders while seeking
approvail ufs 230 to 232 of the companies Act 2013

Details of assels and liabiktes of Transferor Company lransferred to Transferor Company
Transferred to Transferee Company.

Details of assets and liabilities of Transferee Company pre and post amalgamation.
impact of amalgamation on revenue generating capacity of Transferee Companies

Rationale of the scheme. Synergies of business of the enthes invotved In the scheme, Impact of
the scheme on the shareholders and cost benefl analys:s of \he scheme and the rahonale for
arnving A1 the share enhitlernent ratio

{contd. .. . .p/2)
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The Calcutta Stock Exchange Lto.

7. Lyons Range, Kolkata - 700 001
Phone ; +91 33 402% 3000, Fax : +971 33 4025 3030/ 3017
Website : www.cse-india.com, E-mail : cseadmn@cse-india.com
CIN: U67T20WB1923_P£_C004707

« Company shall ensure that the proposed eguity shares to be issued in terms of the "Scheme” shall
mandatonly be demal form onty.

+ Company shall ensure that the "Scheme’ shall be acied upon subject to the apphcant complying with the
' relevant ¢lauses mentioned in the Scheme document.

« Company shall ensure that no changes to the draft scheme except those mandated by the regulators
fauthorities / tribunals shall be made without specific written consent of SEBI.

« Company shall ensure that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the petition
to be field before NCLT and the companies are obliged to bring the cbservations to the notice to NCLT.

« Company to comply with all the applicable prowisions of the Companies Act. 2013. rules and regulations
issued there under including obtaining the consent from the creddors for the proposed scheme

« 1tis to be noted that the petitions are f.2ld by the company before NCLT after pracessing and communication
of comments / observations on draft scheme by SEBI /Stock Exchanges Hence the companies are not
required to send notice for representation as mandated under Section 230(5) of Companies Acl, 2013 o
SEBI again for its comments /observations /representations

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company. including undertaking given in terms of
Regulation 11 of SEBI {LODR) Regulations. 2015. we hereby convey our "No objection’ in terns If Regulation 94 ot
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 so as to enabie lhe Company to file the draft scheme with NCL1

Please note that the submission of documentsanformation In accordance with crrcular 10 SEBIExchange
should not any way be deemed or construed that the same has deen cleared or approved by SEBIExchange
does not take respaossiblity erher for the financial soundness of any scheme for the correctness of the
statements made or opimons expressed in the document submitted

However, the Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its 'No adverse observation at any stage if the
information submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for any
contravention of Rules. Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange Listing Agreement., Guidelines /
Regulations ssued by statutory authanties. '

The validity of this Observation Letter shali be Six Months from the date of this Letter. Within which the
scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.

Yours laithfully,

For THE (lALCUTTA STOCK EXCHANGE LY

{(Chandrari Datta)
Caompany Secretary

(\L%?’\Fg\g :
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National Stock Exchange Of India Limited

Ref: NSE/LIST/32753 May 26, 2023

The Company Secretary

N. B. . Industrial Finance Company Limited
21 Strand Road, Ground Floor

Kolkata - 700001.

Kind Attn.: Mr. Ashish Kedia
Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation Letter for draft scheme of amalgamation between Western India Commercial
Company Limited (“Western India” or “Transferor Company”) and N.B.I. Industrial Finance
Company Limited (“N.B.I. Industrial” or “Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders
and creditors.

We are in receipt of draft scheme of amalgamation between Western India Commercial Company Limited
(“Western India” or “Transferor Company”) and N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited (“N.B.L
Industrial” or “Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors under sections 230-232
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 vide application dated September 29, 2022.

Based on our letter reference no. NSE/LIST/32753 1 dated March 31, 2023, submitted to SEBI pursuant to
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, read with Master circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/665 dated November 23, 2021 and Regulation 94(2) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations 2015, SEBI vide its letter dated May 25, 2023, has inter alia given the following comment(s) on
the draft scheme of arrangement:

a. Company shall ensure to disclose all the details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings,
prosecution initiated, and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the Company, its promoters
and directors, before Hon'ble NCLT and shareholders, while seeking approval of the Scheme.

b. Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company after filing the
Scheme with the stock exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter, is displayed on the websites of the
listed Company and the stock exchanges.

c. The entities involved in the scheme shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circulars and ensure
that all the liabilities of Transferor Company are transferred to the Transferee Company.

d. Company shall ensure that information pertaining to all the Unlisted Companies involved, if any, in the
scheme shall be included in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in Part E of
Schedule VI of the ICDR Regulations, 2018, in the explanatory statement or notice or proposal
accompanying resolution to be passed, which is sent to the shareholders for seeking approval.

e. Company shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including financials considered for valuation
report are not for period more than 6 months old.

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: DIPTI VIPIL CHINCHKHEDE
Date: Fri, May 26, 2023 17:35:26 IST

‘} NS E Location: NSE

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited | Exchangs Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kura Complex, Bandra (E), Mumnbai — 400 051,
India +91 22 265982100 | www.nssindia.com | CIN UST120MH199 2PLC0S9T A9
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f- Company shall ensure that the details of the proposed Scheme under consideration as provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange shall be prominently disclosed in the notice sent to the Shareholders.

g.  Both the companies shall ensure to disclose the following as a part of explanatory statement or notice or
proposal accompanying resolution to be passed to be forwarded by the company to the shareholders
while seeking approval u/s 230 to 232 of the Companies Act 201 3.

e Details of assets and liabilities of Transferor Company transferred to Transferee Company.

e Details of assets and liabilities of Transferee Company pre and post amalgamation.

e Impact of amalgamation on revenue generating capacity of Transferee Company.

e  Rationale of the scheme, Synergies of business of the entities involved in the scheme, Impact of
the scheme on the shareholders and cost benefit analysis of the scheme and the rationale for
arriving at the share entitlement ratio.

h. Company shall ensure that the proposed equity shares to be issued in terms of the “Scheme” shall
mandatorily be in demat form only.

i.  Company shall ensure that the “Scheme” shall be acted upon subject to the applicant complying with the
relevant clauses mentioned in the Scheme document.

j. Company shall ensure that no changes to the draft scheme except those mandated by the
regulators/authorities/ tribunals shall be made without specific written consent of SEBI.

k. Company shall ensure that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the petition
to be filed before NCLT and the Company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT.

I Company to comply with all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and regulations
issued thereunder including obtaining the consent from the creditors for the proposed Scheme.

m. It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the Company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ Stock Exchange. Hence, the
Company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/ observations/ representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its
comments/observations/representations.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking given in
terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No objection” in terms of
Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the Company to file the draft scheme with
NCLT.

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: DIPTI VIPIL CHINCHKHEDE
Date: Fri, May 26, 2023 17:35:26 IST

‘,‘ NSE Location: NSE
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Please note that the submission of documents/information in accordance with circular to SEBI/Exchange
should not in any way be deemed or construed that the same has been cleared or approved by SEBI/Exchange.
SEBI/Exchange does not take responsibility either for the financial soundness of any Scheme or for the
correctness of the statements made or opinions expressed in the document submitted.

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted to the
Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws
and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines/ Regulations issued by statutory authorities.
The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from May 26, 2023, within which the Scheme
shall be submitted to NCLT.

Kindly note, this Exchange letter should not be construed as approval under any other Act /Regulation/rule/bye
laws (except as referred above) for which the Company may be required to obtain approval from other
department(s) of the Exchange. The Company is requested to separately take up matter with the concerned
departments for approval, if any.

The Company shall ensure filing of compliance status report stating the compliance with each point of
Observation Letter on draft scheme of arrangement on the following path: NEAPS > Issue > Scheme of
arrangement > Reg 37(1) of SEBI LODR, 2015> Seeking Observation letter to Compliance Status.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Dipti Chinchkhede
Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following URL:
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/raising-capital-further-issues-main-sme-checklist

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: DIPTI VIPIL CHINCHKHEDE
Date: Fri, May 26, 2023 17:35:26 IST

‘3 NSE Location: NSE
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RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

www.rbi.org.in

KOL.DOS.RSG.N0.52910/99-06-002/2023-24 January 18, 2024

The Director,

N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited
21, Strand Road

Ground Floor, Kolkata-700001

Email: nbifinance@ymail.com

Dear Sir,

No Objection to the Scheme of Amalgamation of Transferor Company Western

India Commercial Company Limited (NBFC, CoR-B.05.06730) with the
Transferee company N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited (NBFC, CoR -

B.05.00252)
Please refer to your letter dated July 17, 2023 on the captioned subject.

2. In this connection, we advise that the Bank does not have any objection to the
proposed scheme of amalgamation of the transferor company with the N.B.I. Industrial
Finance Company Limited (NBFC, CoR - B.05.00252)

3. Please note that this “No Objection” is valid for six months from the date of issuance
of this letter.

4. You are further advised to intimate us the date of sanction of the scheme of
amalgamation by the Hon'ble NCLT along with a certified true copy of the NCLT
order within one month from the date of the order.

Yours sincerely,
£Qe-
(S. De)
Manager

uddar faymr, s dfvra, 15 Jarelt gure A, Sd@Tal - 700 001
Tel: +91 33 2231 0201 Fax No: +91 33 2231 3185 Email: goskoikata@ibi org in

Annexure: 18

Department of Supervision, 5th Floor, 15 Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata - 700 001
Tel. +81 33 2231 0201 Fax No: «91 33 2231 3185 Email. doskolkata@rix org in

ftdt srarn 8 Tue wam agEn)
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Statement showing Assets & Liabilities of the Transferor Company (pre Scheme) and the Transferee Company

159

{pre & post Scheme)
In Lakh In Lakh In Lakh |
Putiodur (son otisz0pe | TspaterCompant | Infefess comtany | Tisstres Compeny |
Assets
Financial Assets
| (a) Cash and cash equivalents 10.64 4.30 | 14.94
|0 B
| (c) Investments 57,226.06 242,577.92 298,623.59
(d) Other Financial Assets 7.71 13.03 | 2574
Total Financlal Assets 57,246.11 242,601.98 298,667.70
Non-Financial Assefs
(a) Current tax assets (Net) 3.25 34.91 38.16 |
| (b) Property, Plant & Equipment : 0.24 0.24 |
(c) Other non-financial assets 0.05 8.88 8.93 |
Total Non-Financial Assets 3.30 44.03 | 47.33 '
Total Assets 57,249.41 242,646.01 298,715.03
Liabilities and Equity
Financial Liabilities
| (a) Other financial liabilities 1.47 16.41 17.88
| Non-Financial Liabilities
{a) Current tax liabilities (net) 1.47 1.50 | 2.97
(b} Provisions 1.53 67.47 69.00
(c) Deferred tax liability (net) 2,061.80 8,743.37 | 10,805.17
(d} Other non-financial liabilities 0.33 4.95 5.28
| Total Liabilities 2,066.60 8,833.70 10,900.30
Equity
(a} Equity Share Capital 18.00 122.84 147.74
(b} Other Equity 55,164.81 233,639.47 287,666.99
Total Equity 55,182.81 233,812.31 287,814.73
Total Liabilities & Equity 57,249.41 242,646.01 298,715.03




Annexure: 20

WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - T0O 001
® 22130957, 2243 7725, 2230 1305, 2230 BE01/9604 (4 LINES), Fax : 033-2213 1650

E.mail : we colid@gmail.com

Date: 05.01.2023

To,

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sir! Madam,

Sub: Submission of “Report on Complaints™ pursuant to SEBI Master Circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DILY/CIR/PI2021/00000006685 dated Movember 23, 2021 ("SEBI Master
Circular”)

Ref: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Western India
Commercial Company Limited {“Transferor Company” or “Company”) with MN.B.LIndustrial
Finance Company Limited {“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and
creditors (“Scheme')

This iz with reference to the aforementioned application submitted by us to Mational Stock Exchange of
India Limited ("NSE") on 28" September, 2022

In terms of paragraph 6 of Part I{A} of the SEBI Master Circular, a listed entity is required (o submit a

'Report on Complaints” 1o the stock exchanges within 7 days of expiry of 21 days from the date of filing
of the draft scheme with the stock exchanges and hosting the draft scheme along with documents
specified under paragraph 2 of Part I{4} of SEBI Master Circular on the websites of the stock exchanges
and such fisted entity

it may be piease noled that the stock exchange, e, NSE had hosted the drafl Scheme along with
required documents on its website an 13" December, 2022. The SEBI Master Circular requires the
Report on Complaints to be in the format prescnbed as per Annexure |l of the SEBI Master Circular

In view of the above, we enclose the Report on Complaints as per the format prescrnbed under the SEBI
Master Circular

The Report on Complaints is also being uploaded on the website of the Comipany, i 8., www westerm-
india ¢ i as per the requirement of the said SEBI Master Circular

We request you to kindly take the above on record and issue the no-objection letter at the earliest,
Tanking You,

Your Sincerely,
For Western India Commercial Company Limited

L}:E / /""_Iin A
_Q' ?r.- \‘qﬁ \
Ghanshyam Mohta KOL-g =]
{Company Secretary) \\\\_ )}'

Encl as above
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

21, STRAND ROAD. KOLKATA - 700 (411

W 2213 0957, 2243 7725, 2230 7905, 2230 0601/9604 (4 LINES), Fax - 033-2213 1650

E mail ;: westsmindiacommarciaslcohd@@gmail.com

Report on Complaints

Penod of Complaints Report' 13 12.20 3.01
Part A
sr. | o Particulars Number
No. |
1 Mumber of complaints received directly D
B Number of Ebmplalnts forwarded by Stock Exchange/ SEBI : 0
i 3 Total Number of cnmplalntsa'cumme?ut:: received (1+2) R 0
4 Number of complaints resolved === o 0
|
5 | Number of complaints pending — 4
I | i
Part B
| Sr. | Name of complainant | Date of complaint Status
L. _— — IR (— | (Resolved/Pending)
1 Mot Applicable Nat Applicable Mot Applicabie

Yours sincerely,
For Western India Commercial Company Limited

~ 1L¥ m o
PSRN
-~ 0 = \"Il- |‘||

/ ({2[ Koton )
Ghanshyam Mohta A
(Company Secretary} ‘_\;’T'“;;/

NP/
Sl

Date:0501.2023
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

21, STRAND ROAD. KOLKATA - 700 001
® 22130957, 2243 7725, 2230 7905, 2230 9601/9604 {4 LINES}, Fax  033-2213 1650
E mall : westemindiacommercialcoltd@gmail. com

Date: 22.03.2023

To,

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited,
7, Lyons Range, Dalhousie,

Kolkata - 700001

Symbol;

Dear Sirf Madam,

Sub: Submission of “Report on Complaints” pursuant to SEBI Master Circular no.
SEBIHOICFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021 (“SEBI Master Circular”)

Ref: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Western India
Commercial Company Limited (“Transferor Company"” or “Company"”) with N.B.lIndustrial
Finance Company Limited (“Transferee Company") and their respective shareholders and
creditors (“Schame")

This is with reference to the aforementioned application submitted by us lo Calcutta Stock Exchange
Limited ("CSE") on 26™ September, 2022

In terms of paragraph 6 of Part I(A) of the SEBI Master Circular, a listed entity is required to submit a
“Report on Complaints” 1o the stock exchanges within 7 days of expiry of 21 days from the date of hiing
of the draft scheme with the stock exchanges and hosting the draft scheme along with documents
specified under paragraph 2 of Part I(A) of SEBI Master Circular on the websites of the stock exchanges
and such listed entity.

In view of the above, we enclose the Report on Complaints as per the format prescribed under the SEBI
Master Circular

The Report on Complaints is also being uploaded on the website of the Company, i.e., www.westarn-
india co.in as per the requirement of the said SEBI Master Circular

We request you to kindly take the above on recard and issue the no-objection letter at the earfiest.

Your sincerely,
For Western India Commercial Company Limited

0 oo
. o ..{I:‘-_l.“_..r'_ oy
L} |'- I‘If"' \I

Ghanshyam Mohta | ". KOL-07 /’I':
(Company Secretary) %" S/

T N _,.,-:".«. A

o

X

S

Encl: as above
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

- 21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 001
W 12213 0957, 2243 7725, 2230 7905, 2230 5601/9604 (4 LINES}, Fax : 033-2213 1650

E.mail : westemindiacommercialcoltd@gmail com
Report on Complaints

Peri f ints R it 01.03.2023 1o 21.03.2023
Part A
Sr. Particulars | Number ==
Mo.
1. Number of complaints received direclly g
2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange/ SEBI 0
3 Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) 0
4. Number of complaints resolved 0
5. Number of complaints pending o ' 0
Part B
Sr. Hame of complainant Date of cﬂmplhint Status o
No. (Resolved/Pending) ]
1. Mot Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
2, o
3 o |
. |

Yours sincerely,
For Western India Commercial Company Limited

“Q 4 1 LR

Ghanshyam Mohta =
‘(Company Secretary) I\l‘,

Date: 22.03.2023
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Annexure: 21

N. B. I. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CIN No. LE5923WB1936PLC0E5596

Regd. Office : 21, STRAND ROAD, (Ground Floor) KOLKATA-700 001

Phone : 2230 9601 - 9603 (3 Lines), 2243 7725, 2230 7305, Telefax : 033-2213 1650
e.mail : nbifinance@ymail.com

Date: 15:12.2022

To,

National Steck Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

NSE Symbol: NBIFIN
Dear Sird Macdam,

Sub: Submission of “Report on Complaints” pursuant to SEBI Master Circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFDIDIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021 (“SEEI Master Circular”)

Ref: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Western India
Commercial Company Limited (“Transferor Company”') with N.B.lIndustrial Finance Company
Limited (“Transferee Company” or “Company") and their respective shareholders and creditors
(“Scheme")

This is with reference to the aforementioned application submitted by us to National Stock Exchange of
India Limited {("NSE") on 29" September, 2022,

In terms of paragraph 6 of Part I(A) of the SEBI Master Circular, a listed entity is required to submit a
*Report on Complaints” to the stock exchanges within 7 days of expiry of 21 days from the date of filing
of the draft scheme with the stock exchanges and hosting the draft scheme along with documents
specified under paragraph 2 of Part I{ A) of SEBI Master Circular on the websites of the stock exchanges
and such listed entity.

It may be noted that the stock exchange, 1.e.. NSE had hosted the draft Scheme along with required
documents on ils website on 22" November, 2022, The SEBI Master Circular requires the Repaort on
Compizaints to be in the format prescribed as per Annexure |l of the SEBI Master Circular

In view of the above, we enclose the Report on Complaints as per the format prescribed under the SEEI
Master Circular.

The Report on Complaints i also being uploaded on the website of the Company, i.e.. www.nbi-
india.co.in as per the requirement of the said SEBI Master Circular.

We request you to kindly take the above on record and issue the no-objection letter at the earliest.

Your sinceraly,
For MN.B.LIndustrial Finance Company Limited

S B o
’ ' /75
Ashish Kedia {‘ Kolkata F ]
iCompany Secretary) \= ,l'\ o~/
WO b g
2

Encl: as above
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N. B. |. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CIN No. L65923WB1936PLCO65596

Regd. Office : 21, STRAND ROAD, (Ground Floor) KOLKATA-700 001

Phone : 2230 9601 - 9603 (3 Lines), 2243 7725, 2230 7905, Telefax : 033-2213 1650

e.mail : nbifinance@ymail.com

Roportonm Compiamts

Period of Complaints Report, 22 11,2022 to 14.12 2022

Part A
Sr. Particulars - Number S
No.
1 Number of complaints received directly 0
{_2 Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges / SEBI il
| S
[3 Total Number of complaints/comments received {1+2) 0
4 Mumber of complaints resolved 0
5. Number of complaints pending - 0
Part B
Sr. | Name of complainant Date of Complaint Status.
No. (Resolved/Pending)
1 Mot Applicable Mot Applicable Not Applicable
2
| 3

Yaurs sincerely,
For N.B.l.Industrial Finance Company Limited,

Ashish Kedia “
(Company Secretary)

Date: 15.12 2022
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Annexure: 22
IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
BENCH KOLKATA, COURT-I1

COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No. 184/KB/2023

In the matter of:
The Companies Act, 2013;

And
In the matter of:
An application under Section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies ([(Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016;

And
In the matter of:
WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED  (CIN:
L67120WB1928PLC093924), formerly known as ‘Indian Investment Co.
Ltd.’, a public limited company, incorporated under the Indian Companies
Act, 1913, and having its registered office at 21, Strand Road Kolkata - 700
001, West Bengal, within the aforesaid jurisdiction.

... TRANSFEROR COMPANY

And
N.B.L INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED (CIN:
L65923WB1936PLC065596), a public limited company, formerly known
as THE NEW BANK LIMITED’, incorporated under the Indian Companies
Act, 1913 and having its registered office at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700
001, within the aforesaid jurisdiction.

...TRANSFEREE COMPANY
And

In the matter of:
1. WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
2. N.B.I. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
KOLEATA BENCH, COURT-II
COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No, 184 /KE/2023

...APPLICANTS

Date of pronouncing the order:18/06/2024

CORAM:
Smt. Bidisha Banerjee : Hon'ble Member (Judicial)
Shri D. Arvind : Hon'ble Member [Technical)

Advocates appearing for the Applicants

Rusha, Mitra, Adv | For the Applicants
S.Makkar, Adv

ORDER

Per: Bidisha Banerjee., Member (Judicial

This is an application filed under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act,
2013 (*Act”), read with the Companies (Compromise, Arrangement and
Amalgamation) Rules, 2016 (*CAA Rules”), in connection with a proposed
Scheme of Amalgamation of Western India Commercial Company Limited,
the Applicant No. 1 (the “Transferor Company”) with N.B.l. Industrial
Finance Company Limited, the Applicant No. 2 (the *Transferee Company”)
and their respective shareholders and creditors (hereinafter referred to as
"Scheme”). It is submitted on behalf of the Applicants that the proposed

Scheme, a copy of which has been annexed to the company application

Page 2 of 16
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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
HOLEATA BENCH, COURT-II
COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No, 184/KB/2033

and marked as Annexure - “G" (at pages 287 to 315}, would inter alia have

the following benefits for both the Applicants, their shareholders, creditors,

employees and all other concerned as follows:

The proposed Scheme would entail that the equity shares of the
Applicant No. 2/Transferee Company, which are listed on the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (*NSE”) would be issued
to shareholders of the Transferor Company. Therefore, the proposed
Scheme would result in providing better liquidity to the
shareholders of Transferor Company while not being prejudicial to
the interest of Applicant No. 2/Transferee Company and its

shareholders, creditors, employees or any stakeholders.

There would be potential for further expansion of the businesses
due to consolidation of capital base and increased borrowing

strengths of the combined entity.

The proposed Scheme would result in significant reduction in
multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances which at present is
required to be made separately by the Applicants.

2. The Learned Advocates appearing for the Applicants further submits as

follows:-

il

The Board of Directors of the Applicants have duly approved the
Scheme in their respective board meetings held on 21st September
2022, which resolutions are annexed to the company application as

Annexure “H” Colly (at pages 316 to 321).

The share exchange ratio of the Applicants has been fixed on a fair

and reasonable basis and on the basis of the valuation report dated

Page 3 of 16
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iii.

iv.

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
HOLEATA BENCH, COURT-II
COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No. 184 /KB/2033

218t September 2022 prepared by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP,
copy of which has also been annexed to the company application as

Annexure “I” (at pages 322 to 333).

The Applicant No. 1/Transferor Company is listed with the Calcutta
Stock Exchange (“CSE") and has filed the Scheme with both NSE
and CSE. The Applicant No. 1 has complied with the observation
letter received from NSE and CSE dated 26t May, 2023 and 31+
May, 2023 annexed at Annexure - “J” (at pages 334 to 338) prior to
filing of the form and the Scheme before this Tribunal.

The Applicant No. 2 /Transferee Company is listed with the NSE and
has therefore filed the proposed Scheme in accordance with
Regulation 37 of the LODR Regulations. The Applicant No.
2/Transferee Company has complied with the observation letter of
the NSE dated 26 May, 2023 which is annexed as Annexure — “K”
(at pages 339 to 341) prior to filing of the form and Scheme before
this Tribunal.

The Applicants being NBFCs are registered with the Reserve Bank of
India [EBI). The Applicants have filed an application dated 17% July,
2023 with the RBI seeking prior written approval of the RBI
pursuant to Chapter IX- Acquisition [/ Transfer of Control of
Applicable NBFCs of RBI Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank] Directions, 2016 (*“Master Direction™ with
reference number DNBR.PD.0O07/03.10.119/2016-17. As on the
date of filing the company application with this Tribunal, the
approval of the RBI was pending, the application to the RBI is
annexed to the company application as Annexure - “L” (at 342 to

343). However, since filing of the company application, the ‘No-

Page 4 of 16
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vi.

vil.

viii.

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
KOLEATA BENCH, COURT-II

COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No, 184/KB/2023

objection letter’ of RBI dated 18 January, 2024 has been received by
the Applicants, a copy whereof have been filed by the Applicants by
way of supplementary affidavit dated 24 April, 2024 and marked as
Annexure ‘SA-1' (at page 7).

The Applicant No. 1/Transferor Company has produced a certificate
by an independent auditor certifying the list of equity shareholders
which is annexed as Annexure - “M” (at pages 344 to 346). The
Applicant No. 2 /Transferee Company has also produced a certificate
by an independent auditor certifying the list of equity shareholders
which is annexed as Annexure - “N” (at pages 347 to 349).

The Applicant No. 1/Transferor Company does not have any secured
creditors. The Applicant No. 1/Transferor Company has four
unsecured creditors. A copy of the certificate of independent auditor
has been annexed to the company application as Annexure — “0” (at
pages 350 to 353). The Applicant No. 1/Transferor Company has
produced affidavits from each of its unsecured creditors consenting
to the proposed Scheme and such consent affidavits have been
annexed to the company application as Annexure - “P" (at pages 354

to 369).

Further, the Applicant No. 2/Transferee Company also does not
have any secured creditors and has five unsecured creditors. A copy
of the certificate of independent auditor has been annexed to the
company application as Annexure - “Q" (at pages 370 to 373). The
Applicant No. 2/Transferee Company has also produced affidavits
from each of its unsecured creditors consenting to the proposed
Scheme and such consent affidavits have been annexed to the

company application as Annexure - “R” (at pages 374 to 393-A).

Page 5 of 16
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3.

IN THE RATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
HKOLEATA BENCH, COURT-II

ix. Further, in terms of directions passed by this Tribunal on 10 April
2024 in the company application, the Applicants have filed the
certificate of the Statutory Auditors dated 20 September 2022 on
accounting treatment in the Scheme being in accordance with and
in conformity with the accounting standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. Copy of such certificate of
the Statutory Auditor is annexed to the supplementary affidavit
dated 24 April 2024 and marked as Annexure ‘SA-3’ (at pages 12 to
14).

In view of the aforesaid, the Applicants have sought leave of this Tribunal
to convene a meeting of the equity shareholders of the Applicant No.
1/Transferor Company and the Applicant No. 2/Transferee Company. In
the company application, the Applicants have accordingly prayed as

follows:

“‘a) An Order be passed directing for convening a meeting, including
provision for e-voting facility, of the equity shareholders of the
Transferor Company to be held at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata -
700001, Top floor Hall or at such other place as this Hon'ble Tribunal
may deem fit and proper for the purpose of considering, and if
thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the Scheme of
the Applicants, and Mr. Subhas Jajoo or Mr. J. P. Mundra, or any
other person be appointed as Chairperson to preside over the said
meeting and Mr. Rohit Kumarr Mundhra, or any other person be

appointed as the scrutinizer of the said meeting;

b) An Order be passed directing for convening a meeting, including
provision for e-voting facility, of the equity shareholders of the
Transferee Company to be held at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata -
700001, Top floor Hall or at such other place as this Hon’ble Tribunal

Page 6 of 16
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d)

gl

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
KOLEATA BENCH, COURT-II
COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No, 184/KB/2033

may deem fit and proper for the purpose of considering, and if
thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the Scheme of
the Applicants, and Mr. Ashok Bhandari or Mr. B. L. Gaggar or any
other person be appointed as Chairperson to preside over the said
meeting and Mr. Rohit Kumarr Mundhra, or any other person be

appointed as the scrutinizer of the said meeting;

An Order be passed dispensing with the meeting of the unsecured
creditors of Transferor Company as 100% of the unsecured creditors
in value of the Transferor Company have given their written consent

by way of affidavit for dispensation of such meeting;

An Order be passed dispensing with the meeting of the unsecured
creditors of Transferee Company as 100% of the unsecured creditors
in value of the Transferee Company have given their written consent

by way of affidavit for dispensation of such meeting;

An order be passed dispensing meeting of the secured creditors of
the Transferor Company as the Transferor Company does not have

any secured creditors;

An order be passed dispensing meeting of the secured creditors of
the Transferee Company as the Transferee Company does not have

any secured creditors;

An order be passed directing the Transferee Company to issue
newspaper advertisement(s) for convening meeting of the aforesaid

equity shareholders;

Page 7 of 16
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b)

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
KOLEATA BENCH, COURT-II
COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No. 184/KB/2023

h) Alternatively, directions may be given as to the method of convening,
holding and conducting the meetings and as to the notices to be

issued for the same;

i) It is prayed that this Hon'ble Tribunal may be pleased to direct
notices to be issued to the statutory authorities as per the provisions
of Section 230 (5) of the 2013 Act and Rule 8 of the Companies

(Compromise, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016;

il Such further or other order or orders be made or other directions be
given affording necessary relief to the Applicants as in the premises

this Hon'ble Tribunal may deem fit and proper.”

The Applicants have submitted that the assets of the Applicants are
sufficient to meet all the liabilities and the Scheme will not adversely affect
the rights of any of the creditors of the Applicants in any manner
whatsoever. On the contrary, the Scheme will inure to their benefit and is

in their interest.

We have perused the documents annexed to the company application and
the supplementary affidavit and have heard the submissions made on
behalf of the Applicants. We, accordingly pass the following Orders:

That the Applicant No. 1/Transferor Company and Applicant No.
2/Transferee Company have Nil secured creditors and therefore, the
requirement of convening and holding meetings of the secured creditors
of the Applicant No. 1/Transferor Company and Applicant No.

2 /Transferee Company do not arise;

That meetings of the respective unsecured creditors of Applicant No.

1/Transferor Company and Applicant No. 2/Transferee Company are

Page 8 of 16
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c)

d)

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
EKOLEATA BENCH, COURT-II
COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAAJ) No, 184/KB/2033

dispensed with in view of all such creditors having already considered

and given their written consent to the Scheme in the form of affidavits;

That a meeting of the equity shareholders of the Applicant No.
1 /Transferor Company be convened at the registered office of the
Applicant No. 1/Transferor Company at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata -
700001, Top floor Hall on Friday, the 9* day of August, 2024 at 11:00
AM. for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with

or without modification(s), the proposed Scheme of the Applicants;

That a meeting of the equity shareholders of the Applicant No.
2/Transferee Company be convened at the registered office of the
Applicant No. 2/Transferee Company at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata -
700001, Top floor Hall on Friday, the 9% day of August, 2024 at 12
Noon for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with

or without modification(s), the proposed Scheme of the Applicants;

In the event any of the meetings of the Applicants spill over and is
concluded after the time fixed for commencement of the succeeding
meetings of the Applicants, such succeeding meeting shall be held

immediately after such conclusion of the prior meeting;

In addition to the above, the respective equity shareholders of the
Applicants shall also have the facility and option of voting on the
resolution for approval of the Scheme by casting their votes through
ballot paper at the venue of the meeting or by remote electronic voting
(“remote e-voting”) during the remote e-voting period commencing on
25% July, 2024 at 9:00 AM (IST) and ending on 8% August, 2024 at 5:00
PM (IST). Such facility for remote e-voting by the respective equity
shareholders of the Applicants shall be disabled at 5:00 P.M., IST, on
8th August, 2024.
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g)

h)

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
EKOLEATA BENCH, COURT-II
COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No, 184 /KB/2033

The respective equity shareholders of the Applicants may opt to exercise
their votes only in one mode, i.e., by (a) remote e-voting or (b) through
ballot paper at the venue of the meeting. In case, the equity
shareholders cast their votes by remote e-voting, they will not be
entitled to vote again through ballot paper facility provided by the
respective Applicants at the venue of the meeting. If they do so, the
votes so cast by them at the meeting shall be treated as invalid.
However, it is clarified that, the equity shareholders opting to cast their
votes through remote e-voting shall nevertheless be entitled to attend
the meeting in accordance with the Act and participate in the
discussions in the meeting but not to vote again through ballot paper

at the meeting.

The Applicants shall engage any of the agencies which are approved by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 for providing the platform

for remote e-voting.

That at least 30 (thirty) days before the date of the said meeting(s) a
joint advertisement be published by the Applicants, conveying the date
of the meeting(s) and stating that the copies of the Scheme and
statement containing necessary details as required to be furnished
pursuant to Section 230 of the Act, 2013, read with Rule 6 of CAA
Rules, and a prescribed form of proxy can be obtained free of charge
from 21, Strand Road, Kolkata 700 001, be inserted once each in the
“Arthik Lipi" Bengali newspaper and in the “Business Standard”
English newspaper, both circulated in West Bengal as per requirements
of Section 230 of the Act, in Form No. CAA 2 of the CAA Rules.
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i)

k)

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
KOLEATA BENCH, COURT-IL
COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No, 184 /KB/2023

That in addition, at least one month before the meeting(s) to be held as
aforesaid, the respective notices convening the said meetings together
with a copy of the said Scheme, a copy of the statement required to be
sent under the provisions of the Act read with CAA Rules disclosing
necessary details including conveying the place and time as aforesaid
and the prescribed form of proxy and Attendance Slip shall be sent to
the respective equity shareholders of the Applicant Companies whose
names are appearing in the respective Register of Members of the
Applicant Companies as on l4th June, 2024, by registered post or
speed post or air mail or courier or email or hand delivery or through
personal messenger at their respective or last known addresses. The
said notice along with accompanying documents shall also be posted

on the respective website of the Applicants Companies.

That notice as per requirements of sub section (5) of Section 230 of the
Companies Act, 2013, alongwith all documents including copy of
Scheme and the statements disclosing necessary details shall be served
on the concerned statutory authorities having jurisdiction over
Applicants and such other relevant sectoral regulators/ authorities, if
applicable, which are likely to be affected by the proposed Scheme by
sending the same by email or hand delivery through personal
messenger or by registered post or speed post or courier for filing their
representation, if any, within 30 days from the date of receipt of notice.
The notice shall specify that representation, if any, should be filed
before this Tribunal within 30 days from the date of receipt of the notice
with a copy of such representation being sent simultaneously to the
Applicants and/or their Advocates. If no such representation is received
by the Tribunal with the said period, it shall be presumed that such
authorities have no representation to make on the said Scheme. Such

notice shall be sent pursuant to Section 230(5) of the Act and Rule 8 of
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1)

m)

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
KOLEATA BENCH, COURT-II
COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No. 184/KB/2023

CAA Rules with necessary variation incorporating the directions

therein.

SM Gupta, PCS [Mobile: 9830057568 and email id:
smguptaandco@; il.com, is appointed as the Chairperson of the
separate meetings of the equity shareholders of the Applicants to be
held as aforesaid in terms of this order. The Chairperson shall be paid
a consolidated sum of Rs. 80,000/- for conducting the aforesaid
meetings of the respective equity shareholders of the Applicants as

Chairperson.

Adv Anushka Dhar, Mobile: 9874920029 and email id:
anushkadhar.2020@gmail.com , is appointed as the Scrutinizer of the
separate meetings of the equity shareholders of the Applicants to be
held as aforementioned in terms of this order. The Scrutinizer shall be
paid a consolidated sum of Rs.60,000/- for conducting the aforesaid

meetings of the respective equity shareholders as Scrutinizer.

The quorum should be fixed in accordance with Section 103 of the Act,

present either in person or by proxy.

That the Chairperson appointed for the said meeting(s) or any person
authorised by him to issue and send out the notice of the said
meeting(s) referred above. The Chairperson shall have all powers under
the CAA Rules, as may be applicable in relation to the conduct of the
meeting including for deciding procedural questions that may arise at
the meeting or at any adjournment thereof or any other matter
including, an amendment to the Scheme or resolution, if any, proposed

at the meeting by any person(s).
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p)

q

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
HOLEATA BENCH, COURT-II
COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No. 184/KB/2033

A person, including a body corporate, entitled to attend and vote at the
venue of a meeting, as aforesaid, may do so personally or by proxy or
by authorized person (in case of body corporates), provided the proxies
in the prescribed form duly signed by such person and/or the certified
copy of resolution of the Board of Directors or other governing body of
such person, where it is a body corporate, authorizing its representative
to attend and vote at such meeting on its behalf, as the case may be, is
deposited at the respective registered office of the concerned Applicant
not later than 48 (forty eight) hours before the time for holding such
meeting. If a body corporate chooses to vote by remote e-voting, a copy
of such board resolution shall be either deposited physically at the
respective registered offices of the Applicants or sent by email to the
Scrutinizer. It is clarified that proxies can only attend at the venue of
the meeting and vote thereat by ballot paper and are not entitled

otherwise to attend or to vote by remote e-voting.

The Chairperson(s) shall have the power to adjourn the meeting(s), if
necessary, and to conduct the procedure for the adjourned meeting(s)
as deemed necessary under the Act. In case the required guorum as
noted above for the meetings is not present at the commencement of
the meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned by 30 minutes and
thereafter the persons present and voting shall be deemed to constitute
the quorum. For the purposes of completing the quorum the wvalid
proxies shall also be considered, if the proxy in the prescribed form,
duly signed by the persons entitled to attend and vote at the meeting,
is filed with the respective registered offices of the Applicant at least 48
hours before the meeting. The Chairperson appointed herein shall

ensure that the proxy register is properly maintained.

The value and number of the equity shares of each member shall be in

accordance with the respective books/register of the Applicants or
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t)

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
HOLKATA BENCH, COURT-II
COMPARNY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No, 184/KB/2023

depository records and where the entries in the books / register /
depository records are disputed, the Chairperson of the meeting(s) shall
determine the value for the purpose of the aforesaid meetings and his

decision in that behalf would be final.

The cut-off date for determining the eligibility of equity shareholders
who will be entitled to vote and value of their votes shall be 19% July,
2024 and the value of the votes cast shall be reckoned and scrutinized

with referenice to the said date.

Subject to the directions and matters dealt with herein, the procedure
for remote e-voting and conduct of voting at the venue of the meeting
through ballot papers in so far as the same is prescribed by the
Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 and the forms
thereunder shall be followed with such variations as required in the
circumstances and in relation to the resolution for approval of the

Scheme.

The Applicants to file an affidavit proving service of notice of meeting(s)
and publication of advertisement and compliance of all directions

contained therein at least 7 (seven) days before the meeting(s) to be
held.

The votes cast shall be scrutinized by the Scrutinizer pursuant to Rule
21 of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, The
votes cast through (i) remote e-voting; and (ii) ballot paper at the
meeting shall be consolidated. It is clarified that the responsibility for
issuance of the notices shall be of the Chairperson, or any person
authorized by the Chairperson, as aforesaid, and not of the Scrutinizer.
The Scrutinizer shall prepare and submit the respective reports on the

separate meetings of the equity shareholders of the Applicants along
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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
HOLEATA BENCH, COURT-IT

COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No, 184/KB/2033

with all papers relating to the voting to the Chairperson of the said
meetings of the equity shareholders of the Applicants within two
working days from the conclusion of the said meetings. The
Chairperson shall declare the respective results of the meetings of the
equity shareholders of the Applicants after submission of the reports of
the Scrutinizer. The declared results shall be displayed on the
respective notice board of the Applicants at their respective registered
offices and shall also be posted on their respective website. Such results
shall also be forwarded to the stock exchanges where the shares of the
Applicants are listed. Further, such declaration of results shall also be
posted on the website of the agency providing the facility for e-voting.
In addition to the aforesaid, all other requirements with regard to
publication and communication of Secrutinizer’s report and
Chairperson’s declaration of results, as prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 should also be complied with by the
Applicants.

The respective resolution for approval of the proposed Scheme put to a
meeting shall, if passed by a majority in number representing three-
fourths in value of the respective shareholders casting their votes, as
aforesaid, shall be deemed to have been duly passed on the date of such

meeting under Section 230(1) read with Section 232(1) of the Act.

That the Chairperson(s) do report to this Tribunal the result of the said

meeting(s) within 4 weeks from the date of conclusion of the meeting(s)
and his/her report shall be in Form No. CAA 4 of the CAA Rules.

Confirmation petition to be filed within 7 (seven) days thereafter.
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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
EKOLEATA BENCH, COURT-II
COMPANY APPLICATION NO: CA (CAA) No, 184/KB/2033

. The application being Company Application (CAA) No. 184/KB/2023 is

disposed of accordingly.

. The Registry is directed to send e-mail copies of the order forthwith to all

the parties.

. Urgent certified copy of this Order, if applied for be issued upon compliance

with all requisite formalities.

D. Arvind Bidisha Banerjee
Member (Technical) Member (Judicial)

Signed this, on the 18 day of June, 2024

NKS[LRA)
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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, KOLKATA BENCH
C.A. (C.A.A.) /184(KB) OF 2023

Inthe matter of The Companies Act, 2013;
And

In the matter of Section 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016;

And

In the matter of:
1. WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY
LIMITED (CIN: L67120WB1928PLC093924), formerly
known as 'Indian Investment Co. Ltd.", a public limited
company, incorporated under the Indian Companies Act,
1913, and having its registered office at 21, Strand Road
Kolkata — 700 001, West Bengal, within the aforesaid
jurisdiction
.... TRANSFEROR COMPANY/
COMPANY

And

2. N.B.l. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(CIN: L65923WB1936PLC065596), a public limited
company, formerly known as 'THE NEW BANK LIMITED',
incorporated under the Indian Companies Act, 1913 and
having its registered office at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata —
700 001, West Bengal, within the aforesaid jurisdiction.
...TRANSFEREE COMPANY

And
In the matter of:
1. WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY
LIMITED

2. N.B.l.INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
...APPLICANT COMPANIES
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FORM NO. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: L67120WB1928PLC093924

Name of the Company: Western India Commercial Co. Ltd.

Registered Office: 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

Website: www.western-india.co.in, Email: westernindiacommercialcoltd@gmail.com
Phone: 033-22309601-03

Name of the member(s):

Registered address:

E-mail ID:

Folio No./Client ID:

DP ID: No. of Shares:

I/We, being the member(s) of the above named company, hereby appoint:

1. Name:
Address:
E-mail ID:
Signature: or failing him

2. Name:
Address:
E-mail ID:
Signature: or failing him

3. Name:
Address:
E-mail ID;

Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a ballot paper) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company to be held on Friday, the 9th day of August,
2024 at 11 A.M. at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001 for the purpose of considering and, if
thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the arrangement embodied in the Scheme of

183



Amalgamation between Western India Commercial Company Limited and N.B.l. Industrial
Finance Company Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors (the “Scheme”) and at
such meeting, and at any adjournment or adjournments thereof, to vote, for me/us and in my/our
name(s) (here, if 'for', insert 'FOR’, if 'against’, insert "AGAINST’, and in the later
case, strike out the words below after 'the Scheme') the said arrangement embodied in the
Scheme, either with or without modification(s)*, as my/our proxy may approve. (*Strike out
whatever is not applicable)

Affix Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Proxy
Signed this........... dayof ............... , 2024 Signature of Share-holder(s)

Note: The Proxy must be returned so as to reach the Registered Office of the Company not
less than 48 hours before the time for holding the aforesaid meeting. The Proxy need not be
amember of the Company.
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Western India Commercial Company Limited
CIN: L67120WB1928PLC093924

Registered Office: 21, Strand Road, Kolkata 700 001
Website: www.western-india.co.in

E-Mail: westernindiacommercialcoltd@gmail.com
Phone: 033-22309601-03

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Meeting of the Equity Shareholders on Friday, the 9*" August, 2024 at 11:00 A.M.
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of Western India
Commercial Company Limited, the Applicant Company No. 1, convened pursuant to the final
order dated 18" June, 2024 of the NCLT at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001, on Friday, the

9" day of August 2024 at 11:00 A.M.

Name of the Shareholder

Address

Folio No. DP ID Client ID

No. of shares held

Name of Proxy Holder / Authorised Representative:

I/We certify that I/We am/are registered shareholder/proxy for the registered shareholder of the

company.

Signature of the shareholder(s)/Proxy(s)

Notes:

1. Shareholder/Proxy(s) are requested to bring the attendance slips with them when they come
to the meeting and handover the same at the entrance after affixing their signatures on them.

2. If it is intended to appoint a proxy, the proxy form should be completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the meeting.
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Route Map for venue of the Meeting:
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